Ocean County Board of Chosen Ffreeholders

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Ave
OCEAN COUNTY FREEHOLDERS

Toms River, New Jersey
Freeholder Director Virginia E. Haines

08754-2191
Deputy Director John P. Kelly
Tel: 732-929-2005
Freeholder Gerry P. Little Fax: 732-505-1918

Freeholder Gary Quinn
Freeholder Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 21, 2019 - 4:00 PM
Location: Administration Building
Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

. CALL TO ORDER

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Chosen Freeholders of the County of Ocean was called to order on August 21,
2019 at 4:.00 PM, Room 119, County Administration Building, 101 Hooper Avenue, Toms River, Ocean County,
New Jersey, with Freeholder Director Haines presiding. Members Little, Vicari and Kelly were present at the call of
the roll. Freeholder Quinn was not present.

. ROLL CALL
. STATEMENT Compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act

Virginia E. Haines, Frecholder Director, read the following statement of compliance with the Open Public Meetings
Act:

"In compliance with the provisions of the 'Open Public Meetings Act', adequate notice of this meeting of the Board of
Chosen Frecholders has been advertised in the manner prescribed by law."

. THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND PRAYER
RESOLUTION - PUBLIC HEARING
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1. Accepting the recommendation of the OC Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee and the Ocean
County Agriculture Development Board to participate in the fee-simple acquisition of property identified as
Block 390, Lot 11, totaling approximately 9.77 acres, located on New Hampshire Avenue in Toms River
Township, in a total amount not to exceed $1,025,850.00 plus up to $2,750.00 for property tax adjustments.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001128
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

Clerk Cilento read the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee recommendation resolution by
title, which was scheduled for Public Hearing at this time.

DIRECTOR HAINES: "The first one which I will talk a little bit about for the public lands is for Farmland
Preservation. It’s a piece of property that is located on New Hampshire Avenue. It’s 9.77 acres. It has not been
farmed in about 2 years, but it is primarily a horse and sheep farm.

Mark Villinger from our Planning Department is there with on the board. The owner has retired from farming and
would like to sell the property in its entirety. This property, when we do take it over, will continue to be deed-
restricted. It will strictly for farming. According to the USGS soil survey, the site is comprised of 100% prime
farmland (soils). The site is approximately %2 mile from the County preserved Silverton Farm and is identified as a
target farm in the County’s Comprehensive Farmland Management Plan.

The asking price is $1.2 million and the renegotiated offer is is $1,025,850.00. Now I will open it up to the public.
Would anyone like to come forward to ask any questions about this piece of land?”

Director Haines opened the Public Hearing on the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee
recommendation resolution to the public for comments.

No comments were received, therefore, the Public Hearing was declared closed.

On motion duly made by Freeholder Vicari, seconded by Freeholder Kelly, the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust
Fund Advisory Committee recommendation resolution was adopted on final reading.

2. Accepting the recommendation of the OC Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee to participate in
the acquisition of property identified as Block 1072, Lot 15, totaling approximately 0.50 acres, located on
Point Pleasant Avenue in the Township of Berkeley, in a total amount not to exceed $12,000.00 plus up to
$785.00 for property tax adjustments.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001129
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A
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Clerk Cilento read the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee recommendation resolution by
title, which was scheduled for Public Hearing at this time.

DIRECTOR HAINES: "The next one is another piece of property that is called the Bourke Property and it is located
in Berkeley Township. It is approximately 0.50 acres and it has frontage on Point Pleasant Avenue. It is located
adjacent to the 6 acres of Natural Lands Trust Fund property. The property is comprised of wetlands and uplands
and includes a portion of the Jeffries Creek, a tributary to the Toms River. The property supports migrant fish
habitat.

The property was submitted at an asking price of $75,000.00. The owner accepted our negotiated offer of
$12,000.00.

This is the Public Hearing. Would anyone like to come forward to speak on this? We just need your name and
address. Anyone?”

Director Haines opened the Public Hearing on the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee
recommendation resolution to the public for comments.

No comments were received, therefore, the Public Hearing was declared closed.

On motion duly made by Freeholder Kelly, seconded by Frecholder Vicari, the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust
Fund Advisory Committee recommendation resolution was adopted on final reading.

AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF BILLS IN BILL COMMITTEE REPORT NO. 16.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001116
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

CLERK CILENTO: "Next on the agenda we have Authorizing the Bills of Bill Committee Report No. 16."

Abstentions:

Mr. Little, except on the Vouchers listed on the Bill Summary Report which is part of the Bill Committee Report
No. 16 record.

Mr. Vicari, except on the Vouchers listed on the Bill Summary Report which is part of the Bill Committee Report
No. 16 record.

Ms. Haines, except on the Vouchers listed on the Bill Summary Report which is part of the Bill Committee Report
No. 16 record.

. AUTHORIZING ENGINEERING PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTORS AS LISTED BELOW:

CLERK CILENTO: "Moving on, we have six Engineering Payments to Contractors."

1. MIDLANTIC CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Replacement of Midstreams Bridge (Structure No. 1506-007),
Midstreams Road over Beaver Dam Creek, Brick Township - Final Estimate #18, $449,292.52. (B2017-

115E)
RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001118
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn
MOVE: John P. Kelly
SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari
AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A
ABSTAINED: N/A

2. KARKA CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Reconstruction of the Ridge Avenue and New Hampshire Avenue
Signalized Intersection, Lakewood Township, No. II - Partial Estimate #4, $109,885.43. (B2018-155E)
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001119
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

3. EDWARD H. CRAY, INC. - Construction of Long Beach Boulevard Traffic Signal Upgrades Phase B,
Group 1, Long Beach Boulevard, Long Beach Township - Partial Estimate #5, $84,729.38. (B2018-29E)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001120
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

4. EDWARD H. CRAY, INC. - Construction of Long Beach Boulevard Traffic Signal Upgrades Phase B,
Group 2, Long Beach Boulevard, Long Beach Township - Partial Estimate #4, $172,073.30. (B2018-30E)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001121
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

5. C.J. HESSE, INC. - County Site Improvements at Southern Services and Chestnut Street Facilities,
Townships of Stafford and Toms River - Partial Estimate #2, $52,977.81. (B2018-140E)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001122
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

6. EARLE ASPHALT COMPANY - Reconstruction and Resurfacing of Portions of Certain County Roads,
Contract 2019A - Partial Estimate #2, $305,459.02. (B2019-43E)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001123
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

RESOLUTIONS

CLERK CILENTO: "We¢ have Resolutions, H-1 through H-15."

1. Authorizing the Personnel Resolution.

Page 4



Board Meeting Agenda August 21, 2019

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001176
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

2. Authorizing an amendment to the 2019 Budget for the program entitled New Jersey Clean Vessel Act
Pumpout Repair FY 19, in the amount of $9,000.00.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001117
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

3. Certifying Compliance of the Group Affidavit Form of the Annual Audit as promulgated by the State of New
Jersey Local Finance Board.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001125
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

4. Authorizing the sale of $39,880,000 General Improvement Bonds, Series 2019.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001126
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

5. Authorizing the sale of $3,400,000 College Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2019.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001127
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

6. Authorizing the execution of a Grant Application for the 2020 Updated Comprehensive County Youth
Services Plan.
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001124
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

7. Authorizing the execution of a Trademark License Agreement with the U.S. Census Bureau to receive non-
exclusive, royalty free rights to use the 2020 Census logo for promotional materials related to the 2020

Census.
RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001095
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn
MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari
SECOND: John P. Kelly
AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A
ABSTAINED: N/A

8. Authorizing the execution of Shared Services Agreements for the Prosecutor's Traffic Safety Programs with
various municipalities, for the period of 1/1/2019 through 12/31/2019.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001096
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: T oseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

9. Authorizing an Amendatory Intergovernmental Agreement with the Township of Stafford to provide Schedule
"C" Engineering Department Services, an increase in the amount of $70,000.00 and Schedule "C" Road
Department Services, an increase in the amount of $50,000.00.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001175
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

10.  Authorizing the execution of a Deferred Loan Agreement under the CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program,
as recommended by the Planning Director. (C2019-111)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001097
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

11. " Authorizing the execution of a Deferred Loan Agreement under the CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program,
as recommended by the Planning Director. (C2019-118)

Page 6



Board Meeting Agenda August 21, 2019

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001098
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

12, Authorizing the execution of a Deferred Loan Agreement under the CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program,
as recommended by the Planning Director. (C2019-119)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001099
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

13. Authorizing the execution of a Mortgage and Mortgage Note Modification Agreement and a Deferred
Agreement Modification under the CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program, as recommended by the Planning
Director. (C2017-124)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001100
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

14. Appointing Members to the 2020 Census Complete Count Committee, term to expire 4/30/2021.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001130
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

15. Transferring the authority and responsibilities of the Director of Vehicle Services to Brian W. McCarthy,
Business Manager, Vehicle Services Department, effective 9/1/2019.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001131
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

MOTIONS

CLERK CILENTO: "Motions, I-1 through I-5. With reference to numbers 3 and 4, all members were present.”

1. Authorizing the Clerk of the Board to accept and/or record legal instruments.
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001132
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Gerry P. Little

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

Deed:

CTO07 91 Brick Bivd., LLC and — Block 379.01; P/O Lot 5 — Brick Twp

DTO07 91 Brick Bivd., LLC

Sight Right Easement:

CTO07 91 Brick Bivd., LLC and — Block 379.01; P/O Lot 5 — Brick Twp

DTO07 91 Brick Bivd., LLC

CTO07 91 Brick Bivd., LLC and — Block 379.01; P/O Lot 5 — Brick Twp

DTO07 91 Brick Bivd., LLC

A.S. Pushkin Memorial Home for Aged Russian People, Inc.

Block 11501; P/O Lot 7.12 — Jackson Twp

A.S. Pushkin Memorial Home for Aged Russian People, Inc.

Block 11501; P/O Lot 7.18 — Jackson Twp

McDonald’s Corporation — Block 394; P/O Lot 49.02 — Toms River Twp

Road Easement:

McDonald’s Corporation — Block 394; P/O Lot 49.02 — Toms River Twp

Deed of Dedication:

701 Central Avenue, LL.C — Block 109; P/O Lot 1.01 — Ship Bottom

Dover Shopping Center Associates LLC — Block 364.02; Lot 46 — Toms River Twp
Storm Water Maintenance Agreement:

Dover Shopping Center Associates LLC — Block 364.02; Lot 46 — Toms River Twp
Drainage Easement:

Dover Shopping Center Associates LLC — Block 364.02; Lot 46 — Toms River Twp
Mortgage/Note/Copy:

Gerlich, Frederick — Block 4.108; Lot 12 — Berkeley Twp

Knapp, Joan — Block 4.162; Lot 7 — Berkeley Twp

Petro, Gloria — Block 4.83; Lot 16 — Berkeley Twp

Mortgage & Note Modification/Copy:

Healey, Georgann — Block 9.32; Lot 4 — Berkeley Twp

LEGAL INSTRUMENTS RECEIVED FOR 8-21-2019
Mortgage:

Cora, Renie — Block 30; Lot 1.85 — Manchester Twp
BK17559PG381

Road Easement:
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Nunn, Randall and Kari — Block 17; Lots 1 & 1.01 — Ocean Gate Borough
BK17568PG1598

Deed:

Nunn, Randall W. — Block 17; Lot | and 1.01 — Ocean Gate Borough

BK17568PG1602

Grunin Properties I, LLC — Block 608/597; Lot 19.01/16, 19-32, 35-38 — Toms River Twp
BK17522PG1012

Deed of Consolidation:

County of Ocean — Block 597; Lot 16.01 — Toms River Twp

BK17536PG444

2. Approving the Master Payroll paid on 8/21/2019 for the payroll period of 7/25/2019 through 8/7/2019 and
for the payroll period of 8/8/2019 through 8/21/2019, in the amount of $5,331,873.07.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001133
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Gerry P. Little

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

3. Approving the Board Meeting Minutes of 7/17/2019.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001134
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Gerry P. Little

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

4. Approving the Pre-Board Meeting Minutes of 7/31/2019.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001135
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT:  Gary Quinn

MOVE: Gerry P. Little

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

5. Approving the plans and specifications and authorizing the County Engineer to advertise for the receipt of

bids for the Construction of Traffic Signal Upgrades, Contract 2019B, Brick Township.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001136
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT:  Gary Quinn

MOVE: Gerry P. Little

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A
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Board Meeting Agenda

August 21, 2019

CLERK CILENTO: "Bid Awards, J-1 through J-13."

1. Awarding a Contract for the furnishing and delivery of VEHICLE AND VEHICLE OPERATING
PERSONNEL FOR THE SUPPLEMENTARY REMOVAL OF SNOW AND ICE to A&M Harrison
Construction Co., LLC, the sole qualified bidder. No bids were received on Item Nos. 3 and 4.
Recommendation is made to reject [tem No. 1 as unresponsive. All no bid and rejected items will not be rebid
as they are no longer needed.(B2019-112)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001103
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: Gerry P. Little

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

2. Awarding a Contract for the furnishing and delivery of MOTOR VEHICLE: NEW TRACTOR TRUCK to
Bergey's Trucks, Inc. dba Bergey's Truck Centers, the sole qualified bidder. (B2019-117)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001104
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: Gerry P. Little

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

3. Awarding Contracts for the furnishing and delivery of SURVEYING EQUIPMENT FOR THE
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT to Tiger Supplies, Inc.; KMEL Corp. dba Keystone Precision Instruments;
Jesco, Inc.; and Allen Precision Equipment, the lowest qualified bidders. Recommendation is made to reject
Item No. 10. It will be rebid with revised specifications. (B2019-118)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001105
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: Gerry P. Little

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

4. Awarding a Contract for the furnishing and delivery of MOTOR VEHICLE: MINI HYDRAULIC
EXCAVATOR to Foley, Incorporated, the lowest qualified bidder. (B2019-123)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001106
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: Gerry P. Little

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

5. Awarding a Contract for the furnishing and delivery of MOTOR VEHICLE: NEW HEAVY DUTY
LOADER to Jesco, Inc., the lowest qualified bidder. (B2019-124)
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001107
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: Gerry P. Little

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

6.  Awarding a Contract for the furnishing and delivery of MOTOR VEHICLE: VIBRATORY ASPHALT
ROLLER to Foley Incorporated, the sole qualified bidder. (B2019-125)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001108
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: Gerry P. Little

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

7. Awarding a Contract for the furnishing and delivery of UNPAINTED SNOW FENCE AND DUNE GRASS
to Chemung Supply Corp., the lowest qualified bidder. Recommendation is made to reject Iltem No. 3 as
unresponsive. It will be rebid. (B2019-126)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001109
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: Gerry P. Little

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

8. Authorizing the County Purchasing Agent to enter into a negotiated contract for the furnishing and delivery of
ENGINEERING AND DRAFTING SUPPLIES NO. 11, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:11-5(3) for Item
Nos. 12, 28,29, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 42, 43 and 51, as no bids were received for a second time.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001110
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: Gerry P. Little

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

9. Rejecting all bids received for WALKING FLOOR TRAILERS as unresponsive. It will be rebid.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001111
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: Gerry P. Little

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

10. Rescinding PRINTER CARTRIDGES NO. II Section K, Item No. 242 from Solvix Solutions, LLC as the
vendor is no longer able to honor their contract. Recommendation is made to award Section K, Item No. 242
to Supply Saver Corporation, the next lowest qualified bidder. (B2019-54)
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001112
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: Gerry P. Little

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

11. Rescinding JANITORIAL SUPPLIES Item No. 50 from South Jersey Paper as the vendor is unable to

provide the contracted item. Recommendation is made to award Item No. 50 to General Linen and Paper, the

next lowest qualified bidder. (B2019-73)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001113
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: Gerry P. Little

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

12, Authorizing an amendment to the Contract for PROCESSING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIALS with

Mazza Recycling Services, Ltd. to extend their contract pricing to the County's "Cooperative Contract

Purchasing System Participants”. (B2018-137)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001114
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: Gerry P. Little

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

13. Awarding a Contract for the REPLACEMENT OF RIDGEWAY BOULEVARD BRIDGE (STRUCTURE

NO. 1518-002), RIDGEWAY BOULEVARD OVER THE RIDGEWAY BRANCH OF THE TOMS

RIVER, MANCHESTER TOWNSHIP to Midlantic Construction, LLC, the lowest qualified bidder, in an

amount not to exceed $1,471,269.77. (B2019-127E)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001115
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: Gerry P. Little

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

K. CONTRACTS
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CLERK CILENTO: "Next on the agenda we have Contracts, K-1 through K-38."
FREEHOLDER VICARI: "Just one comment, if [ may Director?"

DIRECTOR HAINES: "Sure."

FREEHOLDER VICARI: "From K-13 to K-32 it has to do with senior citizen contracts. We are fortunate to tell
this Board and the people of Ocean County, our seniors, that it is new money, $286,000.00 that is coming to Ocean
County from State and Federal funding. And the reason being, is because not only of our need — and there will be an
amendment to the Budget — because we are going to spend more money, but it goes to a person, a place, as far as
taking care of our seniors. It is already this year at $6.5 million to help and most of it goes to feed our seniors.

We have a policy since Frecholder Mancini was a Frecholder and liaison with Senior Services as far as with our
waiting list. Right now, several years ago as you will remember, we had a waiting list with our senior that were in
need. Most live on, or many, $1100.00 per month so the Freeholders put in a quarter million dollars more. So this is
really going to be a major plus to our program which is recognized not only in New Jersey as one of the best, but
before the Congress of the United States it was one of the best programs in the United States taking care of the needs
of senior citizens. Thank you.”

DIRECTOR HAINES: "That’s true. Ocean County does look out for their seniors.”

1. Awarding a Professional Services Contract to C&S Engineers, Inc. to provide Professional Engineering
Consulting Services at the Ocean County Airport associated with the design of a new T-Hangar Building, T-
Hangar Taxilane, and other associated improvements, in an amount not to exceed $221,000.00. (QP2019-

114)
RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001137
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn
MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari
SECOND: John P. Kelly
AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A
ABSTAINED: N/A

2. Awarding a Professional Services Contract to C&S Engineers, Inc. to provide Professional Engineering
Consulting Services at the Ocean County Airport associated with the Wildlife Hazard Assessment (Site Visit)
project, in an amount not to exceed $26,750.00. (QP2019-115)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001138
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT:  Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

3. Awarding a Professional Services Contract to C&S Engineers, Inc. to provide Professional Engineering
Consulting Services at the Ocean County Airport associated with the Install Airport Beacons (Construction)
Phase II project, in an amount not to exceed $97,000.00. (QP2019-116)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001139
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

4. Awarding a Professional Services Contract to C&S Engineers, Inc. to provide Professional Engineering
Consulting Services at the Ocean County Airport associated with the Expand General Aviation Apron
(Construction) Phase III project, in an amount not to exceed $260,000.00. (QP2019-117)
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001140
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

5. Appointing Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. and RBC Capital Markets, LLC to provide Underwriting Services
for Bond Refunding for the County of Ocean.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001141
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

6.  Awarding a Contract to WW Grainger, Inc. (State Contract No. 19-FLEET-0056) to provide a Ride-On
Litter Vacuum needed to support the Buildings and Grounds Department in maintaining Ocean County
Grounds, in an amount not to exceed $41,233.29.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001142
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

7. Awarding a Purchase Order to Van Cleef Engineering Associates, LLC to provide Land Surveying Services
for the OC Natural Lands Trust Fund Program, in an amount not to exceed $6,442.16. (QP2019-58)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001143
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

8. Awarding a Purchase Order to ATANE Engineers, Architects & Land Surveyors, PC to provide Land
Surveying Services for the OC Natural Lands Trust Fund Program, in an amount not to exceed $5,500.00.
(QP2019-58)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001144
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

9. Awarding a Purchase Order to Allstate Title Agency, LLC to provide Title Binder and Commitment /
Insurance and Search Services for the OC Natural Lands Trust Fund Program, in an amount not to exceed
$4,664.00. (QP2019-60)
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001145
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

10.  Awarding a Purchase Order to T&M Associates to provide Environmental Consulting Services for the OC
Natural Lands Trust Fund Program, in an amount not to exceed $67,750.00. (QP2019-105)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001146
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

11. Awarding a Purchase Order to Surety Title Agency Coastal Region, LLC to provide Title Binder and
Commitment / Insurance and Search Services associated with the acquisition of Block 608, Lots 16.1, 16.2,
18, 19 and Block 597, Lots 16, 20-32, 35-38 at 1027 Hooper Avenue, Toms River Township, in an amount
not to exceed $22,559.00. (QP2019-60)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001147
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: ‘Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

12, Amending a Contract with SHI International (State Contract No. 89851) awarded on 9/19/2017 to provide
Software License Renewal for Microsoft Software, to reflect a revised funding source for year three of the

agreement.
RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001148
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn
MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari
SECOND: John P. Kelly
AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A
ABSTAINED: N/A

13. Amending a Competitive Contract Award for Year One, Older Americans Act, Title III Area Plan Contracts
to Community Services, Inc. of Ocean County, an increase in the amount of $6,833.00. (CC2018-156)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001149
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

14, Amending a Competitive Contract Award for Year One, Older Americans Act, Title ITI Area Plan Contracts
to Community Services, Inc. of Ocean County, an increase in the amount of $70,000.00. (CC2018-159)
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001150
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

15. Amending a Competitive Contract Award for Year One, Older Americans Act, Title III Area Plan Contracts
to Visiting Home Care Service of Ocean County, an increase in the amount of $6,444.00. (CC2019-11)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001151
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

16.  Amending a Competitive Contract Award for Year One, Older Americans Act, Title ITI Area Plan Contracts
to Toms River Township Senior Center, an increase in the amount of $10,000.00. (CC2019-14)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001152
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

17." Amending a Competitive Contract Award for Year One, Older Americans Act, Title III Area Plan Contracts
to Catholic Charities Diocese of Trenton, an increase in the amount of $15,000.00. (CC2019-16)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001153
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

18. Amending a Competitive Contract Award for Year One, Older Americans Act, Title III Area Plan Contracts
to Catholic Charities Diocese of Trenton, an increase in the amount of $9,106.00. (CC2019-17)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001154
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

19. Amending a Competitive Contract Award for Year One, Older Americans Act, Title III Area Plan Contracts
to Manchester Township, an increase in the amount of $10,000.00. (CC2019-19)
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001155
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

20.  Amending a Competitive Contract Award for Year One, Older Americans Act, Title III Area Plan Contracts
to Preferred Behavioral Health of New Jersey, an increase in the amount of $20,000.00. (CC2019-20)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001156
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

21. Amending a Competitive Contract Award for Year One, Older Americans Act, Title ITI Area Plan Contracts
to Monmouth Medical Center Southern Campus, an increase in the amount of $20,171.00. (CC2019-22)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001157
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

22, Amending a Competitive Contract Award for Year One, Older Americans Act, Title III Area Plan Contracts
to Community Health Law Project, an increase in the amount of $22,922.00. (CC2019-23)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001158
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

23.  Amending a Competitive Contract Award for Year One, Older Americans Act, Title III Area Plan Contracts
to Lakewood Community Services Corp., an increase in the amount of $5,000.00. (CC2019-31)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001159
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

24, Amending a Competitive Contract Award for Year One, Older Americans Act, Title III Area Plan Contracts
to Lakewood Community Services Corp., an increase in the amount of $4,100.00. (CC2019-33)
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001160
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

25.  Amending a Competitive Contract Award for Year One, Older Americans Act, Title III Area Plan Contracts
to Brick Township, an increase in the amount of $10,000.00. (CC2019-34)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001161
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

26.  Amending a Competitive Contract Award for Year One, Older Americans Act, Title III Area Plan Contracts
to Brick Township, an increase in the amount of $4,846.00. (CC2019-35)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001162
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

27.  Amending a Competitive Contract Award for Year One, Older Americans Act, Title III Area Plan Contracts
to Jewish Federation of Ocean County, an increase in the amount of $10,000.00. (CC2019-36)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001163
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

28.  Amending a Competitive Contract Award for Year One, Older Americans Act, Title III Area Plan Contracts
to Jewish Federation of Ocean County, an increase in the amount of $5,823.00. (CC2019-37)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001164
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

29.  Amending a Competitive Contract Award for Year One, Older Americans Act, Title III Area Plan Contracts
to Lakewood Community Services Corp., an increase in the amount of $1,600.00. (CC2019-38)

Page 18



Board Meeting Agenda August 21, 2019

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001165
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

30.  Amending a Competitive Contract Award for Year One, Older Americans Act, Title IIl Area Plan Contracts
to Community Medical Center Foundation, an increase in the amount of $10,359.00. (CC2019-39)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001166
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

3. Amending a Competitive Contract Award for Year One, Older Americans Act, Title III Area Plan Contracts
to Borough of Point Pleasant, an increase in the amount of $12,000.00. (CC2019-42)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001167
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: ‘Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

32, Amending a Competitive Contract Award for Year One, Older Americans Act, Title III Area Plan Contracts
to Long Beach Island Community Center, Inc., an increase in the amount of $17,332.00. (CC2019-46)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001168
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: ‘Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

33.  Awarding a Purchase Order to Surety Title Agency Coastal Region, LLC to provide Title Binder and
Commitment / Insurance and Search Services associated with project (230B), BA-Rt. 527, Cedar Swamp
Road at West Freehold Road, Jackson Township, in an amount not to exceed $4,949.80. (QP2019-60)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001169
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

34, Awarding a Purchase Order to Urban Engincers, Inc. to provide Construction Project Management for the
Replacement of Grawtown Road Bridge (Structure No. 1511-009), Grawtown Road over Dove Mill Branch
of Toms River, Jackson Township, in an amount not to exceed $222,793.02. (PP2018-136)
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001170
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

35.  Awarding a Purchase Order to Atlantic Engineering Laboratories, Inc. to provide Consultant Material
Sampling, Inspection and Testing Services for the Replacement of Grawtown Road Bridge (Structure No.
1511-009), Grawtown Road over Dove Mill Branch of Toms River, Jackson Township, in an amount not to

exceed $4,025.00. (QP2019-82)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001171
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

36.  Amending the award of a Purchase Order to Dewberry Engineers, Inc. to provide additional On-Call Traffic
Engineering Professional Services for Traffic Signal Analyses at South Hope Chapel Road (C.R. 547),
Manchester Township, an increase in the amount of $11,310.37. (QP2019-59)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001172
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

37.  Amending the award of a Purchase Order to French & Parrello Associates, P.A. to provide additional Small
Road and Bridge Design Services for the Reconstruction and Resurfacing of Shorrock Street from Route 70
to Beaverson Boulevard, Lakewood and Brick Townships, an increase in the amount of $14,532.70. (QP2018

-170)
RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001173
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn
MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari
SECOND: John P. Kelly
AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A
ABSTAINED: N/A

38.  Awarding a Professional Services Contract to Mott MacDonald Architects, P.C. to provide Commercial
Office Building Architectural Design Services associated with the Design and Construction of the Social

Services Facility, in an amount not to exceed $1,875,000.00. (QP2019-70)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001174
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: John P. Kelly

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little

NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: Joseph H. Vicari

L. APPOINTMENTS AND REAPPOINTMENTS
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CLERK CILENTO: “Next on the agenda we have Appointments and Reappointments, L-1 and L-2.”

1. Appointing Steven A. Zabarsky, Esquire, Toms River, as a new member of the OCEAN COUNTY
COLLEGE BOARD OF TRUSTREES to fill the unexpired term of Thomas E. Monahan, term to expire

12/19/2022.
RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001101
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn
MOVE: John P. Kelly
SECOND: Gerry P. Little
AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A
ABSTAINED: N/A

2. Reappointing David L. Fitzgerald to the position of Director of Transportation Services, for a term of three
(3) years, term to expire 8/31/2022.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2019001102
PRESENT: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: Gary Quinn

MOVE: John P. Kelly

SECOND: - Gerry P. Little

AYE: Virginia E. Haines, John P. Kelly, Gerry P. Little, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

M. RECEIVED ITEMS

CLERK CILENTO: "The balance of the items on the agenda are Received Items which include Resolutions from
Governing Bodies, Minutes and Meeting Notices, Approvals and Correspondence all received in the Clerk of the
Board's Office since the last Regular Meeting of the Board."

DIRECTOR HAINES: "Thank you. Before I go to Frecholder comments I just want to say this for anyone new that
might be here that doesn't know it. I know we went through our agenda very quickly. Just so you understand, we just
don't look at it today, we did have a meeting before this. We have PreBoard Meeting twice a month and, of course,
our public Board Meeting twice a month. So we do go over all of these items. But you need to know we don't vote
on anything at a PreBoard. All the voting is done here in our public session at our Board Meeting. So when you see
an agenda we have gone over everything so everyone is fully aware, we've all discussed it and none of us have any
problems. If we did, we discussed it, straightened it out and we're fine. Thank you."

N. RESOLUTIONS FROM GOVERNING BODIES

1. OC Board of Health Resolution No. 239(19) approving reallocations for the 2019 County Comprehensive
Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Grant.

2. OC Board of Health Resolution No. 244(19) proclaiming the month of September 2019 as "National Alcohol
and Drug Addiction Recovery Month".

3. OC Board of Health Resolution No. 245(19) recognizing September 2019 as "National Preparedness Month".

4. OC Board of Health Resolution No. 246(19) proclaiming the month of September 2019 as "National
Childhood Cancer Awareness Month".

5. OC Board of Health Resolution No. 247(19) proclaiming the month of September 2019 as "National
Childhood Obesity Awareness Month".

6. OC Board of Health Resolution No. 248(19) proclaiming the month of September 2019 as "Fruits and
Veggies Month".

7. OC Board of Health Resolution No. 249(19) recognizing the month of September 2019 as "Board and Care
Recognition Month".

8. Borough of Bay Head Resolution No. 2019-96 supporting the lawsuit by the County of Ocean Board of
Frecholders challenging the Attorney General's Immigration Trust Directive.

9. Township of Long Beach Resolution No. 19-0805.01 supporting the lawsuit by the Ocean County Board of
Frecholders challenging the Attorney General's Immigration Trust Directive.
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10. Township of Barnegat Resolution No. 2019-274 supporting participation in the New Jersey Coastal Coalition
and its efforts to prepare Ocean County for future flood events.

11. " Township of Barnegat Resolution No. 2019-275 supporting the Ocean County Board of Chosen Frecholders
decision to challenge the Attorney General's Immigration Trust Directive.

12, Township of Brick Resolution opposing New Jersey becoming a sanctuary state and resolving that Brick
Township never becomes a sanctuary city.

13. Township of Plumsted Resolution No. 2019-236 authorizing the Township Attorney to join the lawsuit
challenging the Attorney General's Immigration Trust Directive.

14, Township of Jackson Resolution No. 286R-19 supporting the lawsuit by the Ocean County Board of Chosen
Freeholders challenging the Attorney General's Immigration Trust Directive.

15, Township of Plumsted Resolution No. 2019-227 supporting Senate Bill No. 3827 and Assembly Bill No.
5450.

16.  Township of Lacey Resolution No. 2019-223 authorizing the Township Attorney to join the lawsuit
challenging the Attorney General's Immigration Trust Directive.

17. Township of Ocean Resolution No. 2019-211 supporting participation in the New Jersey Coastal Coalition
and its efforts to prepare Ocean County for future flood events.

18. Township of Ocean Resolution No. 2019-212 supporting the lawsuit by the Ocean County Board of Chosen
Freeholders challenging the Attorney General's Immigration Trust Directive.

. MINUTES AND MEETING NOTICES

1. OC Planning Board Meeting Minutes of 7/17/2019.
2. OC Board of Health Meeting Minutes of 6/19/2019.
3. OC Board of Health Meeting Minutes of 7/17/2019.

4. OC Solid Waste Advisory Council Meeting Minutes of 1/28/2019.
APPROVALS

1. Division of Local Government Services approval of thirty (30) items of revenue.

. CORRESPONDENCE

1. Atlantic City Electric Notice(s) of Filings and Public Hearings. (2)

2. New Jersey Natural Gas Notice(s) of Filings and Public Hearings. (4)

. FREEHOLDER COMMENTS

At 4:08 PM, Frecholder Director Haines received the following comments from members of the Board:

DIRECTOR HAINES: "Now Frecholder Comments. Freeholder Little.”

FREEHOLDER LITTLE: "Thank you Director. Our new Director of Vehicle Services looks like he missed his first
meeting. I don’t see him here. But I wanted to point out that....”

DIRECTOR HAINES: "He wasn’t supposed to be here.”

FREEHOLDER LITTLE: "Yea, I know, but as we all know, Jimmy Pine retired and so you let Brian know that we
mentioned him. [s he on vacation or what?”

SCOTT WATERS, COUNTY ROAD SUPERVISOR: “It’s the Air Show, remember at the last PreBoard he said
that he wasn’t going to be here?”

FREEHOLDER LITTLE: "Oh, it’s the Air Show. You know, I can’t remember yesterday let along last week what
he told me! But, as you know, Jimmy Pine retired and we wished him Godspeed and health at our last meeting and
today we appointed our new Director of Vehicle Services, Brian McCarthy.

I just wanted to point out that he has been with the County for 11 2 years and he is also, which is very important to
me. . first of all, he has a Masters of Business Administration from Stockton (University), but he is a Lieutenant
Colonel in the Air Force Reserve. So he's been with the Air Force for 33 years and 11 months and he is a Lieutenant
Colonel. He is with the 177th Fighter Wing in Atlantic City. That’s where he's in charge of maintenance there -
plane aircraft maintenance.

He was very good friends with one of my very good friends who was the first pilot over the World Trade Center when
it was brought down on 9/11. Scott Barbary was one of the pilots at the 177th and Scott happened to be on duty and
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was entrusted with the mission to fly over the World Trade Center to see what was going on at that point in time when
it happened at, what, 8 o’clock in the morning or so? And that was 177th. They were the first military planes over
the (World) Trade Center when it was brought down. So quite an experience.

And we wish Brian all the best! Even though he didn't show up to his first meeting. Thank you Director.”
DIRECTOR HAINES: "Freeholder Vicari.”

FREEHOLDER VICARI: "No comments.”

DIRECTOR HAINES: "And Happy Anniversary!”

FREEHOLDER VICARI: "Thank you very much.”

FREEHOLDER LITTLE: "Oh yeah, Happy Anniversary!”

DIRECTOR HAINES: "Forty-cight years!”

FREEHOLDER VICARI: "What they say is I am not only the longest-serving Freeholder in our state, 'm probably
one of the longest married in the state also. Forty-eight years. And I survived because I’'m always at meetings, 'm
not home. I don’t have any apartments. But I do love my wife. Thank you very much.”

DIRECTOR HAINES: "Freecholder Kelly.”

DEPUTY DIRECTOR KELLY: "Thank you Madam Director. And congratulations again to Freeholder Vicari on
his anniversary today. I just want to point out two resolutions that we already adopted today. Resolutions H-4 which
was authorizing the sale of $39,880,000.00 in General Improvement Bonds, Series 2019. And H-5 which authorized
the sale of $3.4 million in College Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2019.

Now, we've authorized that today. The sale is scheduled for September 5th. But in order to have that sale the County
has to again be rated by our investment service providers that let investors know how good of shape they’re in to buy
these bonds. So we have two different ratings, one from Fitch and one from Moody’s.

Let me read from Moody’s first.

Ratings Rationale - “The AAA rating, again AAA, reflects the County's large, diverse tax base, modest debt and
pensions, and healthy finances. The rating also takes into account the strong rebound from Superstorm Sandy almost
seven years ago.’

Rating Outlook — “The stable outlook reflects our expectation for continued financial stability following improvement
to financial operations post-Superstorm Sandy.’

Use of Proceeds — ‘Proceeds from the bonds will be used to permanently finance various capital projects throughout
the County and County College.’

Fitch ratings:

Analytical Conclusion — “The AAA bond rating and revenue bond ratings reflect the County's exceptionally strong
gap-closing capacity which incorporate its manageable expenditure growth demands, a demonstrated ability to control
expenditures during economic downturns, and high independent legal revenue raising capacity within statutory tax
caps. The ratings also consider the County’s relatively slow natural revenue growth expectations despite a wealthy
property tax base and the County's low long-term liabilities compared to residents’ personal income.’

So that is some of the comments from the rating companies on Ocean County. We continue to maintain our AAA
bond rating — something that we’re all proud of and work very hard on. And I wanted to report that today to the
Board and to the public. Thank you Madam Director.”

FREEHOLDER VICARI: "If I may just make a comment to what Frecholder Kelly mentioned. It goes to show that
we control our finances not just now, but for many, many years. I'll tell you why. Because during Superstorm
(Sandy) which was almost seven years ago, a large percentage of our ratables were destroyed and washed out to sea,
we still kept our AAA bond rating. $20 billion worth of damage. The most ever in New Jersey. And the eye of the
storm came to not only Ocean County, it wiped out basically all of our chief ratables in the northern beach area and
Ortley Beach. Even at the same time, we lost $20 billion in ratables and what did we do? We went to the towns to
rebuild and spent $100 million of money we borrowed from ourselves so that our towns would not have to go out for
the financing, paying interest. And, of course, they paid it back when they were able to with the Federal government.

But it goes to show the strength of fiscal control — living within our caps, living within our means, and controlling the
bonding. That’s one of the things that is extremely important to them. And when they do this, it’s not Freeholder
Kelly saying this, this is what the bond agencies are saying in New York. Thank you.”

DIRECTOR HAINES: "Thank you.”
DEPUTY DIRECTOR KELLY: "Madam Director. With your approval, I am going to ask to be permitted to leave.

I have an 8-hour trip in front of me.”
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DIRECTOR HAINES: "Of course.”

DEPUTY DIRECTOR KELLY: "Thank you very much.”

FREEHOLDER LITTLE: "Before you leave Freeholder, if I may interject. We congratulated Frecholder Vicari on
his lengthy marriage which is well worth it. And today is our Administrator’s birthday as well.”

DEPUTY DIRECTOR KELLY: "And he is 48 also right?” (laughter)

FREEHOLDER VICARI: "Given the age of age discrimination, we don’t do that! Only in newspapers and on
licenses.”

Deputy Director Kelly leaves the meeting at 4:16 PM.
ADMINISTRATOR CARL BLOCK: “Director, if I could just say one quick thing.”
DIRECTOR HAINES: "Yes.”

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “Frecholder, thank you for that birthday wish. And since I have spent all my life in
the public life, I am 68 today so there is no guessing how old I am. But I draw your attention to resolution H-15,
which is actually ‘promoting and transferring the power to Brian McCarthy’. It’s effective September 1, so
technically he has not missed his first meeting yet.” (laughter)

DIRECTOR HAINES: "In two weeks.”

FREEHOLDER LITTLE: "Well, since I am his liaison, if [ say he missed the first meeting...” (laughter)
ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “I would never argue with a Frecholder!”

FREEHOLDER LITTLE: "Not on your birthday anyway!”

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “Not on my birthday. No.”

DIRECTOR HAINES: "I just want to say Happy Birthday to our Administrator, Carl Block, and many, many more
happy ones.

The only thing I want to say is, | am the liaison to Ocean County College and there are two things. One is, at the
meeting today [ was talking with Dr. Larson at the Foundation meeting this morning and there are 1132 community
colleges throughout the United States. We are in the top one hundred and we are number 63. I think it just says a lot
for the college that we have - the Frecholders, working with everyone at the college, that it is. And it is an expanding
college. I think we’re the only county college in the state that had an increase in enrollment. Most of the other
colleges as well as community colleges did not have an increase. So it’s doing very well over there.

And also, on the agenda today we did the new appointment to the Ocean County College Board of Trustees and Steve
Zabarsky happened to come in the room. I would like to congratulate you Steve on your appointment to be our Board
Trustee at Ocean County College. I know you will do an outstanding job.”

STEVE ZABARSKY: “Thank you very much.”
DIRECTOR HAINES: "Okay, next will be Public Comment.”

PUBLIC COMMENTS - "Comments from members of the audience are invited at this time with a limit of five (5)
minutes per speaker."

At 4:18 PM, Frecholder Director Haines opened the meeting to receive comments from members of the public, as
follows:

DIRECTOR HAINES: "Comments from members of the audience are invited at this time to come up and speak.
There is a limit of five minutes and would you please state your name and your address. Would anyone like to come
forward to say a few words?”

BRIAN CAMERON, LODI, NJ: “This is kind of like my hobby I guess. I’ve been around the whole state.”

FREEHOLDER VICARI: "The only thing is, if | may, we you’re your mailing address in case we have to mail you
anything about this meeting.”

DIRECTOR HAINES: "Yes, the street address.”

BRIAN CAMERON: “I know you asked me, but I don’t like putting my address on the record because, you know,
there are a lot of crazies out there.”

FREEHOLDER VICARI: "It’s up to the Director.”

BRIAN CAMERON: “No, actually I’ve done this before, I don’t have to do that. I really don't have to give you my
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name. [ just do it out of courtesy.”
DIRECTOR HAINES: "We’re not going to argue.”

BRIAN CAMERON: “I am from Lodi. I just don’t really give out my information as a privacy practice. [ don’t
give out my actual street address.

But I want to talk about the subject of immigration and the lawsuit you have right now. I am in complete support of
what you are doing. You are kind of leading the way in the state. But I feel like there are other things you can
actually do especially when it comes to these towns and the 287(g) Program. [ was actually discussing it with the
lawyer over there. I think they might want to get the word out to some of these Mayors and these Councils that you
can deputize these officers in these towns too. I just want to let you know that. It is in my opinion.

And two, I think because you do have like a County Board of Social Services right? And you have like...you
offer services to people in your community? And as far as with the drivers’ license thing, I don’t think you can’t
really even trust the drivers” licenses anymore. So you might want to go to a County .D. card and start verifying
documents yourself. I’'m just trying to give you some ideas of things that you can do.

And there are other things like that. Like, you were talking about the college and stuff like that. What verification
process do you actually have that the person when they are enrolled in the college and getting in-county tuition, what
verification do you have that they actually live in the county?”

DIRECTOR HAINES: "Well, I know they have to, if they are applying for Federal financial aid, they have a lot of
forms they have to fill out. A lot of times also there are other forms that they fill out if they are applying for other
forms of aid. A lot of them do apply for scholarships because the County College gives away $600,000.00 per year
in scholarships. And not only that, they have to list where they went to high school and then get references from their
teachers. If they are applying for a scholarship, there are a lot of different things that they require. And if they don’t
meet those requirements they don’t get it.

But, | know the Governor did put ‘x” amount of dollars aside for free tuition for those that are undocumented. So
whether or not...”

BRIAN CAMERON: “So you have to fill out an application to get into the process so can’t you just put on the
application ‘are you a US citizen?” That simple. ‘Are you a US citizen?””

DIRECTOR HAINES: "Well, they might have it on the application. [ haven’t looked at an application in a long
time.”

BRIAN CAMERON: “I’m almost positive they don’t because I've come to learn that you just can’t seal everything.”

DIRECTOR HAINES: "They do have to show 1.D. at the County College for a lot of different things, not just for
that, but for a lot of other things. They do have to show some type of an [.D. whether it’s their driver’s license or if
they don’t drive, something else. And social security cards and things like that. Especially if they are filing for
loans.”

BRIAN CAMERON: “Okay. And there are things you can do with the schools t00.”
DIRECTOR HAINES: "That you have to take up with the school boards.”
BRIAN CAMERON: I know each local school board.”

DIRECTOR HAINES: "Right, each local school board and, of course, the County College has a Board of Trustees
as you know, we have them here (on the agenda). And, of course, Freeholder Vicari had been a Superintendent of
Schools in Berkeley (Township) at one time so he’s very well versed in what the schools can do with regards to asking
for I.D. But, you see, there are a lot of things that we’re not allowed to do even though we may believe that certain
things should be done. There’s a lot of things where our hands are tied and we can’t do.”

FREEHOLDER VICARI: "And I will give you an answer that you are not going to like. If anyone goes to a school,
a public school system and asks that question — you must take them in. The other thing that | know and I just want to
ace it. I’'m doing the Census for 2020. As you know, they cannot ask you on that Census (form) if you are a citizen
of the United States. And I want to conclude that you should be able to check off if you are a citizen or not so it helps
us in the future and it helps people taking the Census to know who is a citizen and who is not a citizen.”

BRIAN CAMERON: “I understand that, but we’re not trying to do I.C.E.’s job. There’s only certain things we do,
but the main thing .C.E. is looking for is information. They just need to know where these people are at. You know
what I’'m talking about? So any information that you can collect and pass on to them will be extremely beneficial.
Because like you said, even if they’re illegal or not you still have to let them into the public school. That’s why itis a
Supreme Court case. It doesn't mean that a teacher or someone can’t ask and if they find out information they can’t
pass it on to .C.E. is what I’m talking about. This is really like an information war and the more information you
can collect on these people and pass on these people, I'm telling you, it will be extremely beneficial.

And the main thing I’m talking about and it is in my opinion that it has to go through the courts and the courts have to
test it out. But if you can teach police departments and volunteers, their own officers, to be in the 287(g) program
themselves, but it’s up to each individual town. And if you work together, you can kind of expedite the process.”
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DIRECTOR HAINES: "Well, that’s something possibly the President of the Chiefs of Police Association might want
to talk about at his meeting because we have a County Chiefs of Police Association as well as a State Chiefs of Police
Association. So there are others. So it’s very possible that they may be discussing that. I don’t know because that’s
not in our purview.”

BRIAN CAMERON: “T understand. I’'m just passing around ideas. And I know that you talk to other people and
other people talk to other people and the other people talk to and on and on.”

DIRECTOR HAINES: "I certainly understand.”

BRIAN CAMERON: “So if you guys would just look into this and have your attorney look into some of these
things, maybe they could help out. Thank you very much.”

DIRECTOR HAINES: "Thank you very much for your comments. Would anybody else like to come forward? Yes,
come forward with, as you know, your name and address.”

GERALDINE LUCAS, 20 ALLAIRE DRIVE, HOLIDAY CITY, SILVERTON: “Okay, I came up with a great
idea where you can put the jail. At Ciba Geigy. There is plenty of land over there and it’s in concealment where
nobody has to look at it, you know, because I think it’s in a terrible place where you have it here. If you’re trying to
attract the public to the town, it’s really distracting.”

DIRECTOR HAINES: "I understand, but I think this jail has always been in downtown Toms River.”
GERALDINE LUCAS: “I'm sorry?”

DIRECTOR HAINES: "I think the jail has been in downtown Toms River probably for over a hundred and some
years.”

GERALDINE LUCAS: “That doesn’t mean anything. It’s just that if you are trying to attract new people to the
town, you want to make it attractive. And I think that’s important.

There was something else [ wanted to say and I can’t remember what it is right now. But anyway...”
DIRECTOR HAINES: "Well if you remember in two weeks when we have our next public meeting or ...”

GERALDINE LUCAS: “Okay, sure. And Mr. Vicari, my father had a trained shepherd from Jersey City. I have
the article. I wanted you to see it.”

FREEHOLDER VICARI: "I’ll see it before you leave.”

GERALDINE LUCAS: “He had a German shepherd and he used to perform in Bellevue Hospital for the children
during Christmas and he used to go to the naval base in Bayonne and entertain.”

FREEHOLDER VICARI: "I know it very well.”
GERALDINE LUCAS: “Okay, before I go. Bye.”
FREEHOLDER VICARI: "Okay, take your time, I will see you before you leave. Thank you.”

DIRECTOR HAINES: "Would anyone else like to come forward? No? Can we have a motion to adjourn?”

. ADJOURNMENT

There being no additional comments received, Freecholder Director Haines called for a motion to adjourn the meeting
at 4:26 PM.

ROLL CALL: (Offered by Freeholder Vicari, seconded by Freeholder Little)
Ayes: Mr. Little, Mr. Vicari, Ms. Haines
Nays: None

Absent: Mr. Quinn, Mr. Kelly (left at 4:16 pm)

Respectfully submitted,

Mary Ann Cilento
Clerk of the Board
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Ocean County Board of Chosen freeholders

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY FREEHOLDERS

Freeholder Director Virginia E. Haines
Deputy Director John P. Kelly
Freeholder Gerry P. Little
Freeholder Gary Quinn
Freeholder Joseph H. Vicari
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Agenda: Accepting the recommendation of the OC Natural Lands Tr

101 Hooper Ave
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: 732-929-2005
Fax: 732-505-1918

August 21, 2019 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

ust Fund Advisory Committee and the

Ocean County Agriculture Development Board to participate in the fee-simple acquisition of property identified
as Block 390, Lot 11, totaling approximately 9.77 acres, located on New Hampshire Avenue in Toms River

Township, in a total amount not to exceed $1,025,850.00 plus up to

$2,750.00 for property tax adjustments.
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RESOLUTION
August 21, 2019

WHEREAS, the voters of Ocean County authorized the Ocean County Natural
Lands Trust Fund to provide funds for the acquisition and preservation of natural lands,
open spaces and farmland; and

WHEREAS, the Ocean County Agriculture Development Board provides
recommendations for farmland preservation; and

WHEREAS, the Ocean County Agriculture Development Board has identified the
property known as Block 390, lot 11 totaling approximately 9.77 acres located on New
Hampshire Avenue in Toms River Township as target farm within its Comprehensive
Farmland Management Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee
also reviews farmland acquisitions and supports this recommendation; and

WHEREAS, two professional appraisals have been completed to establish the fair
market value of the property; and

WHEREAS, the County of Ocean would acquire the property for an amount not
to exceed $1,025,850 of equivalent land value of the property; and

WHEREAS, the State Agriculture Development Committee may reimburse the
County of Ocean for part of a development easement value; and

WHEREAS, upon acquisition the County would deed restrict the property to be
preserved as a farm in perpetuity and then auction the preserved farm at a later date; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the proposed acquisition was conducted by the
Board of Chosen Freeholders on August 21, 2019 as required by PL 1997, c24.

NOVW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF CHOSEN
FREEHOLDERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY as

follows:
1. It accepts the recommendation of the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust
Fund Advisory Committee and the Ocean County Agriculture
Development Board to participate in the fee-simple acquisition of the
property identified as Block 390, Lot 11 in Toms River Township.
2. It authorizes the acquisition price not to exceed $1,025,850 plus up to

$2,750 for property tax adjustments as necessary from the Ocean County
Natural Lands Trust Fund, Account Number 225-155-0151.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT

1. The proper officers of the Board are authorized and directed to sign all
necessary documents in order to effectuate these purchases.

2. The offices of Ocean County Counsel and County Administrative staff are
hereby authorized to take all actions necessary to consummate this
transaction and have the fully executed Deeds or Easements recorded in
the County Clerk's Office.

3. The Board is authorized to pursue any and all grants available for this
purchase and execute the applicable grant agreements.

August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019
ion#: 2019001128
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RESOLUTION: August 21, 2019

4. The Township of Toms River has supported this acquisition by resolution
at their July 23, 2019 meeting.

5. Copies of this Resolution shall be made available to the County
Administrator; County Planning Director; County Finance Director;
County Auditor; County Counsel, County Natural Lands Trust Fund
Advisory Committee; County Agriculture Development Board; and the
Township of Toms River.

August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019
tion#: 2019001128
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Ocean County Board of Chosen freeholders

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Ave

OCEAN COUNTY FREEHOLDERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Freeholdt-ar Director Virginia E. Haines 08754-2191
Deputy Director John P. Kelly Tel: 732-929-2005
Freeholder Gerry P. Little Fax: 732-505-1918
Freeholder Gary Quinn

Freeholder Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda

Date: August 21, 2019 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Accepting the recommendation of the OC Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee to
participate in the acquisition of property identified as Block 1072, Lot 15, totaling approximately 0.50
acres, located on Point Pleasant Avenue in the Township of Berkeley, in a total amount not to exceed
$12,000.00 plus up to $785.00 for property tax adjustments.

Official Resolution# [2019001129

Meeting Date 08/21/2019

Introduced Date 08/21/2019

Adopted Date 08/21/2019

Agenda ltem e-2
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Purchase Req. #
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Introduced on
Adopted on:

Res-Pg:e.2-2

RESOLUTION
August 21, 2019

WHEREAS, the voters of Ocean County authorized the Ocean County Natural Lands
Trust Fund to provide funds for the acquisition and preservation of natural lands, open spaces
and farmland; and

WHEREAS, the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee was
established by the Board of Chosen Freeholders to review nominations to the program and
forward recommendations for acquisition to the Board of Chosen Freeholders; and

WHEREAS, the Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee has received a
nomination for the property identified as Block 1072 Lot 15 in the Township of Berkeley totaling
approximately 0.50 acres located on Point Pleasant Avenue; and

WHEREAS, the subject property is located along the Jeffries Creek and is adjacent to
approximately six acres of Natural Lands Trust Fund property; and

WHEREAS, one professional appraiser was authorized to determine the fair market
value; and

WHERFEAS, the Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee has determined the
property’s attributes are consistent with the Ocean County Open Space Plan and Recreation
Inventory; and

WHEREAS, the County of Ocean would acquire the property for a purchase price not to
exceed $12,000 of equivalent land value; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the proposed acquisition was conducted by the Board
of Chosen Freeholders on August 7, 2019 as required by PL 1997, c24.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF CHOSEN
FREEHOLDERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY as follows:

1. It accepts the recommendation of the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory
Committee acquire property identified as Block 1072 Lot 15 in the Township of Berkeley
totaling approximately 0.50 acres located on Point Pleasant Avenue.

2. It authorizes the expenditure for an acquisition price not to exceed $12,000 plus up to
$785 for property tax adjustments as necessary from the Ocean County Natural Lands
Trust Fund, Account Number 225-155-0151.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT

1. The proper officers of the Board are authorized and directed to sign all necessary
documents in order to effectuate these purchases.

2. The purchase of the property is to be contingent upon the County’s acquisition by
purchase, deed or gift of the necessary rights-of-way along any County roads bordering
the property as determined by the County Engineer.

4. The offices of Ocean County Counsel and County Administrative staff are hereby
authorized to take all actions necessary to consummate this transaction and have the fully
executed Deeds or Easements recorded in the County Clerk's Office.

August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019

Official Resolﬁnﬂon#: 2019001129




Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resoly;

i

Res-Pg:e.2-3

RESOLUTION: August 7, 2019

5. The Township of Berkeley has supported acquisition of this property by resolution
#2019-298-R

6. Copies of this Resolution shall be made available to the County Administrator; County
Planning Director; County Finance Director; County Auditor; County Counsel; County
Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee; the Township of Berkeley; and the
landowner.

August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019
on#: 2019001129




Res-Pg:f-1

Ocean County Board of Chosen freeholders

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Ave

OCEAN COUNTY FREEHOLDERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Freeholdt-ar Director Virginia E. Haines 08754-2191
Deputy Director John P. Kelly Tel: 732-929-2005
Freeholder Gerry P. Little Fax: 732-505-1918

Freeholder Gary Quinn

Freeholder Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda

Date: August 21, 2019 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF BILLS IN BILL COMMITTEE REPORT NO. 16.

Official Resolution# [2019001116

Meeting Date 08/21/2019

Introduced Date 08/21/2019

Adopted Date 08/21/2019

Agenda ltem f

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted

FREEHOLDER g}i o @ o lwls 5
FR2g= 22

Haines v v

Kelly v v v

Little v v

Quinn v

Vicari v v |v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

WAL Lendo

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:f-2

BILL COMMITTEE REPORT
COUNTY OF OCEAN
SUMMARY OF VOUCHERS

SUMMARY OF BILLS CERTIFICATE# 16

MASTER VOUCHER-CERTIFICATE FOR CERTIFICATION OF PAYMENT

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
HAVE EXAMINED THE VOUCHERS SUBMITTED HERE WITHIN FOR THE PURPOSE
OF RECOMMENDING TO THE OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS
PAYMENT THEREOF ON 08/21/2019.

I, HEREBY CERTIFY THESE VOUCHERS, IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $24,010,799.72
WHICH ARE CONTAINED IN THE ATTACHED REPORT, TO BE VALID CLAIMS, AND I
RECOMMEND APPROVAL AND PAYMENT THEREOF.

APPROVED
JOHN P. KELLY
DEPUTY DIRECTOR
GERRY P. LITTLE VIRGINIA E. HAINES
FREEHOLDER FREEHOLDER DIRECTOR
JOSEPH H. VICARI ORDERED PAID
FREEHOLDER
GARY QUINN MARY ANN CILENTO
FREEHOLDER CLERK OF THE BOARD

OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS

Introduced on: August 21, 2019
Adopted on: August 21, 2019
Official Resolution#: 2019001116



Res-Pg:f-3

RESOLUTION

AUGUST 21, 2019

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF CHOSEN
FREEHOLDERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, THAT THE DIRECTOR IS
HEREBY AUTHORIZED AND INSTRUCTED TO EXECUTE MASTER
VOUCHER-CERTIFICATE #16 FOR CERTIFICATION OF SAID MASTER VOUCHER
CONSISTING OF 99 PAGES WITH VOUCHERS TOTALING IN THE AMOUNT

OF $24,010,799.72 WHICH ARE DEEMED TO BE VALID CLAIMS AS

RECOMMENDED BY THE DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THE COMPTROLLER OF THE COUNTY

OF OCEAN IS HEREBY AUTHORIZED AND DIRECTED TO PAY EACH AND EVERY
ONE OF THE AFORESAID BILLS ATTACHED TO THIS

MASTER VOUCHER-CERTIFICATE AND, UPON EXECUTION OF SAME BY SAID

DIRECTOR, IF AND WHEN FUNDS ARE AVAILABLE.

Introduced on: August 21, 2019
Adopted on: August 21, 2019
Official Resolution#: 2019001116



Res-Pg:g.1-1

Ocean County Board of Chosen freeholders

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY FREEHOLDERS

Freeholder Director Virginia E. Haines
Deputy Director John P. Kelly
Freeholder Gerry P. Little
Freeholder Gary Quinn
Freeholder Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date:

Location:

Agenda: MIDLANTIC CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Replacement of Mids

101 Hooper Ave
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: 732-929-2005
Fax: 732-505-1918

August 21, 2019 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

treams Bridge (Structure No. 1506-007),

Midstreams Road over Beaver Dam Creek, Brick Township - Final Estimate #18, $449,292.52. (B2017-115E)

Official Resolution# [2019001118

Meeting Date 08/21/2019

Introduced Date 08/21/2019

Adopted Date 08/21/2019

Agenda ltem g-1

CAF #

Purchase Req. # B2017-115E

Result Adopted

FREEHOLDER g}i Y- o lw |- g;
FR2g= 22

Haines v v

Kelly v v v

Little v v

Quinn v

Vicari v v |v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS

RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF CHOSE
REFERENCED THEREON

N FREEHOLDERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

WAL Lesdo

Clerk Of The Board



Introduced onj
Adopted on:
Official Resolu

t

Res-Pg:g.1-2

CONTRACT NO. B2017-115E

R E 8§ 0L U T I O N

August 21, 2019

WHEREA AS, the BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS of the COUNTY
OF OCEAN entered into an agreement September 6, 2017 with the

Contractor, Midlantic Construction, LLC for work and services in

relation to the Replacement of Midstreams Bridge (Structure No.
1506-007), Midstreams Road Over Beaver Dam Creek, Brick Township,
and

Ocean County, New Jersey;

WHEREAS, the contract for the said project was let in
the name of the County of Ocean and the work was done pursuant to
said contract carried out under the direction and supervision of
the County Engineer; and

WHEREA S, the County Engineer of the County of Ocean
has duly certified to this Board that the work covered by said
contract up to and including the extent shown on Final Estimate
No. 18 dated August 21, 2019 was finished in all respects in
compliance with the plans and specifications, order and direction
and other details, all in conformity with the said contract; and

WHEZREAS, the Final Estimate No. 18 shows:

Total Cost of Construction: $5,375,123.73

Total Partial Payments Made to Date:

Less 2% of Total: $0.00
Subtotal: $5,375,123.73
Less Partial Estimate #1: $375,070.32
Less Partial Estimate #2: $939,716.41
Less Partial Estimate #3: $656,671.87
Less Partial Estimate #4: $199,605.99
Less Partial Estimate #5: $418,284.99
Less Partial Estimate #6: $206,124.49
Less Partial Estimate #7: $ 71,222.97
Less Partial Estimate #8: $ 75,822.60
Less Partial Estimate #9: $184,519.01
Less Partial Estimate #10: $124,499.20
Less Partial Estimate #11: $617,204.69
Less Partial Estimate #12: $340,586.45
Less Partial Estimate #13: $197,772.82
Less Partial Estimate #14: $ 73,713.05
Less Partial Estimate #15: $174,040.74
Less Partial Estimate #16: $ 23,392.14
Less Partial Estimate #17: $247,583.47

$4,925,831.21

AMQiNdt 2NetWe DUE CONTRACTOR:
August 21, 2019
on#: 2019001118

$449,292.52




Introduced on:

Adopted on:
Official Resol

L

Res-Pg:g.1-3

CONTRACT NO. B2017-115E PAGE 2 August 21, 2019

WHEREA A S, the said Contractor has filed a sworn claim
with the Board in which it is declared that the amount due the
Contractor as stated above is true, fair, just and correct.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF CHOSEN
FREEHOLDERS of the COUNTY OF OCEAN, in the STATE OF NEW JERSEY,
that:

1. The furnished work under this contract, to the extent
covered by this resolution, be and the same is hereby accepted by
the Board of Chosen Freeholders of the County of Ocean.

2. The Department of Finance is hereby authorized and
directed to pay said Contractor the amount of Four hundred forty
nine thousand two hundred ninety two and 52/100 dollars
($449,292.52) which is the amount herein before shown to be
presently due to said Contractor, in accordance with the

certification thereof by the County Engineer to this Board.

August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019

kion#: 2019001118




Res-Pg:g.2-1

Ocean County Board of Chosen freeholders

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Ave

OCEAN COUNTY FREEHOLDERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Freeholdt-ar Director Virginia E. Haines 08754-2191
Deputy Director John P. Kelly Tel: 732-929-2005
Freeholder Gerry P. Little Fax: 732-505-1918

Freeholder Gary Quinn

Freeholder Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda

Date: August 21, 2019 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: KARKA CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Reconstruction of the Ridge Avenue and New Hampshire Avenue
Signalized Intersection, Lakewood Township, No. Il - Partial Estimate #4, $109,885.43. (B2018-155E)

Official Resolution# [2019001119

Meeting Date 08/21/2019

Introduced Date 08/21/2019

Adopted Date 08/21/2019

Agenda ltem g-2

CAF #

Purchase Req. # B2018-155E

Result Adopted

FREEHOLDER g}i o @ o lwls 5
FR2g= 22

Haines v v

Kelly v v v

Little v v

Quinn v

Vicari v v |v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

WAL Lesndo

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:g.2-2

CONTRACT NO. B2018-155E

R E S 0O L U T I O N

August 21, 2019

WHEREAS, the BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS of the COUNTY
OF OCEAN entered into an agreement November 20, 2018 with the
Contractor, Karka Construction, Inc. for work and services in
relation to the Reconstruction of the Ridge Avenue and New
Hampshire Avenue Signalized Intersection, Lakewood Township, No.
II, Ocean County, New Jersey; and

WHEREAS, the contract for the said project was let in
the name of the County of Ocean and the work was done pursuant to
said contract carried out under the direction and supervision of
the County Engineer; and

WHEREA S, the County Engineer of the County of Ocean
has duly certified to this Board that the work covered by said
contract up to and including the extent shown on Partial Estimate
No. 4 dated August 21, 2019 was finished in all respects in
compliance with the plans and specifications, order and direction
and other details, all in conformity with the said contract; and

WHEREA AS, the Partial Estimate No. 4 shows:

Total Cost of Construction: $875,332.49
Less 2% of Total: $17,506.65
Subtotal: $857,825.84

Less Partial Estimate #1: $145,827.43
Less Partial Estimate #2: $439,918.42
Less Partial Estimate #3: $162,194.56

Total Partial Payments Made to Date: $747,940.41
AMOUNT NOW DUE CONTRACTOR: $109,885.43
Introduced on: August 21, 2019
Adopted on: August 21, 2019

Official Resolutipn#: 2019001119




Introduced on;
Adopted on:
Official Resoly|

t

Res-Pg:g.2-3

CONTRACT NO. B2018-155E PAGE 2 August 21, 2019

WHEREA A S, the said Contractor has filed a sworn claim
with the Board in which it is declared that the amount due the
Contractor as stated above is true, fair, just and correct.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF CHOSEN
FREEHOLDERS of the COUNTY OF OCEAN, in the STATE OF NEW JERSEY,
that:

1. The furnished work under this contract, to the extent
covered by this resolution, be and the same is hereby accepted by
the Board of Chosen Freeholders of the County of Ocean.

2. The Department of Finance 1is hereby authorized and
directed to pay said Contractor the amount of One hundred nine
thousand eight hundred eighty five and 43/100 dollars ($109,885.43)
which is the amount herein before shown to be presently due to said
Contractor, in accordance with the certification thereof by the

County Engineer to this Board.

August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019
on#: 2019001119




Res-Pg:g.3-1

Ocean County Board of Chosen freeholders

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY FREEHOLDERS

Freeholder Director Virginia E. Haines

Deputy Director John P. Kelly

101 Hooper Ave
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191
Tel: 732-929-2005

Freeholder Gerry P. Little Fax: 732-505-1918

Freeholder Gary Quinn

Freeholder Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date:
Location:

August 21, 2019 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: EDWARD H. CRAY, INC. - Construction of Long Beach Boulevard Traffic Signal Upgrades Phase B,
Group 1, Long Beach Boulevard, Long Beach Township - Partial Estimate #5, $84,729.38. (B2018-29E)

Official Resolution# [2019001120

Meeting Date 08/21/2019

Introduced Date 08/21/2019

Adopted Date 08/21/2019

Agenda ltem g-3

CAF #

Purchase Req. # B2018-29E

Result Adopted

FREEHOLDER g}i Y- o lw |- g;
FR2g= 22

Haines v v

Kelly v v v

Little v v

Quinn v

Vicari v v |v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

WAL Lewndo

Clerk Of The Board



Introduced on]:

Adopted on:
Official Resol

i

Res-Pg:g.3-2

CONTRACT NO. B2018-29E

R E § 0O L U T I O N

August 21, 2019

WHEREAS, the BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS of the COUNTY
OF OCEAN entered into an agreement March 7, 2018 with the
Contractor, Edward H. Cray, Inc. for work and services in
relation to the Construction of Long Beach Boulevard Traffic
Signal Upgrades Phase B, Group 1, Long Beach Boulevard, Long
Beach Township, Ocean County, New Jersey; and

WHEREA AS, the contract for the said project was let in
the name of the County of Ocean and the work was done pursuant to
said contract carried out under the direction and supervision of
the County Engineer; and

WHETREA S, the County Engineer of the County of Ocean
has duly certified to this Board that the work covered by said
contract up to and including the extent shown on Partial Estimate
No. 5 dated August 21, 2019 was finished in all respects in
compliance with the plans and specifications, order and direction
and other details, all in conformity with the said contract; and

WHEZREAS, the Partial Estimate No. 5 shows:

Total Cost of Construction: $566,503.21
Less 2% of Total: $11,330.06
Subtotal: $555,173.15

Less Partial Estimate #1: $129,774.01
Less Partial Estimate #2: $ 38,347.89
Less Partial Estimate #3: $ 80,116.67
Less Partial Estimate #4: $222,205.20

Total Partial Payments Made to Date: $470,443.77

AMOUNT NOW DUE CONTRACTOR: $84,729.38

August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019
ion#: 2019001120




Introduced on
Adopted on:

Res-Pg:g.3-3

CONTRACT NO. B2018-29E PAGE 2 August 21, 2019

WHEREA AS, the said Contractor has filed a sworn claim
with the Board in which it is declared that the amount due the
Contractor as stated above is true, fair, just and correct.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF CHOSEN
FREEHOLDERS of the COUNTY OF OCEAN, in the STATE OF NEW JERSEY,
that:

1. The furnished work under this contract, to the extent
covered by this resolution, be and the same is hereby accepted by
the Board of Chosen Freeholders of the County of Ocean.

2. The Department of Finance is hereby authorized and
directed to pay said Contractor the amount of Eighty four thousand
seven hundred twenty nine and 38/100 dollars ($84,729.38) which is
the amount herein before shown to be presently due to said
Contractor, in accordance with the certification thereof by the

County Engineer to this Board.

August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019

Official Resolytion#: 2019001120




Res-Pg:g.4-1

Ocean County Board of Chosen freeholders

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Ave
OCEAN COUNTY FREEHOLDERS

Toms River, New Jersey
Freeholder Director Virginia E. Haines 08754-2191
Deputy Director John P. Kelly Tel: 732-929-2005
Freeholder Gerry P. Little Fax: 732-505-1918
Freeholder Gary Quinn

Freeholder Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda

Date: August 21, 2019 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: EDWARD H. CRAY, INC. - Construction of Long Beach Boulevard Traffic Signal Upgrades Phase B,
Group 2, Long Beach Boulevard, Long Beach Township - Partial Estimate #4, $172,073.30. (B2018-30E)

Official Resolution# (2019001121

Meeting Date 08/21/2019

Introduced Date 08/21/2019

Adopted Date 08/21/2019

Agenda ltem g-4

CAF #

Purchase Req. # B2018-30E

Result Adopted

FREEHOLDER g}i o @ o lwls 5
FR2g= 22

Haines v v

Kelly v v v

Little v v

Quinn v

Vicari v v |v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

WAL Lesndo

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:g.4-2

CONTRACT NO. B2018-30E

R E 8§ 0 L U T I O N

August 21, 2019

WHEREAS, the BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS of the COUNTY
OF OCEAN entered into an agreement March 7, 2018 with the
Contractor, Edward H. Cray, Inc. for work and services in
relation to the Construction of Long Beach Boulevard Traffic
Signal Upgrades Phase B, Group 2, Long Beach Boulevard, Long
Beach Township, Ocean County, New Jersey; and

WHEREA S, the contract for the said project was let in
the name of the County of Ocean and the work was done pursuant to
said contract carried out under the direction and supervision of
the County Engineer; and

WHEREA A S, the County Engineer of the County of Ocean
has duly certified to this Board that the work covered by said
contract up to and including the extent shown on Partial Estimate
No. 4 dated August 21, 2019 was finished in all respects in
compliance with the plans and specifications, order and direction
and other details, all in conformity with the said contract; and

WHEZREAS, the Partial Estimate No. 4 shows:

Total Cost of Construction: $414,187.30
Less 2% of Total: $8,283.75
Subtotal: $405,903.55

Less Partial Estimate #1: $ 43,737.40
Less Partial Estimate #2: $152,475.55
Less Partial Estimate #3: $ 37,617.30

Total Partial Payments Made to Date: $233,830.25
AMOUNT NOW DUE CONTRACTOR: $172,073.30
Introduced on August 21, 2019
Adopted on: August 21, 2019

Official Resolutlon#: 2019001121




Introduced ony:
Adopted on:
Official Resoly

Res-Pg:g.4-3

CONTRACT NO. B2018-30E PAGE 2 August 21, 2019

WVH E RE A S, the said Contractor has filed a sworn claim
with the Board in which it is declared that the amount due the
Contractor as stated above is true, fair, just and correct.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF CHOSEN
FREEHOLDERS of the COUNTY OF OCEAN, in the STATE OF NEW JERSEY,
that:

1. The furnished work under this contract, to the extent
covered by this resolution, be and the same is hereby accepted by
the Board of Chosen Freeholders of the County of Ocean.

2. The Department of Finance 1is hereby authorized and
directed to pay said Contractor the amount of One hundred seventy
two thousand seventy three and 30/100 dollars ($172,073.30) which
is the amount herein before shown to be presently due to said
Contractor, in accordance with the certification thereof by the

County Engineer to this Board.

August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019

ion#: 2019001121




Res-Pg:g.5-1

Ocean County Board of Chosen freeholders

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Ave

OCEAN COUNTY FREEHOLDERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Freeholdt-ar Director Virginia E. Haines 08754-2191
Deputy Director John P. Kelly Tel: 732-929-2005
Freeholder Gerry P. Little Fax: 732-505-1918

Freeholder Gary Quinn

Freeholder Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda

Date: August 21, 2019 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: C.J. HESSE, INC. - County Site Improvements at Southern Services and Chestnut Street Facilities,
Townships of Stafford and Toms River - Partial Estimate #2, $52,977.81. (B2018-140E)

Official Resolution# [2019001122

Meeting Date 08/21/2019

Introduced Date 08/21/2019

Adopted Date 08/21/2019

Agenda ltem g-5

CAF #

Purchase Req. # B2018-140E

Result Adopted

FREEHOLDER g}i o @ o lwls 5
FR2g= 22

Haines v v

Kelly v v v

Little v v

Quinn v

Vicari v v |v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

WAL Lesndo

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:g.5-2

CONTRACT NO. B2018-140E

R E § 0L U T I O N

August 21, 2019

WHEREA AS, the BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS of the COUNTY
OF OCEAN entered into an agreement November 7, 2018 with the
Contractor, C.J. Hesse, Inc. for work and services in relation to
the County Site Improvements at Southern Services and Chestnut
Street Facilities, Townships of Stafford and Toms River, Ocean
County, New Jersey; and

WHEREAS, the contract for the said project was let in
the name of the County of Ocean and the work was done pursuant to
said contract carried out under the direction and supervision of
the County Engineer; and

WHETREA A S, the County Engineer of the County of Ocean
has duly certified to this Board that the work covered by said
contract up to and including the extent shown on Partial Estimate
No. 2 dated August 21, 2019 was finished in all respects in
compliance with the plans and specifications, order and direction
and other details, all in conformity with the said contract; and

WHEREAS, the Partial Estimate No. 2 shows:

Total Cost of Construction: $396,933.52
Less 2% of Total: $7,938.67
Subtotal: $388,994.85

Less Partial Estimate #1: $336,017.04

AMOUNT NOW DUE CONTRACTOR: $52,977.81
Introduced on August 21, 2019
Adopted on: August 21, 2019

Official Resolytion#: 2019001122




Introduced on]]
Adopted on:
Official Resoly

t

Res-Pg:g.5-3

CONTRACT NO. B2018-140E PAGE 2 August 21, 2019

WHERTEA AS, the said Contractor has filed a sworn claim
with the Board in which it is declared that the amount due the
Contractor as stated above is true, fair, just and correct.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF CHOSEN
FREEHOLDERS of the COUNTY OF OCEAN, in the STATE OF NEW JERSEY,
that:

1. The furnished work under this contract, to the extent
covered by this resolution, be and the same is hereby accepted by
the Board of Chosen Freeholders of the County of Ocean.

2. The Department of Finance 1is hereby authorized and
directed to pay said Contractor the amount of Fifty two thousand
nine hundred seventy seven and 81/100 dollars ($52,977.81) which is
the amount herein before shown to be presently due to said
Contractor, in accordance with the certification thereof by the

County Engineer to this Board.

August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019

on#: 2019001122




Res-Pg:g.6-1

Ocean County Board of Chosen freeholders

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Ave
OCEAN COUNTY FREEHOLDERS

Toms River, New Jersey
Freeholder Director Virginia E. Haines 08754-2191
Deputy Director John P. Kelly Tel: 732-929-2005
Freeholder Gerry P. Little Fax: 732-505-1918
Freeholder Gary Quinn

Freeholder Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda

Date: August 21, 2019 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: EARLE ASPHALT COMPANY - Reconstruction and Resurfacing of Portions of Certain County
Roads, Contract 2019A - Partial Estimate #2, $305,459.02. (B2019-43E)

Official Resolution# [2019001123

Meeting Date 08/21/2019

Introduced Date 08/21/2019

Adopted Date 08/21/2019

Agenda ltem g-6

CAF #

Purchase Req. # B2019-43E

Result Adopted
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Res-Pg:g.6-2
CONTRACT NO. B2019-43E

R E s 0L U T I O N

August 21, 2019

WHEREAS, the BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS of the COUNTY
OF OCEAN entered into an agreement March 20, 2019 with the
Contractor, Earle Asphalt Company for work and services 1in
relation to the Reconstruction and Resurfacing of Portions of
Certain County Roads, Contract 2019A, Ocean County, New Jersey:
and

WHEREAS, the contract for the said project was let in
the name of the County of Ocean and the work was done pursuant to
said contract carried out under the direction and supervision of
the County Engineer; and

WHEREA S, the County Engineer of the County of Ocean
has duly certified to this Board that the work covered by said
contract up to and including the extent shown on Partial Estimate
No. 2 dated August 21, 2019 was finished in all respects in
compliance with the plans and specifications, order and direction
and other details, all in conformity with the said contract; and

WHEZREAS, the Partial Estimate No. 2 shows:

Total Cost of Construction: $446,336.33
Less 2% of Total: $8,926.73
Subtotal: $437,409.60

Less Partial Estimate #1: $131,950.58

AMOUNT NOW DUE CONTRACTOR: $305,459.02

August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019

tion#: 2019001123
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CONTRACT NO. B2019-43E PAGE 2 August 21, 2019

WHEREA A S, the said Contractor has filed a sworn claim
with the Board in which it 1is declared that the amount due the
Contractor as stated above is true, fair, just and correct.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF CHOSEN
FREEHOLDERS of the COUNTY OF OCEAN, in the STATE OF NEW JERSEY,
that:

1. The furnished work under this contract, to the extent
covered by this resolution, be and the same is hereby accepted by
the Board of Chosen Freeholders of the County of Ocean.

2. The Department of Finance is hereby authorized and
directed to pay said Contractor the amount of Three hundred five
thousand four hundred fifty nine and 02/100 dollars ($305,459.02)
which is the amount herein before shown to be presently due to said
Contractor, in accordance with the certification thereof by the

County Engineer to this Board.

August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019

ton#: 2019001123
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Ocean County Board of Chosen freeholders

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY FREEHOLDERS

Freeholder Director Virginia E. Haines
Deputy Director John P. Kelly
Freeholder Gerry P. Little
Freeholder Gary Quinn
Freeholder Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date:

Location:

Agenda: Authorizing the Personnel Resolution.

101 Hooper Ave
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: 732-929-2005
Fax: 732-505-1918

August 21, 2019 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Official Resolution# [2019001176

Meeting Date 08/21/2019

Introduced Date 08/21/2019

Adopted Date 08/21/2019

Agenda ltem h-1

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
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Res-Pg:h.1-2
RESOLUTION

August 21, 2019

BE IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS of the
COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY that:

1. Nefertiti G. Hoey is hereby given a regular appointment to the position of]
Keyboarding Clerk 2, Consumer Affairs, subject to a working test period, effective August 22, 2019,
at an annual base salary of $35,577.

2. Filamer C. Carzon is hereby given a provisional appointment to the position
of Senior Garage Attendant, Department of Transportation Services, pending Civil Service
examination, effective August 22, 2019, at an annual base salary of $36,350.

The following employees (3 through 4), are hereby given a regular
appointment to the position of Mechanic, Department of Vehicle Services, subject to a working test
period, effective September 3, 2019, at their present salaries:

3. Edgardo Padilla
4, James Scarafile

5. Regina A. Miles is hereby given a regular appointment to the position of]
Keyboarding Clerk 2, Department of Vehicle Services, subject to a working test period, effective
August 1, 2019, at her present salary.

The following employees (6 through 8), are hereby given a provisional
appointment to the position of Tree Maintenance Worker 2, Parks Department, pending Civil
Service examination, effective August 22, 2019:

NAME SALARY
6. Paul M. LaRosa $38,725.
7. Justin T. Palmer $39,775.
8. Joseph B. Teja $38,725.
9. Eileen T. Sakevich is hereby given a provisional appointment to the position

of Principal Account Clerk, Office of Senior Services, pending Civil Service examination, effective
August 22, 2019, at an annual base salary of $47,853.

10.  Benjamin N. Brower, Geographic Information Specialist Trainee, Office of]
Information Technology, is hereby given a regular appointment to the position of Geographic
Information Systems Specialist 3, subject to a working test period, effective August 27, 2019, at an
annual base salary of $51,000.

11.  John P. Monsolino is hereby given a provisional appointment to the position
of Senior Plumber, Parks Department, pending Civil Service examination, effective August 22,
2019, at an annual base salary of $41,675.

12.  Lisa M. Guckin, Principal Drafting Technician, Engineering Department,
hours (32.5 to 40), and annual base salary are hereby changed to $57,069, effectlve September 5,
2019.

The following employees (13 through 14), are hereby given a provisional
appointment to the position of Equipment Operator, Parks Department, pending Civil Service
examination, effective August 22, 2019:

NAME SALARY
13. Marcin Koc $39,775.
14.  Michael J. Pitta $38,725.

August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019
on#: 2019001176
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Resolution August 21, 2019 page two

15.  Stacey R. Santonastasso is hereby given a provisional appointment to the
position of Keyboarding Clerk 3, Office of Senior Services, pending Civil Service examination,
effective August 22, 2019, at an annual base salary of $42,712.

16. At the request of the Sheriff, Rachel A. Woardell is hereby granted an
Extension of Leave of Absence Without Pay pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act from
her position of Sheriff’s Officer, Sheriff’s Judicial Function, effective August 13, 2019 through
September 16, 2019 inclusive.

17.  LaVern Smith is hereby granted a Leave of Absence Without Pay pursuant
to the Family and Medical Leave Act from his position of Senior Juvenile Detention Officer,
Juvenile Services, effective August 4, 2019 through November 2, 2019 inclusive.

18.  Adam D. Hughes is hereby granted a Leave of Absence Without Pay pursuant
to the Family and Medical Leave Act from his position of County Correction Officer, Department
of Corrections, effective August 8, 2019 through August 12, 2019 inclusive.

19.  Theresa F. Urisko is hereby granted a Leave of Absence Without Pay
pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act from her position of Keyboarding Clerk 1, Fire &
First Aid Training Center, effective August 19, 2019 through November 11, 2019 inclusive.

20.  Russell Carter is hereby given a provisional appointment to the position of
Road Repair Supervisor, Road Department, pending Civil Service examination, effective August
22,2019, at an annual base salary of $57,041.

21.  Jeanne Morris is hereby given a regular appointment to the position of Senior
Receptionist/Telephone Operator, Clerk of the Board, subject to a working test period, effective
August 15, 2019, at her present salary.

22.  Roger A. Baker, Jr. is hereby given a regular appointment to the position of]
Assistant Supervising Maintenance Repairer LPL, Buildings & Grounds, subject to a working test
period, effective August 15, 2019, at his present salary.

23.  Joseph G. Sheechan is hereby given a regular appointment to the position of
Senior Building Maintenance Worker, Buildings & Grounds, subject to a working test period,
effective August 22, 2019, at an annual base salary of $45,001.

24.  Jennifer C. Urisko is hereby granted an Extension of Leave of Absence
Without Pay pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act from her position of Principal Account
Clerk, Department of Security, effective August 13, 2019 through September 23, 2019 inclusive.

25.  Hillary F. Cicero is hereby granted a Family Leave Without Pay, from her
position of Keyboarding Clerk 2, Medical Examiner, effective August 14, 2019 through November
5, 2019 inclusive.

26 Jessica A. Gorski is hereby granted an Extension of Family Leave Without
Pay, from her position of Keyboarding Clerk 1, Department of Vehicle Services, effective August
16, 2019 through November 7, 2019 inclusive.

27.  Brittani P. Baranyay is hereby granted a Family Leave Without Pay, from her
position of Aide Penal Institution, Department of Corrections, effective August 19, 2019 through
November 10, 2019 inclusive.

28.  Donald C. Hull is hereby granted an Intermittent Medical Leave from his
position of Supervising Security Guard, Department of Security, effective August 5, 2019 through
August 4, 2020 inclusive.

29.  Johnathan F. Smedile is hereby given a regular appointment to the position
of Laborer 1, Solid Waste Management, subject to a working test period, effective September 3,
2019, at an annual base salary of $31,850.

August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019
on#: 2019001176




Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resoluti

Res-Pg:h.1-4
Resolution August 21, 2019 page three

The following employees (30 through 31), are hereby given a regular
appointment to the position of Mechanic, Department of Vehicle Services, subject to a working
test period, effective September 3, 2019, at an annual base salary of $38,150:

30.  Avery M. Herron
31.  Edward J. Kramer

The following employees (32 through 35), are hereby given a regular
appointment to the position of Laborer 1, Road Department, subject to a working test period,
effective September 3, 2019, at an annual base salary of $31,850:

32.  Thomas J. Alvarez
33.  Conor J. Dempsey
34.  Dylan R. Meelheim
35.  BryanJ. Newman

36.  Michael P. Gibson is hereby given a provisional appointment to the position
of Carpenter, Parks Department, pending Civil Service examination, effective August 26, 2019, at
an annual base salary of $38,150.

37.  Patrick E. Ferraro, Sr. is hereby given a regular part-time appointment to the
position of Maintenance Worker 1 Grounds, Parks Department, subject to a working test period,
effective August 26, 2019, at an hourly wage of $15.31.

38.  Christopher M. Ventrice is hereby given a regular appointment to the
position of Maintenance Worker 1 Grounds, Parks Department, subject to a working test period,
effective August 26, 2019, at an annual base salary of $31,850.

39.  Cassidy L. Gobel is hereby given a regular appointment to the position of
Community Service Aide, Human Services — Workforce Development Board, subject to a working
test period, effective September 16, 2019, at an annual base salary of $37,500.

40.  Sean M. Wright is hereby given a regular appointment to the position of
Keyboarding Clerk 1, Human Services, subject to a working test period, effective September 16,
2019, at an annual base salary of $31,027.

41.  Tanara M. Hall is hereby given a regular appointment to the position of
Recycling Program Aide, Solid Waste Management, subject to a working test period, effective
September 3, 2019, at an annual base salary of $40,000.

42,  Brian DeLuca is hereby given a regular part-time appointment to the position
of Weights & Measures Apprentice, Consumer Affairs, subject to a working test period, effective
August 26, 2019, at an hourly wage of $15.48.

43. At the request of the Prosecutor, Christopher B. White is hereby appointed
to the position of County Investigator, Prosecutor’s Office, as provided by N.J.S.A.2A:157-10,
effective September 23, 2019, at an annual base salary of $81,057.

44,  Stephanie M. Howarth is hereby granted a Family Leave Without Pay, from
her position of County Correction Officer, Department of Corrections, effective August 13, 2019
through October 7, 2019 inclusive.

45.  Courtney M. Jarin is hereby given a regular appointment to the position of
Keyboarding Clerk 1, Human Services, subject to a working test period, effective September 16,
2019, at an annual base salary of $31,027.

46. At the request of the Sheriff, Rodney A. Cocci is hereby given a T/120
appointment to the position of Public Safety Telecommunicator, Sheriff’s 911 Division, effective
August 22, 2019, at an hourly wage of $19.23.

August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019
bn#: 2019001176
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47.  Michael J. Walker is hereby given an appointment to the position of
Intermittent Groundskeeper, Parks Department, subject to a working test period, effective August
26,2019, at an hourly wage of $15.31.

48.  Warren G. Backer is hereby given an appointment to the position of
Intermittent Golf Starter, Parks Department, subject to a working test period, effective September
9, 2019, at an hourly wage of $10.00.

49. At the request of the Sheriff, Donovan R. O’Hearn is hereby authorized as
an unpaid intern, Pennsylvania State University, Office of the Sheriff, effective September 1, 2019
through January 2, 2020.

50.  Kelly L. Holloway is hereby granted a Leave of Absence Without Pay
pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act from her position of Engineering Aide, Engineering
Department, effective August 14, 2019 through September 2, 2019 inclusive.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that certified copies of the Resolution be sent to the
Director of Employee Relations and the County Comptroller/CFO.

Introduced on: August 21, 2019
Adopted on: August 21, 2019
Official Resolujipn#: 2019001176
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Ocean County Board of Chosen freeholders

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY FREEHOLDERS

Freeholder Director Virginia E. Haines

Deputy Director John P. Kelly

101 Hooper Ave
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191
Tel: 732-929-2005

Freeholder Gerry P. Little Fax: 732-505-1918

Freeholder Gary Quinn
Freeholder Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date:

Location:

August 21, 2019 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing an amendment to the 2019 Budget for the program entitled New Jersey Clean Vessel Act
Pumpout Repair FY19, in the amount of $9,000.00.

Official Resolution# [2019001117

Meeting Date 08/21/2019

Introduced Date 08/21/2019

Adopted Date 08/21/2019

Agenda ltem h-2

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
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| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

WAL Lesndo

Clerk Of The Board
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RESOLUTION

August 21, 2019

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:4-87 provides that the Director of the Division of Local
Government Services may approve the insertion of any special item of revenue in the Budget of
any County or Municipality when such item shall have been made available by law and the
amount thereof was not determined at the time of the adoption of the Budget; and

WHEREAS, said Director may also approve the insertion of an item of appropriation for
an equal amount.

SECTION 1

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the BOARD OF CHOSEN
FREEHOLDERS of the COUNTY OF OCEAN hereby requests the Director of the Division
of Local Government Services to approve the insertion of an item of revenue in the Budget of the
year 2019 inthe sum of .. ... ... . . ... $9.000.00
which item is now available as a revenue from the New Jersey Department of Environmental
Protection, pursuant to the provisions of statute; and
SECTION 2

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED thatalikesumof.......... ......... $9.000.00
be and the same is hereby appropriated under the line item caption entitled, New Jersey Clean
Vessel Act Pumpout Repair Fy19; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that one signed copy of the State of New Jersey
Budget Amendment certification form shall be filed with the Director of Local Government

Services, and copies of this Resolution shall be made available to the Department of Finance and

the County Auditor.
Introduced on August 21, 2019
Adopted on: August 21, 2019

Official Resolytjon#: 2019001117
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Ocean County Board of Chosen freeholders

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY FREEHOLDERS

Freeholder Director Virginia E. Haines

Deputy Director John P. Kelly

101 Hooper Ave
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191
Tel: 732-929-2005

Freeholder Gerry P. Little Fax: 732-505-1918

Freeholder Gary Quinn
Freeholder Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date:

Location:

August 21, 2019 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Certifying Compliance of the Group Affidavit Form of the Annual Audit as promulgated by the State of
New Jersey Local Finance Board.

Official Resolution# [2019001125

Meeting Date 08/21/2019

Introduced Date 08/21/2019

Adopted Date 08/21/2019

Agenda ltem h-3

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
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| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

WAL Lendo

Clerk Of The Board
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RESOLUTION

August 21, 2019

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:5-4 requires the governing body of every
local unit to have made an annual audit of its books, accounts and financial
transactions; and

WHEREAS, the Annual Report of Audit for the year 2018 has been filed
by a Registered Municipal Accountant with the Clerk of the Board as per the
requirements of N.J.S. 40A:5-6, and a copy has been received by each member
of the governing body; and

WHEREAS, the Local Finance Board of the State of New Jersey is
authorized to prescribe reports pertaining to the local fiscal affairs, as per R.S.
52:27BB-34; and

WHEREAS, the Local Finance Board has promulgated a regulation
requiring that the governing body of each county shall, by resolution, certify to
the Local Finance Board of the State of New Jersey that all members of the
governing body have reviewed, at a minimum, the sections of the annual audit
entitled:

General Comments
Recommendations
;and

WHEREAS, the members of the governing body have personally
reviewed at a minimum the Annual Report of Audit, and specifically the
sections of the Annual Audit entitled:

General Comments
Recommendations

as evidenced by the group affidavit form of the governing body; and

WHEREAS, such resolution of certification shall be adopted by the
governing body no later than forty-five (45) days after receipt of the annual
audit, as per the regulations of the Local Finance Board; and

WHEREAS, all members of the governing body have received and have
familiarized themselves with at least the minimum requirements of the Local
Finance Board of the State of New Jersey, as stated aforesaid and have
subscribed to the affidavit, as provided by the Local Finance Board; and

Introduced on August 21, 2019
Adopted on: August 21, 2019
Official Resolytion#: 2019001125
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WHEREAS, failure to comply with the promulgations of the Local
Finance Board of the State of New Jersey may subject the members of the local
governing body to the penalty provisions of R.S. 52:27BB-52 - to wit:

R.S. 52:27BB-52 - "A local officer or member of a local governing body
who, after a date fixed for compliance, fails or refuses to obey an order of
the director (Director of Local Government Services), under the
provisions of this Article, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon
conviction, may be fined not more than one thousand dollars ($1,000.00)

or imprisoned for not more than one year, or both, in addition shall forfeit
his office."

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the governing body of
the County of Ocean, hereby states that it has complied with the promulgation
of the Local Finance Board of the State of New Jersey dated July 30, 1968 and
does hereby submit a certified copy of this Resolution and the required
affidavit to said Board to show evidence of said compliance.

August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019
on#: 2019001125
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Ocean County Board of Chosen freeholders

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Ave

OCEAN COUNTY FREEHOLDERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Freeholdt-ar Director Virginia E. Haines 08754-2191
Deputy Director John P. Kelly Tel: 732-929-2005
Freeholder Gerry P. Little Fax: 732-505-1918

Freeholder Gary Quinn

Freeholder Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda

Date: August 21, 2019 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing the sale of $39,880,000 General Improvement Bonds, Series 2019.

Official Resolution# [2019001126

Meeting Date 08/21/2019

Introduced Date 08/21/2019

Adopted Date 08/21/2019

Agenda ltem h-4

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
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RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

WAL Lendo

Clerk Of The Board
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RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE
OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN'S GENERAL IMPROVEMENT
BONDS, SERIES 2019 AUTHORIZED BY BOND ORDINANCES
HERETOFORE ADOPTED TO FINANCE VARIOUS GENERAL
IMPROVEMENTS IN THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, AND
PROVIDING FOR THE FORM, MATURITY DATES AND
OTHER DETAILS OF SAID BONDS.

WHEREAS, the Board of Chosen Freeholders of the County of Ocean, New Jersey (the "County")
has adopted various bond ordinances described in Section 1 of this Resolution (collectively, the
"Ordinances"), authorizing bonds and bond anticipation notes to finance a portion of the cost of the
construction and reconstruction of various capital improvements in said County (collectively, the
"Project"); and

WHEREAS, it is desirable and necessary to issue the County's general improvement bonds
pursuant to the Ordinances, in an aggregate principal amount of $39,880,000, unless adjusted pursuant to
Section 13 hereof, and it is deemed advisable and in the best interests of the County to provide for the sale,
form, maturity date and other matters in connection with the bonds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS OF
THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Authority for Resolution. Pursuant to the Local Bond Law of the State of New
Jersey, constituting Chapter 2 of Title 40A of the New Jersey Statutes (the "Act"), the Board of Chosen
Freeholders has previously adopted the following Ordinances on the dates indicated, which Ordinances
authorized the issuance of bonds in the amounts indicated, and the Board of Chosen Freeholders has
determined to issue at this time, pursuant to each of said Ordinances, the following amounts of bonds:

ion#: 2

Amount of Amount of
Ordinance Date Bonds Period of | Bonds to be
Number | Adopted Purpose Authorized | Usefulness Issued
2017-21 | 07/19/17 | Western Facilities $7,600,000 | 20 years $5,600,000
Transportation Garage
2018-24 | 12/05/18 | Western County Facilities, 5,500,000 | 20 years 5,500,000
Phase I1
2019-1 02/20/19 | Design, reconstruction and 950,000 | 10 years 950,000
resurfacing of certain County
roads
2019-3 | 02/20/19 | Replacement of Ridgeway 2,375,000 | 30 years 2,375,000
Bridge, Manchester Township
2019-5 | 04/17/19 | Reconstruction of Van Zile 1,900,000 | 20 years 1,900,000
Road (Route 70 to Burnt Tavern
Road) Brick Township
2019-6 | 04/17/19 | Engineering, road and bridge 3,800,000 | 20 years 3,800,000
improvements
2019-7 04/17/19 | Bridge rehabilitation and repair 1,900,000 | 15 years 1,900,000
2019-8 | 04/17/19 | Installation of new and upgrades 950,000 | 10 years 950,000
traffic control devices
2019-9 04/17/19 | Reconstruction and resurfacing 1,900,000 | 10 years 1,900,000
of certain County roads
2019-11 | 04/17/19 | Renovations to the Justice 2,870,000 | 15 years 2,870,000
Complex East Wing Courthouse
and Corrections Facilities
2019-13 | 05/15/19 | Reconstruction and widening of $2,375,000 | 20 years $2,375,000
Cross Street, Phase I, Lakewood
Township
2019-14 | 05/15/19 | Reconstruction of New 950,000 | 20 years 950,000
Hampshire at Chestnut Street
and Rout 70, Lakewood
Township
2019-16 | 05/15/19 | Reconstruction of Toms River 1,045,000 | 20 years 1,045,000
Road (CR 571), South Hope
Chapel Road and Freehold
Road, Jackson Township
2019-17 | 05/15/19 | Renovations to the Northern 2,565,000 15 years 2,565,000
Resource Building
2019-18 | 05/15/19 | Capital Renewal and 6,800,000 | 30 years 3,400,000
Replacement Program for FY
2019 at Ocean County College
2019-24 | 06/19/19 | Renovations to the Chestnut 1,800,000 | 15 years 1,800,000
Street Facility, Toms River
TOTAL $45,280,000 $39,880,000

August 21, 2019
August 21, 20

, 2019
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Section 2. Authorization of Bonds. In accordance with the Act, and for the purpose of
raising funds to finance the purposes set forth in the Ordinances, there shall be issued bonds of the County
in the aggregate principal amount of $39,880,000, unless adjusted pursuant to Section 13 hereof, pursuant
to the Ordinances. All of said bonds shall constitute a single issue for purposes of the Local Bond Law and
shall be designated "General Improvement Bonds, Series 2019" (the "Bonds").

Section 3. Details of Bonds. The Bonds will be issued in the form of one certificate for the
aggregate principal amount of bonds maturing in each year and will be payable as to both principal and
interest in lawful money of the United States of America. Each certificate will be registered in the name of
Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), which will act as securities
depository. The certificates will be on deposit with DTC. DTC will be responsible for maintaining a book
entry system for recording the interests among its participants. The participants will be responsible for
maintaining records regarding the beneficial ownership interests in the bonds on behalf of individual
purchasers. Individual purchases may be made in the principal amount of $1,000 or more through book
entries made on the books and records of DTC and its participants. The Bonds will bear interest payable
semiannually at a rate or rates per annum, expressed in a multiple of 1/8 or 1/20 of 1%, as proposed by the
successful bidder in accordance with the Notice of Sale authorized herein. The Bonds shall be substantially
in the form as provided in this Resolution, with such omissions, insertions and variations as are properly
required. Said Bonds shall be dated the date of delivery, shall bear interest at the rate or rates specified by
the successful bidder therefor in accordance with the Notice of Sale hereinafter provided for, said interest to
be payable on March 1 and September 1, commencing on March 1, 2020, and shall mature (unless adjusted
by the County Comptroller pursuant to Section 13 hereof) on September 1 in the following years and
amounts:

August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019
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PRINCIPAL PRINCIPAL
YEAR AMOUNT YEAR AMOUNT
2020 $1,470,000 2030 $2,190,000
2021 1,470,000 2031 2,255,000
2022 1,540,000 2032 2,325,000
2023 1,620,000 2033 2,395,000
2024 1,700,000 2034 2,465,000
2025 1,785,000 2035 2,540,000
2026 1,875,000 2036 2,615,000
2027 1,970,000 2037 2,695,000
2028 2,065,000 2038 2,775,000
2029 2,130,000

Section 4. Certificated Bonds; Successor Securities Depository. In the event the County

determines that it is in the best interests of the beneficial owners of the Bonds (the actual purchasers of the
bonds) that they be able to obtain certificated bonds, the County may notify DTC of the availability of bond
certificates. In such event, the County will appoint a paying agent and the County will issue, transfer and
exchange bond certificates as required by DTC and others in appropriate amounts. DTC may determine to
discontinue providing its services with respect to the bonds at any time by giving a reasonable amount of
notice in writing to the County and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto. In the event of such
determination, if the County fails to identify another qualified securities depository as successor to DTC,
the County will appoint a paying agent and the County will issue and deliver replacement bonds in the form
of fully registered certificates. Whenever DTC requests the County to do so, the County will cooperate
with DTC in taking appropriate action (a) to make available one or more separate certificates evidencing
the bonds to any participant of DTC having bonds credited to its DTC account or (b) to arrange for another
securities depository to maintain custody of certificates evidencing the bonds.

Section 5. Redemption. (A) The Bonds maturing prior to September 1, 2030 are not
subject to redemption prior to maturity.

B) The Bonds maturing on or after September 1, 2030 are subject to redemption, at the
option of the County prior to maturity and upon notice as hereinafter provided, at any time on or after
September 1, 2029, in whole or in part from such maturities as the County shall determine and by lot within
a single maturity, at the respective redemption price of 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed
together with unpaid interest accrued to the redemption date.

© In the event the winning bidder elects to aggregate consecutive principal maturities of the
Bonds into one or more term bonds pursuant to Section 11 hereof, then each such term bond shall mature
on the final maturity date of such consecutive maturities in an aggregate principal amount equal to the sum
of the principal amounts of such consecutive maturities. Each such term bond shall be subject to
mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity, in part, on the dates and in the amounts that would
have been consecutive serial maturities had no term bond designation been made (other than the final such
maturity, which shall be the maturity date of such term bond), at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal amount to be redeemed, plus accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption.

D) When any bonds are to be redeemed, the County shall give or shall arrange to be given
notice of the redemption of bonds. Such notice shall specify the maturities of the bonds to be redeemed,
the redemption date and the place or places where amounts due upon such redemption will be payable and,
if less than all of the bonds of any maturity are to be redeemed, the letters and the numbers or other
distinguishing marks of such bonds so to be redeemed, and, in the case of a bond to be redeemed in part
only, such notice shall also specify the portion of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed. Such notice
shall further state that on such date there shall become due and payable upon each bond to be redeemed the
principal amount of such bond plus the applicable premium, if any, payable upon the redemption thereof, or
the specified portion of the principal thereof in the case of a bond to be redeemed in part only, together with
interest accrued to such date, and that from and after such date interest thereon shall cease to accrue and be
payable. The County shall mail or cause to be mailed a copy of such notice postage prepaid, not less than
thirty (30) days, nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption, to the registered
owner of any bond all or a portion of which is to be redeemed, at his last address, if any, appearing upon
the registry books kept by or on behalf of the County. For so long as the book-entry only form remains in
effect and the bonds are registered in the name of DTC, or its nominee, the County will not be responsible
for mailing of notices of redemption to anyone other than DTC, and the County shall comply with such
additional or supplemental requirements as may be imposed by DTC in connection with any redemption of
bonds whether such additional or supplemental requirements are specified in the Letter of Representations
by and between the County and DTC or otherwise.
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(E) Notice having been given in the manner provided above, the bonds or the portions thereof
called for redemption and specified in such notice shall become due and payable on the redemption date
specified in such notice at the principal amount thereof plus the premium, if any, applicable on such date,
plus unpaid interest on such bonds or portions thereof accrued to such date. Upon presentation and
surrender thereof at the place or the places specified in such notice, such bonds or portions thereof shall be
paid at the principal amount thereof plus the applicable premium, if any, plus unpaid interest on such bonds
or portion thereof accrued to such date. If there shall be so called for redemption less than all of a bond, the
County shall execute and cause to be delivered, upon the surrender of such bond, without charge to the
registered owner thereof, for the unredeemed balance of the principal amount of the bond so surrendered,
registered bonds of like designation, interest rate and maturity in any of the authorized denominations. If
on such redemption date moneys for the redemption of all the bonds or the portion thereof of any like
maturity to be redeemed, together with interest thereon accrued and unpaid to such date, shall be held on
behalf of the County so as to be available therefor on such date and if notice of redemption thereof shall
have been published as aforesaid, then from and after such redemption date, interest on the bonds or the
portions thereof of such maturity so called for redemption shall cease to accrue and to become payable. All
moneys held on behalf of the County for the redemption of particular bonds shall be held in trust for the
account of the owners of the bonds so to be redeemed.

Section 6. Payment of Bonds. The principal of and the interest on the Bonds will be paid
to DTC by or on behalf of the County on their respective due dates. Interest on the Bonds will be credited
to the participants of DTC as listed on the records of DTC as of each next preceding February 15 and
August 15 (the "Record Dates" for the payment of interest on the bonds).

Section 7. Execution of Bonds. Said Bonds shall be executed in the name of the County by
the manual or facsimile signatures of the Freeholder-Director and the Chief Financial Officer and the seal
of the Board of Chosen Freeholders shall be affixed, imprinted, engraved or reproduced thereon and
attested by the manual signature of the Clerk or a Deputy Clerk of the Board of Chosen Freeholders. If any
officer whose signature appears on the Bonds ceases to hold office before the delivery of the bonds, his/her
signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes. In addition, any Bond may bear the
signature of, or may be signed by, such persons as at the actual time of the signing of such Bond shall be
the proper officers to sign such bond although at the date of such bond such persons may not have been
such officers.

Section 8. Reissuance of Mutilated. Destroyed. Stolen or Lost Bonds. In case any Bond
shall become mutilated or destroyed, stolen or lost the County shall execute and deliver a new bond of like

tenor and amount as the bond so mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost, in exchange and substitution for such
mutilated bond and upon surrender of such mutilated bond, or in lieu of and substitution for the bond
destroyed, stolen or lost upon filing with the County evidence satisfactory to the County that such bond has
been destroyed, stolen or lost and proof of ownership thereof, and upon furnishing the County with
indemnity satisfactory to it and complying with such other reasonable regulations as the County may
prescribe, and paying such expenses as the County may incur in connection therewith.

Section 9. Form of Bonds. Subject to the provisions of this Resolution, each Bond shall be
in substantially the following form, with such omissions, insertions, endorsements and variations as may be
required by the circumstances and be required or permitted by this Resolution or as may be consistent with
this Resolution and necessary or appropriate to conform to the rules and requirements of any governmental
authority or any usage or requirement of law with respect thereto:

(Form of Bond)
No. S
United States of America
State of New Jersey
COUNTY OF OCEAN
General Improvement Bond, Series 2019
Maturity Date Interest Rate Dated Date CuUsIP
September 1, % ,2019
Registered Owner: CEDE & CO.
Principal Sum: DOLLARS

The COUNTY OF OCEAN (hereinafter referred to as the "County"), a political subdivision of the
State of New Jersey, for value received, hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner named above, or
registered assigns, the Principal Sum stated above on the Maturity Date specified above, and to pay interest
on such Principal Sum from the Dated Date specified above at the Interest Rate per annum specified above,
computed upon the basis of a 360 day year consisting of twelve 30 day months and payable on March 1,
2020, and semi-annually thereafter on the first days of September and March in each year until the County's
obligation with respect to the payment of such Principal Sum shall be discharged, but only in the case of
interest due at or before maturity of this bond. The principal of and the interest on this bond will be paid to
Cede & Co. as nominee of The Depository Trust Company. Interest on this bond will be credited to the
participants of The Depository Trust Company listed on the records of The Depository Trust Company as

August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019
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of each next preceding February 15 and August 15 (the "Record Dates" for the payment of interest on the
bonds).

This bond is not transferable as to principal or interest except to an authorized nominee of The
Depository Trust Company. The Depository Trust Company shall be responsible for maintaining the book
entry system for recording the interests of its participants or the transfers of the interests among its
participants. The participants are responsible for maintaining records regarding the beneficial ownership
interests in the bonds on behalf of individual purchasers.

This bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the County of like date and tenor, except as
to number, denomination, interest rate, CUSIP number and maturity date, issued in the aggregate principal
amount of § under and pursuant to the Local Bond Law of the State of New Jersey and by
virtue of a resolution adopted by the County's governing body on , 2019 (the "Resolution"),
and by virtue of the bond ordinances referred to therein in all respects duly approved and published as
required by law.

The bonds maturing prior to September 1, 2030 are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.
The bonds maturing on or after September 1, 2030 are subject to redemption, at the option of the County,
prior to maturity and upon notice as hereinafter and in the Resolution set forth, at any time on or after
September 1, 2029, in whole or in part from such maturities as the County shall determine and by lot within
a single maturity, at the respective redemption price of 100% of at the principal amount to be redeemed
together with unpaid interest accrued to the redemption date.

[The bonds maturing on September 1, 20__ are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption
prior to maturity, in part, on September 1 of the years and in the principal amounts specified below, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed, plus accrued interest thereon to
the date fixed for redemption:

Year Principal Amount

* Final Maturity.]

When any bonds are to be redeemed, the County shall mail or cause to be mailed a Notice of
Redemption, postage prepaid, not less than thirty (30) days, nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date
fixed for redemption, to the registered owner of any bond all or a portion of which is to be redeemed, at his
last address, if any, appearing upon the registry books kept by or on behalf of the County, all in the manner
and upon the terms and the conditions set forth in the Resolution. If notice of redemption shall have been
given as aforesaid, the bonds or the portions thereof specified in such notice shall become due and payable
on the redemption date therein designated at the principal amount thereof plus the premium, if any,
applicable on such date, plus unpaid interest accrued to such date. If moneys for payment of the principal
amount plus premium, if any, of all the bonds to be redeemed, together with interest to the redemption date,
shall be available for such payment on the redemption date, then from and after the redemption date interest
on such bonds shall cease to accrue and to become payable to the holders entitled to payment thereof on
such redemption date. For so long as the book-entry only form remains in effect and the bonds are
registered in the name of DTC or its nominee, the County will not be responsible for mailing of notices of
redemption to anyone other than DTC, and the County shall comply with such additional or supplemental
requirements as may be imposed by DTC in connection with any redemption of bonds whether such
additional or supplemental requirements are specified in the Letter of Representations by and between the
County and DTC or otherwise.

The full faith and credit of the County are hereby pledged for the punctual payment of the
principal of and interest on this bond according to its terms.

In the event the County determines that it is in the best interests of the beneficial owners of the
bonds (the actual purchasers of the bonds) that they be able to obtain certificated bonds, the County may
notify The Depository Trust Company ("DTC") of the availability of bond certificates. In such event, the
County will appoint a paying agent and the County will issue, transfer and exchange bond certificates as
required by DTC and others in appropriate amounts. DTC may determine to discontinue providing its
services with respect to the bonds at any time by giving a reasonable amount of notice in writing to the
County and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto. In the event of such determination, if the
County fails to identify another qualified securities depository as successor to DTC, the County will
appoint a paying agent and the County will issue and deliver replacement bonds in the form of fully
registered certificates. Whenever DTC requests the County to do so, the County will cooperate with DTC
in taking appropriate action (a) to make available one or more separate certificates evidencing the bonds to
any participant of DTC having bonds credited to its DTC account or (b) to arrange for another securities
depository to maintain custody of certificates evidencing the bonds.

It is hereby certified and recited that all conditions, acts and things required by the Constitution
and statutes of the State of New Jersey to exist, to have happened or to have been performed precedent to or
in the issuance of this bond, exist, have happened and have been performed and that the amount and terms

of this bond do not exceed any limitation imposed thereon by said Constitution or statutes.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the COUNTY OF OCEAN, has caused this bond to be signed by the
manual or facsimile signature of its Freeholder-Director and its Chief Financial Officer, the corporate seal
of the Board of Chosen Freeholders to be hereunto affixed, imprinted, engraved or reproduced hereon and
to be attested by the manual signature of the Clerk or Deputy Clerk of the Board of Chosen Freeholders, all
as of the _ day of September, 2019.

ATTEST:
(SEAL) Freeholder-Director
Chief Financial Officer
(Deputy) Clerk of the
Board of Chosen Freeholders
Section 10. Sale of Bonds. Proposals for the Bonds will be received by the County on

September 5, 2019 until 10:45 a.m., New Jersey time, or at such later date and time as may be established
in accordance with Section 14 hereof, by Julie N. Tarrant, the County's Comptroller through the “PARITY
Electronic Bid System” (PARITY) in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Notice of
Sale authorized herein. Such proposals shall be received and announced at the County Administration
Building, Room 304 Conference Room, Third Floor, 101 Hooper Avenue, Toms River, New Jersey, in
accordance with the Notice of Sale. The Clerk of the Board of Chosen Freeholders is hereby directed to
arrange for the publication of the Notice of Sale in The Asbury Park Press, a newspaper published and
circulating in the County, and for the publication of the Notice of Sale (or summaries thereof as provided
by law) in The Bond Buyer, and/or such other nationally recognized local government bond marketing
publication or electronic information service carrying municipal bond notices and devoted primarily to the
subject of state and municipal bonds The notice shall be in substantially the following form:

August 21, 2019
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(Form of Notice of Sale)
NOTICE OF SALE
$39,880,000*
COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY
GENERAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2019
(CALLABLE) (BOOK-ENTRY ONLY ISSUE)

ELECTRONIC PROPOSALS will be received and announced by Julie N. Tarrant, Comptroller of
the County of Ocean (the "County" or the "Issuer" ), at the County Administration Building Room 304
Conference Room, Third Floor, 101 Hooper Avenue, Toms River, New Jersey, through the PARITY
Electronic Bid System (“PARITY”) of IPREO LLC, as described herein. The General Improvement
Bonds, Series 2019 (the "Bonds" or the "Securities") shall mature (unless adjusted by the County
Comptroller as described herein, or aggregated into term bonds as described herein) on September 1 in the
following years and amounts:

$39,880,000* General Improvement Bonds, Series 2019 maturing on September 1 in the principal amounts
set forth below:

PRINCIPAL PRINCIPAL
YEAR AMOUNT YEAR AMOUNT

2020 $1,470,000 2030 $2,190,000
2021 1,470,000 2031 2,255,000
2022 1,540,000 2032 2,325,000
2023 1,620,000 2033 2,395,000
2024 1,700,000 2034 2,465,000
2025 1,785,000 2035 2,540,000
2026 1,875,000 2036 2,615,000
2027 1,970,000 2037 2,695,000
2028 2,065,000 2038 2,775,000
2029 2,130,000

*subject to adjustment

THE COUNTY IS ALSO SELLING ITS $3,400,000* COLLEGE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
BONDS, SERIES 2019 (THE "COLLEGE BONDS"). THE COUNTY HAS ISSUED A SEPARATE
NOTICE OF SALE FOR THE COLLEGE BONDS. THE TERMS OF EACH NOTICE OF SALE
WILL APPLY TO EACH SERIES OF BONDS, RESPECTIVELY.

IF THE COMPETITIVE SALE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF TREASURY
REGULATIONS SECTION 1.148-1(f)(3)(i), INCLUDING THE RECEIPT OF THREE BIDS ARE
NOT MET FOR THE BONDS, ALL BIDS WILL BE REJECTED AND THE SALE OF THE
BONDS WILL BE CANCELLED.

All Bids (as defined below) must be submitted in their entirety through PARITY until 10:45
a.m., New Jersey time on September 5, 2019 (see “Bidding Details”). To bid, Bidders (as defined
below) must submit either (i) a certified, treasurer’s or cashier’s check or (ii) complete a wire
transfer, in either case in the amount of $797,600 (the check or wire transfer being hereinafter
referred to as the “Deposit”), to secure the County from any loss resulting from a failure of the
bidder to comply with the terms of its bid. The Deposit must be submitted to the County prior to the
time for submission of bids, and if in the form of a certified, treasurer’s or cashier’s check, at the
following address:

Julie N. Tarrant, County Comptroller
County of Ocean
Department of Finance
Administration Building
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey 08754

If a wire transfer is used for the Deposit, it must be sent according to the following wire
instructions and if the bid is not accepted, the County shall promptly return the Deposit amount to the
unsuccessful bidder. EACH BIDDER MUST PROVIDE THEIR RETURN WIRE INSTRUCTIONS:

TD Bank, N.A., Toms River, NJ
ABA#: 031201360

Credit To: County of Ocean
August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019
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Bill Commiittee Clearing
Acct# 6855093280

The use of PARITY shall be at the Bidder’s risk and expense, and the County shall have no liability
with respect thereto.

If a check is used, it must be a certified, treasurer’s or cashier’s check payable to the County and
such check (together with a name and return address) should be sent to Julie N. Tarrant, County
Comptroller, County Administration Building, Department of Finance, 101 Hooper Avenue, Toms River,
New Jersey 08754. Checks of unsuccessful bidders will be returned upon the award of the Bonds. Any
bidder that does not have a representative present at the bid announcement is requested to include with its
good faith deposit overnight packaging or other return envelope for the return of its Deposit (if not the
successful bidder). In the absence of other arrangements, the check of any unsuccessful bidder will be
returned by certified first class mail to such name and return address as specified by such bidder when such
Deposit was provided. By submitting a proposal for the Bonds, each bidder shall be deemed to have
accepted any and all risks of loss associated with the return of its Deposit. Upon return of its Deposit, each
such unsuccessful bidder shall acknowledge same by signing and returning a receipt to such effect provided
by the County. If a wire transfer is used, such transfer must be completed and confirmed received by the
County prior to the opening of the bids.

The Deposit of the winning bidder will be applied to the purchase price of the Bonds. In the event
the winning bidder fails to comply with the terms of its accepted bid, the Deposit will be retained by the
County as liquidated damages. The winning bidder shall not be entitled to any interest earnings in respect
of the County.

The Bonds are to be issued in book-entry only form and all bidders for the Bonds must be
participants of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, or affiliated with its participants.
The Bonds will be issued in the form of one certificate for the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds
maturing in each year and will be payable as to both principal and interest in lawful money of the United
States of America. Each certificate will be registered in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee of The
Depository Trust Company (collectively, "DTC"). The certificates will be on deposit with DTC. DTC will
be responsible for maintaining a book entry system for recording the interests of its participants or the
transfer of the interests among its participants. The participants will be responsible for maintaining records
regarding the beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds on behalf of the individual purchasers. Individual
purchases may be made in the principal amount of $1,000 or more through book entries made on the books
and records of DTC and its participants.

The Bonds will be dated the date of delivery and will bear interest at the rate or rates of interest
per annum specified by the successful bidder therefor in accordance herewith, payable on March 1, 2020
and semiannually thereafter on the first days of September and March in each year until maturity by
payment to DTC.

The Bonds maturing on or after September 1, 2030 are subject to redemption, at the option of the
County prior to maturity and upon notice as set forth in the Resolution, at any time on or after September 1,
2029, in whole or in part from such maturities as the County shall determine and by lot within a single
maturity, at the respective redemption price of 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed together with
unpaid interest accrued to the redemption date.

A bidder may aggregate consecutive principal maturities of the Bonds, for which such bidder bids
the same interest rate, into term bonds. Each such term bond shall mature on the final maturity date of such
consecutive maturities in an aggregate principal amount equal to the sum of the principal amounts of such
consecutive maturities. Each such term bond shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior
to maturity, in part, on the dates and in the amounts that would have been consecutive serial maturities had
no term bond designation been made (other than the final such maturity, which shall be the maturity date of
such term bond), at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed, plus accrued
interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption. Notice of redemption shall be given as provided in the
resolution of the County authorizing the Bonds.

For so long as the book-entry form remains in effect and the Bonds are registered in the name of
DTC, the County will not be responsible for mailing of notices of redemption to anyone other than DTC.

The Bonds are general obligations of the County and unless paid from other sources the County is
authorized and required by law to levy ad valorem taxes upon all real property taxable by the County for
the payment of the Bonds and the interest thereon without limitation as to rate or amount.

Each proposal submitted must name the rate or rates of interest per annum to be borne by the
Bonds and the rate or rates named must be multiples of one-eighth or one-twentieth of one per centum. Not
more than one rate may be named for the Bonds of the same maturity. There is no limitation on the number
of rates that may be named. The difference between the lowest and the highest rates named in the proposal
shall not exceed three per centum (3%) with a maximum coupon of 5% and 0% coupon not permitted.
Each proposal submitted must be for all of the Bonds and the purchase price specified in the
proposal must equal or exceed $39,880,000, with a maximum bid price of $43,070,400 (108%).

If the competitive sale requirements under the provisions of Treasury Regulations Section
1.14851)(2339, including the receipt of three bids are not met for the Bonds, all bids will be rejected
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and the sale of the Bonds will be cancelled. If at least three bids for the Bonds are received and the
competitive sale requirements under the provisions of Treasury Regulations Section 1.148(f)(3)(i)
(defining ""competitive sale” for purposes of establishing the issue price of the Bonds) are met, the
Bonds will be awarded to the bidder on whose bids for both the Bonds may be made at the lowest
true interest cost. Such true interest cost shall be computed by determining the interest rate, compounded
semi-annually, necessary to discount the debt service payments to the date of the Bonds and to the price
bid, excluding interest accrued to the delivery date. No proposal shall be considered that offers to pay an
amount less than the principal amount of the Bonds offered for sale or under which the total loan is made at
a true interest cost higher than the lowest true interest cost to the County under any legally acceptable
proposal, and if two or more such bidders offer to pay the lowest true interest cost, then the Bonds will be
sold to one of such bidders selected by lot from among all such bidders. The purchaser must also pay an
amount equal to the interest (if any) on the Bonds accrued to the date of payment of the purchase price.
The right is reserved to reject all bids and to reject any bid not complying with this Notice.

It is requested that each proposal be accompanied by a computation of the true interest cost to the
County under the terms of the proposal in accordance with the method of calculation described in the
preceding paragraph (computed to six decimal places), but such computation is not to be considered as part
of the proposal for Bonds.

The County reserves the right to postpone, upon not less than 24 hours’ notice, the date and time
established for receipt of Bids. ANY SUCH POSTPONEMENT WILL BE PUBLISHED ON TM3
NEWS SERVICES, BEFORE 4:00 P.M. ON THE DAY BEFORE THE SALE. If any date fixed for
the receipt of Bids and the sale of the Bonds is postponed, an alternative sale date will be announced
through TM3 New Services at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to such alternative sale date. On any such
alternative sale date, any Bidder may submit a Bid for the purchase of the Bonds in conformity in all
respects with the provisions of the Notice of Sale, except for the date of sale and except for the changes
announced on www.tm3.com at the time the sale date and time are announced.

Within 30 minutes of the award of the Bonds, the County must receive from the successful bidder
an email or telecopy (an “Initial Public Offering Price Telecopy”) stating the prices at which such
successful bidder intends that each stated maturity of the Bonds shall initially be offered to the public,
which for this purpose excludes bond houses, brokers or similar persons acting in the capacity of
underwriters or wholesalers (the “Initial Public Offering Prices™). The successful bidder shall make a bona
fide initial public offering of the bonds at the Initial Public Offering Prices stated in their Initial Public
Offering Price Telecopy.

The County Comptroller of the County may, up to 24 hours prior to the date of advertised sale of
and within 4 hours after the award of the Bonds, adjust the maturity schedule of the Bonds in increments of
$1,000, provided however, that after the award of the Bonds (i) no maturity schedule adjustment shall
exceed 10% upward or downward of the principal for any maturity as specified herein (or as adjusted prior
to the date of advertised sale) and (ii) the aggregate adjustment to the maturity schedule shall not exceed
10% upward or downward of the aggregate principal amount of bonds as specified herein (or as adjusted
prior to the date of advertised sale) and as adjusted will not exceed the amount authorized by the
Ordinances. NOTICE OF ANY ADJUSTMENT TO THE MATURITY SCHEDULE OF THE BONDS
PRIOR TO THE DATE OF THE ADVERTISED SALE SHALL BE GIVEN BY CAUSING A NOTICE
THEREOF TO BE PUBLISHED ON TM3 NEWS SERVICES. The dollar amount bid by the successful
bidder shall be adjusted to reflect any adjustments in the aggregate principal amount of bonds to be issued.
The adjusted bid price will reflect changes in the dollar amount of the underwriter’s discount and the
original issue premium or discount, but will not change the per bond underwriter’s discount as calculated
from the bid and the Initial Public Offering Prices required to be delivered to the County as stated herein,
The County shall notify the successful bidder of the final maturity schedule and the resulting adjusted
purchase price no later than 5:00 p.m., New Jersey time, on the day of the sale and award of the Bonds.
The interest rate or rates specified by the successful bidder for each maturity will not be altered. The
successful bidder may not withdraw its bid as a result of any such adjustment, and shall be bound by
the terms thereof.

1t is expected that the Bonds will be delivered to the successful bidder on or about September 19,
2019 at the Trenton, New Jersey offices of GluckWalrath LLP or at such other time or place mutually
agreed upon by the purchaser and the County. AT THE TIME OF DELIVERY OF THE BONDS, THE
SUCCESSFUL BIDDER SHALL PROVIDE FOR THE PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS THROUGH
THE USE OF IMMEDIATELY AVAILABLE FUNDS. No interest will be paid upon the deposit made
by the successful bidder.

Each electronic proposal must be submitted through PARITY. No bidder will see any other bid,
nor will any bidder see the status of its bid relative to other bids—i.e., whether its bid is a leading bid. To
the extent any instructions or directions set forth on PARITY conflict with this Notice of Sale, the terms of
this Notice of Sale shall control. For further information about PARITY, potential bidders may call
PARITY at IPREO at (212) 849-5021. The County may, but is not obligated to, acknowledge its
acceptance in writing of any bid submitted electronically through PARITY. In the event that a bid for the
Bonds is submitted through PARITY, the bidder further agrees that the County may regard the electronic
transmission of the bid through PARITY (including information about the purchase price of the Bonds, the
interest rate or rates to be borne by the various Bonds, the term Bonds, if any, specified, the initial public
offering price of each maturity of the Bonds and any other information included in such transmission) as
though the same information were submitted on the official “Proposal for Bonds” provided by the County

and executed by a duly authorized signatory of the bidder. If a bid submitted electronically through
August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019
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PARITY is accepted by the County, the terms of the official “Proposal for Bonds” and this Notice of Sale
and the information that is electronically transmitted through PARITY shall form a contract, and the
successful bidder shall be bound by the terms of such contract.

PARITY is not an agent of the County, and the County shall have no liability whatsoever based on
any bidder’s use of PARITY, including but not limited to any failure by PARITY to correctly or timely
transmit information provided by the County or information provided by the bidder.

The County may choose to discontinue use of electronic bidding through PARITY by issuing a
notification to such effect through TM3 News Services, or by other available means, no later than 4:00
p.m., New Jersey Time, on the last business date prior to the bid date.

Once the bids are communicated electronically through PARITY to the County, each bid will
constitute an official “Proposal for Bonds” and shall be deemed to be an irrevocable offer to purchase the
Bonds on the terms provided in this Notice of Sale. For purposes of submitting all “Proposals for Bonds,”
whether electronically or sealed, the time as maintained on PARITY shall constitute the official time.

Each bidder shall be solely responsible to make necessary arrangements to access PARITY for
purposes of submitting its bid in a timely manner and in compliance with the requirements of this Notice of
Sale. Neither the County nor IPREO shall have any duty or obligation to any bidder, or be responsible for
the proper operation of, or have any liability for any delays or interruptions of, or any damages caused by
PARITY. The County is using PARITY as a communication mechanism, and not as the County’s agent, to
conduct the electronic bidding for the Bonds. By using PARITY each bidder agrees to hold the County
harmless for any harm or damages caused to such bidder in connection with its use of PARITY for bidding
on the Bonds.

Bidders should be aware of the following bidding details (“Bidding Details™) associated with the
sale of the Bonds:

1. BIDDERS MUST SUBMIT GOOD FAITH CHECK OR A WIRE TRANSFER IN
THE AMOUNT OF $797,600 PAYABLE TO THE COUNTY OF OCEAN NO LATER THAN 10:45
AM. ON THE DAY OF SALE. HOWEVER, BIDDERS ARE ENCOURAGED TO SUBMIT
CHECKS ON THE DAY PRIOR TO THE SALE TO ASSURE RECEIPT OF PAYMENT BY THE
COUNTY AT THE FOLLOWING ADDRESS:

Julie N. Tarrant, County Comptroller
County of Ocean
Department of Finance
Administration Building
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey 08754

BIDDERS SUBMITTING GOOD FAITH CHECKS SHOULD ALSO ENCLOSE A RETURN
ENVELOPE FOR USE BY THE COUNTY.

2. All Bids must be submitted through PARITY. No telephone, telefax, telegraph or
personal delivery Bids will be accepted.

3. All Bids for the Bonds must be submitted on an “All or None” (“AON”) basis.

4 Each proposal submitted must name the rate or rates of interest per annum to be borne by

the Bonds and the rate or rates named must be multiples of 1/8 or 1/20 of 1%. Not more than one rate may
be named for the Bonds of each maturity. There is no limitation on the number of rates that may be named.
The difference between the lowest and the highest rates named in the proposal shall not exceed three per
centum (3%) with a maximum coupon of 5% and 0% coupon not permitted. Each proposal submitted must
state the purchase price, which must equal or exceed $39,880,000, with a maximum bid price of
$43,070,400 (108%). The Bonds will be awarded to the bidder on whose bid the total loan may be made at
the lowest true interest cost (as such term is defined herein). The purchaser must also pay an amount equal
to the interest on the Bonds accrued to the date of payment of the purchase price.

5. Bidders are only permitted to submit Bids for the Bonds during the bidding period.
Definitions
“Bid” any confirmed purchase offer received by PARITY on or before the proposal submission
deadline.
“Bidder” any firm registered and approved for participation in sale.

“Winning Bid” any purchase offer made by a Bidder and received by PARITY that, at the end of the
bidding time period, results in the lowest True Interest Cost that is acceptable to the
County.

“True Interest Cost” or “TIC”  computed by determining the interest rate, compounded semi-annually,
necessary to discount the debt service payments to the date of the bonds and to the price

Introduced on August 21, 2019

Adopted on: August 21, 2019

Official Resolyfion#: 2019004988;v2/ 94-63-/068}

10




Res-Pg:h.4-12

bid, excluding interest accrued to the delivery. The True Interest Cost serves as the basis
for awarding bonds to winning Bidders.

The successful bidder may, at its option, refuse to accept the Bonds if prior to their delivery any
income tax law of the United States of America shall provide that the interest thereon is includable in gross
income for federal income tax purposes, or shall be so includable at a future date. In such case the deposit
made by the bidder shall be returned and it will be relieved of its contractual obligations arising from the
acceptance of its proposal.

If the Bonds qualify for issuance of any policy of municipal bond insurance or commitment
therefor at the option of a bidder, any purchase of such insurance or commitment therefor shall be at the
sole option and expense of the bidder and any increased costs of issuance of the Bonds resulting by reason
of such insurance, unless otherwise paid, shall be paid by such bidder. Any failure of the Bonds to be so
insured or of any such policy of insurance to be issued shall not in any way relieve the purchaser of its
contractual obligations arising from the acceptance of its proposal for the purchase of the Bonds.

Establishment of Issue Price
The Issuer intends that the provisions of Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(f)(3)(i) (defining

“competitive sale” for purposes of establishing the issue price of the Securities) will apply to the initial sale
of the Securities (the “Competitive Sale Requirements”) because:

(1) the Issuer shall disseminate this Notice of Sale to potential
Underwriters in a manner that is reasonably designed to reach potential
Underwriters;

) all bidders shall have an equal opportunity to bid;

3) the Issuer may receive bids from at least three Underwriters of
municipal bonds who have established industry reputations for underwriting
new issuances of municipal bonds; and

4) the Issuer anticipates awarding the sale of the Securities to the
bidder who submits a firm offer to purchase the Securities at the highest price
(or lowest interest cost), as set forth in this Notice of Sale.

Any bid submitted pursuant to the Notice of Sale shall be considered a firm offer for the purchase of the
Securities, as specified in the bid.

In the event that the Competitive Sale Requirements are not satisfied for the Bonds, all bids
will be rejected and the sale of the Bonds will be cancelled.

In the event that the Competitive Sale Requirements are satisfied, the winning bidder shall assist
the Issuer in establishing the issue price of the Securities and shall execute and deliver to the Issuer at
Closing an “issue price” or similar certificate setting forth the reasonably expected initial offering price to
the Public or the sales price or prices of the Securities, together with the supporting pricing wires or
equivalent communications.

Sales of any Securities to any person that is a related party to an Underwriter shall not constitute
sales to the Public for purposes of this Notice of Sale. Further, for purposes of this Notice of Sale:

@) “Public” means any person other than an Underwriter or a related party,

(ii) “Underwriter” means (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a written
contract with the Issuer (or with the lead Underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate)
to participate in the initial sale of the Securities to the Public and (B) any person that
agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in
clause (A) to participate in the initial sale of the Securities to the Public (including a
member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the
initial sale of the Securities to the Public),

(iii) a purchaser of any of the Securities is a “related party” to an
Underwriter if the Underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (i)
at least 50% common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if
both entities are corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of another),
(ii) more than 50% common ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, if
both entities are partnerships (including direct ownership by one partnership of another),
or (iii) more than 50% common ownership of the value of the outstanding stock of the
corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of the partnership, as applicable, if
one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including direct
ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other), and

(iv) “Sale Date” means the date that the Securities are awarded by the
Issuer to the winning bidder.
Introduced on August 21, 2019
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All actions to be taken by the Issuer under this Notice of Sale to establish the issue price of the
Securities may be taken on behalf of the Issuer by the Issuer’s financial advisor identified herein and any
notice or report to be provided to the Issuer may be provided to the Issuer’s financial advisor or Bond
Counsel.

It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numbers will be printed on the Bonds, but neither the
failure to print such number on any Bond nor any error with respect thereto shall constitute cause for a
failure or refusal by the winning bidder thereof to accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds. The County’s
financial advisor will request the CUSIPs and will provide CUSIP Global Services with the final details of
the sale, including the identity of the winning bidder.

The purchaser shall be obligated to furnish to the County, when and if requested prior to the
delivery of the Bonds, such information requested by the County as shall be necessary to enable the County
to determine the "issue price” of the Bonds as defined in Section 1273 and 1274 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code").

A Preliminary Official Statement has been prepared and is available for viewing in electronic
format on www.i-dealprospectus.com and may also be obtained from the County's financial advisor
identified in the last paragraph of this Notice. The Preliminary Official Statement is deemed to be a final
official statement, as of its date, within the meaning of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, but is subject to (a) completion with certain pricing and other information to be made
available by the successful bidder for the Bonds and (b) amendment. The Preliminary Official Statement,
as so revised, will constitute the final "Official Statement”. By the submission of bids for the Bonds, the
successful bidder contracts for the receipt, within seven (7) business days of the award of the Bonds, of a
reasonable number of copies of the final Official Statement at the expense of the County, with any
additional copies of the final Official Statement that the successful bidder shall reasonably request to be
provided at the sole cost and expense of the successful bidder. In order to complete the final Official
Statement, the successful bidder must furnish the following information to the County's financial advisor
and Bond Counsel by email or facsimile transmission or overnight delivery received by the County's
financial advisor and Bond Counsel within twenty-four (24) hours after the award of the Bonds: (a) initial
offering prices (expressed as a price, exclusive of accrued interest, or yield per maturity), and (b) any other
material information necessary for the final Official Statement but not known to the County (such as the
bidder's purchase of credit enhancement). In addition, the successful bidder must, if requested by the
County, furnish a written confirmation of its bid.

The County will undertake to provide certain continuing disclosure in accordance with Rule 15¢2-
12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission. A description of this undertaking is contained in the
Preliminary Official Statement under the heading “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE".

The successful bidder will be furnished at the time the Bonds are delivered with: (1) the opinion of
GluckWalrath LLP, Trenton, New Jersey, in substantially the form set forth in the Preliminary Official
Statement; and (2) certificates in form satisfactory to said law firm evidencing the proper execution and
delivery of the Bonds and receipt of payment therefor and the fact that the Bonds will not be arbitrage
bonds within the meaning of the Code; and (3) a certificate, dated as of the date of delivery of the Bonds,
and signed by the officers who signed the Bonds, stating that no litigation is then pending or to the
knowledge of such officers threatened to restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of the Bonds or the levy
or collection of taxes to pay the Bonds or the interest thereon, or questioning the validity of the statutes or
the proceedings under which the Bonds are issued, and that neither the corporate existence or boundaries of
the County nor the title of any of said officers to their respective offices, is being contested; and (4) the
County's Continuing Disclosure Certificate substantially in the form described in the Preliminary Official
Statement.

The successful bidder is advised of the responsibility to file an annual disclosure statement on
political contributions with the New Jersey Election Law Enforcement Commission pursuant to N.J.S.A.
19:44A-20.13 (P.L. 20085, ¢.271, s.3) if the successful bidder receives contracts in excess of $50,000 from
public entities in a calendar year. It is the successful bidder’s responsibility to determine if filing is
necessary. Additional information on this requirement is available from ELEC at 888-313-3532 or at
www.elec.state.nj.us.

Award of the Bonds to the successful bidder or rejection of all bids is expected to be made within
two (2) hours after announcement of the bids, but such successful bidder may not withdraw its proposal
until after 5:30 p.m. of the day of such bid-opening and then only if such award has not been made prior to
the withdrawal.

Copies of the Preliminary Official Statement may be obtained from the County's financial advisor,
PFM Financial Advisors LLC, 1735 Market Street, 43rd Floor, Philadelphia, PA 19103, Telephone 215-
567-6100, Attention: Geoffrey Stewart.

DATED: August _,2019 BY: /s/ Julie N. Tarrant
County Comptroller,
County of Ocean, New Jersey
Section 11. Term Bond Option. As provided in the Notice of Sale, a bidder may aggregate
consecutive principal maturities of the Bonds, for which such bidder bids the same interest rate, into term
Introduced on| August 21, 2019
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bonds. Each such term bond will be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption as provided in Section
5(C) hereof, in the amounts and on the dates that would have been consecutive serial maturities had no term
bond designation been made.

Section 12. Delegation of Power to Award and Sell Bonds. The County Comptroller is
delegated on behalf of the County the power to award and sell the Bonds to the successful bidder. The
County Comptroller shall report the results of such sale in writing at the next meeting of the Board of
Chosen Freeholders.

Section 13. Adjustment to Maturity Schedule. The County Comptroller is hereby delegated
the authority (if the County Comptroller deems it to be in the best interests of the County), up to 24 hours
prior to the date of advertised sale and within 4 hours after the award of the Bonds, to adjust the maturity
schedule of the Bonds in increments of $1,000, provided however, that after the award of the Bonds (i) no
maturity schedule adjustment shall exceed 10% upward or downward of the principal for any maturity as
specified herein (or as adjusted prior to the date of advertised sale) and (ii) the aggregate adjustment to the
maturity schedule shall not exceed 10% upward or downward of the aggregate principal amount of bonds
as specified herein (or as adjusted prior to the date of advertised sale) and as adjusted will not exceed the
amount of the Ordinances. NOTICE OF ANY ADJUSTMENT TO THE MATURITY SCHEDULE OF
THE BONDS PRIOR TO THE DATE OF THE ADVERTISED SALE SHALL BE GIVEN BY CAUSING
A NOTICE THEREOF TO BE PUBLISHED ON TM3 NEWS SERVICE. The dollar amount bid by the
successful bidder shall be adjusted to reflect any adjustments in the aggregate principal amount of bonds to
be issued. The adjusted bid price will reflect changes in the dollar amount of the underwriter’s discount
and the original issue premium or discount, but will not change the per bond underwriter’s discount as
calculated from the bid and the Initial Public Offering Prices required to be delivered to the County. Notice
of any such adjustment shall be given to the successful bidder in the manner specified in the Notice of Sale.
In the event of any such adjustment, the dollar amount (but not the interest rate or rates) bid by the
successful bidder will be adjusted as provided in the Notice of Sale.

Section 14. Postponement of Sale. The County Comptroller is hereby delegated the
authority (if the County Comptroller deems it to be in the best interests of the County) (i) to postpone from
time to time the sale of the Bonds from the date specified in the Notice of Sale (or, in the case of a
rescheduled sale, from such rescheduled date), in each case upon not less than 24 hours’ notice, and (ii) to
reschedule such sale upon not less than 48 hours’ notice. Notice of any such postponement and
rescheduling shall be given in the manner specified in the Notice of Sale. In the event of any such
postponement and rescheduling, the County Comptroller may (and shall, if required by the Local Bond
Law) cause a revised Notice of Sale and/or a revised summary thereof to be prepared and published.

Section 15. Agreements with The Depository Trust Company. The Comptroller is hereby
authorized to make representations and warranties, to enter into agreements and to make all arrangements

with DTC, as may be necessary in order to provide that this issue of the County's bonds will be eligible for
deposit with DTC, and to satisfy any obligations undertaken in connection therewith.

Section 16. Authorization for Official Statement. The Comptroller, Chief Financial Officer,
Clerk of the Board of Chosen Freeholders, auditor, bond counsel and other officers, agents and employees
of the County are authorized to prepare and distribute information with respect to the County in connection
with the sale of the bonds in such form as may be approved by the Comptroller. The preparation and
distribution of a Preliminary Official Statement pertaining to the bonds is hereby authorized. The
Comptroller is hereby authorized to deem final the Preliminary Official Statement for purposes of Rule
15¢2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Director of the Board of Chosen Freeholders,
the County Administrator, the Chief Financial Officer and the Clerk of the Board of Chosen Freeholders
are hereby authorized and directed to execute a final official statement relating to the bonds, with such
changes, revisions, insertions and omissions from the Preliminary Official Statement as may be approved
by the Comptroller.

Section 17. Pledge of County. The full faith and credit of the County of Ocean in the State
of New Jersey is hereby pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest on said bonds and said
bonds shall be general obligations of the County payable as to principal and interest from ad valorem taxes
which may be assessed on the taxable property within said County without limitation as to rate or amount.

Section 18. Determination of Average Period of Usefulness. It is hereby determined and
stated that the average period of usefulness of the several purposes for which the Bonds are to be issued
under the Ordinances described in Section 1 above, according to their respective lives, as determined in
said Ordinances, taking into consideration the respective amounts of bonds to be issued for said several
purposes, is a period of 19.34992 years, computed from the date of said Bonds.

Section 19. Investment of Proceeds of Bonds. The County will make no use of the proceeds
of the Bonds which would cause the bonds to be arbitrage bonds; and the County hereby imposes on itself
and all officers having custody or control of the proceeds of the bonds, throughout the term of the bonds,
the obligation to comply with applicable requirements of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended (the "Code") and Regulations Sections 1.148-0 through 1.148-11 and 1.150-1 and
1.150-2, and all other applicable regulations of the Internal Revenue Service, so that the Bonds will not be
or become arbitrage bonds.
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Section 20. Tax Covenants. In order to maintain the exclusion from gross income for
federal income tax purposes of interest on the Bonds, and for no other purpose, the County covenants to
comply with each applicable requirement of the Code, applicable to the bonds,, and the County covenants
not to take any action or fail to take any action which would cause the interest on the bonds to lose the
exclusion from gross income for federal income taxation purposes under Section 103 of the Code. In
furtherance of the covenant contained in the preceding sentence, the County agrees to comply with the
Arbitrage Certificate and Letter of Instructions (the "Letter of Instructions") as to the Code delivered by
Bond Counsel on the date of initial issuance and delivery of the Bonds, as such letter may be amended from
time to time, as a source of guidance for achieving compliance with the Code.

The County covenants and agrees with the holders of the Bonds that the County shall not take any
action or omit to take any action, which action or omission, if reasonably expected on the date of initial
issuance and delivery of the bonds, would cause the bonds to be "private activity bonds" or "arbitrage
bonds" within the meaning of Sections 141(a) and 148, respectively, of the Code, or any successor

provision.

Section 21. Bonds Not Federally Guaranteed. The County covenants that it will take no
action which would cause the Bonds to be federally guaranteed (within the meaning of Section 149(b) of
the Code).

Section 22. Continuing Disclosure. A Continuing Disclosure Certificate in substantially the

following form is hereby approved, and the County Comptroller is hereby authorized and directed to
execute and deliver a Continuing Disclosure Certificate on behalf of the County in substantially such form,
with such insertions and changes therein as the County Comptroller may approve, such approval to be
evidenced by his/her execution thereof’

(Form of Continuing Disclosure Certificate for the Bonds)
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Disclosure Certificate") is executed and delivered by
the County of Ocean, New Jersey (the "Issuer") in connection with the issuance by the Issuer of
$ principal amount of its General Improvement Bonds, Series 2019 (the "Bonds™). The Bonds
are being issued pursuant to Bond Ordinances (the "Ordinances") duly adopted by the Board of Chosen
Freeholders of the Issuer (the “Board”) on various dates, and a resolution duly adopted by the Board on
August 21, 2019 (the "Resolution"). The Bonds are dated September 1, 2019 and shall mature on
September 1 in the years 2020 through 2038, inclusive. The Issuer covenants and agrees as follows:

Section 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being
executed and delivered by the Issuer for the benefit of the Bondholders and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds
and in order to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with the provisions of Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5)
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as the same may be amended from time to time ("Exchange Act").

Section 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Resolution, which
apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this Section,
the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

"Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and as
described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

"Beneficial Owner" shall mean any person which (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote
or consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons holding Bonds
through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the owner of any Bonds for
federal income tax purposes.

"Bondholder” shall mean any person who is the registered owner of any Bond, including holders
of beneficial interests in the Bonds.

"Continuing Disclosure Information”" shall mean: (i) the Annual Report; (ii) any notice required to
be filed with the Repositories pursuant to Section 5 hereof; and (iii) any notice of an event required to be
filed with the Repositories pursuant to Section 3(c) hereof.

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean the Issuer, or any successor Dissemination Agent designated in
writing by the Issuer and which has filed with the Issuer a written acceptance of such designation.

"EMMA" shall mean the Electronic Municipal Market Access System ("EMMA"), an internet
based filing system created and maintained by the MSRB in accordance with the SEC Release, pursuant to
which issuers of tax-exempt bonds, including the Bonds, and other filers on behalf of the such issuers shall
upload Continuing Disclosure Information to assist underwriters in complying with the Rule and to provide
the general public with access to such Continuing Disclosure Information.

"Financial Obligation” means a (i) debt obligation; (ii) derivative instrument entered into in
connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation;
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or (iii) guarantee of (i) or (it). The term "Financial Obligation" shall not include municipal securities as to
which a final official statement has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule.

"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure Certificate.

"MSRB" shall mean the Municipal Bonds Rulemaking Board established pursuant to Section
15B(b)(1) of the Exchange Act.

"National Repository" shall mean the MSRB, through the internet facilities of EMMA, or any
other public or private repository or entity that shall hereafter be designated by the SEC as a repository for
purposes of the Rule.

"Official Statement” shall mean the Official Statement of the County, dated , 2019,
relating to the Bonds.

"Participating Underwriter" shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Bonds required to
comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds.

"Repository" or "Repositories” shall mean each National Repository and each State Repository, if
any.

"Rule" shall mean Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) adopted by the SEC under the Exchange Act, as the same
may be amended from time to time.

"SEC Release"” shall mean Release No. 34-59062, of the SEC, dated December 5, 2008.

"State” shall mean the State of New Jersey.

"State Repository” shall mean any public or private repository or entity designated by the State as
a state repository for the purpose of the Rule and recognized as such by the SEC. As of the date of this

Disclosure Certificate, there is no State Repository.

Section 3. Provision of Annual Reports.

(a) The Issuer shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, not later than nine
(9) months after the end of its fiscal year, commencing with the report for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2019, provide to the MSRB in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB, an
Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure
Certificate. The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents
comprising a package, and may cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this
Disclosure Certificate; provided that the audited financial statements of the Issuer may be
submitted separately from the balance of the Annual Report and later than the date required
above for the filing of the Annual Report if they are not available by that date. If the Issuer's
fiscal year changes, it shall give notice of such change to MSRB. Any and all items that must be
included in the Annual Report may be incorporated by reference from other information that is
available to the public on the MSRB's Internet Web site, or that has been filed with the SEC.

() Not later than fifteen (15) Business Days prior to the date specified in subsection
(a) for making available or providing the Annual Report, the Issuer shall provide the Annual
Report to the Dissemination Agent (if other than the Issuer). If the Issuer is unable to provide to
the MSRB an Annual Report by the date required in subsection (a), the Issuer shall, in a timely
manner, send a notice to the MSRB in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A, in an
electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB. All documents provided to the MSRB shall be
accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB.

(c) The Dissemination Agent shall file a report with the Issuer certifying that the
Annual Report has been provided to the MSRB pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement, stating
the date it was provided.

Section 4. Content of Annual Reports. The Issuer's Annual Report shall contain or include
by reference the following:

1. The audited financial statements of the Issuer for the prior fiscal year, prepared
in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards (GAAS) as from time to time
in effect, and as prescribed by the Division of Local Government Services in the
Department of Community Affairs of the State pursuant to Chapter 5 of Title 40A of the
New Jersey Statutes. If the Issuer's audited financial statements are not available by the
time the Annual Report is required to be filed pursuant to Section 3(a), the Annual Report
shall contain unaudited financial statements and the audited financial statements shall be
filed in the same manner as the Annual Report when they become available.

2. The financial information and operating data set forth in the Official Statement
(including Appendix A thereto) dated , 2019 prepared in connection with
the sale of the Bonds, under the captions: “Schedule of Bond and Note Maturities”, “Tax

Information”, “Ocean County Leading Tax Ratables - 20197, “County of Ocean
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Statement of Statutory Debt Condition June 5, 2019", “List of Authorized Debt as of June
5, 2019" and “Debt Ratios”.

Section 3. Reporting of Significant Events.
(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the Issuer shall give, or cause to be

given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds:

1. principal and interest payment delinquencies;

2. non-payment related defaults, if material;

3. unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;

4. unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;

5. substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

6. adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed

or final determinations of taxability. Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form
5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax
status of the security, or other material events affecting the tax status of the

Bonds;

7. modifications to rights of Bondholders, if material;

8. Bond Calls, if material and tender offers;

9, defeasances;

10. release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if
material;

11. rating changes.

12. bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar events of the Issuer, which shall

be considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a
receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the Issuer in a proceeding under the
U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in
which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over
substantially all of the assets or business of the Issuer, or if such jurisdiction has
been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in
possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental
authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization,
arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority having
supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the
Issuer;

13. the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Issuer
or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, other than in the
ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake
such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such
actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material;

14. appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a
trustee, if material;

15. incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, if material, or agreement to
covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a
Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of which affect Bondholders, if material;
and

16. default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other
similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of
which reflect financial difficulties.

(b) Whenever the Issuer obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event
described in subsection (a) for which a disclosure obligation is dependent upon materiality, the Issuer shall
as soon as possible determine if such event would be material under applicable federal securities laws.

() If disclosure of a Listed Event is required, the Issuer shall, in a timely manner
not in excess of ten business days after the occurrence of the event, file a notice of such occurrence with the
MSRB in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB. All documents provided to the MSRB shall be
accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB.

August 21, 2019

August 21, 2019
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Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Issuer's obligations under this
Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all
of the Bonds. If such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the Issuer shall give
notice of such termination in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c).

Section 7. Dissemination Agent. The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage a
Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate, and may
discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. The
Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in any manner for the content of any notice or report prepared
by the Issuer pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate. The initial Dissemination Agent shall be the Issuer.

Section 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure
Certificate, the Issuer may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this Disclosure
Certificate may be waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied:

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Section 3(a), 4 or 5(a), it
may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal
requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature or status of an obligated person with
respect to the Bonds, or the type of business conducted;

(b) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in the
opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at
the time of the original issuance of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or
interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and

(© The amendment or waiver does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized
bond counsel, materially impair the interests of the Bondholders or Beneficial Owners of the
Bonds.

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer
shall describe such amendment in the next Annual Report, and shall include, as applicable, a narrative
explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or in the case of a
change of accounting principles, on the presentation) of financial information or operating data being
presented by the Issuer. In addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed in
preparing financial statements, (i) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed
Event under Section 5(c), and (ii) the Annual Report for the year in which the change is made should
present a comparison (in narrative form and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) between the financial
statements as prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the
former accounting principles.

Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed
to prevent the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth
in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other information in
any notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure
Certificate. If the Issuer chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence
of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer
shall have no obligation under this Disclosure Certificate to update such information or include it in any
future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event.

Section 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the Issuer to comply with any provision of
this Disclosure Certificate any Bondholder or Beneficial Owner of the Bonds may take such actions as
may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandamus or specific performance by court order, to
cause the Issuer to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate. A default under this
Disclosure Certificate shall not be deemed an Event of Default on the Bonds, and the sole remedy under
this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the Issuer to comply with this Disclosure Certificate
shall be an action to compel performance.

Section 11. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination
Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Certificate, and the Issuer

agrees to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, directors, employees and agents,
harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities which it may incur arising out of or in the exercise or
performance of its powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses (including reasonable
attorneys’ fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but excluding liabilities due to the
Dissemination Agent's gross negligence or wilful misconduct. The obligations of the Issuer under this
Section 11 shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent and payment of the Bonds.

Section 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the
Issuer, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriters and the Bondholders and Beneficial
Owners from time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

Dated: ;2019
COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY
By:
Julie N. Tarrant, County Comptroller
Introduced o August 21, 2019
Adopted on: August 21, 2019

Official Resolution#: 20({(8009138;v2/ 94-63-/068)
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EXHIBIT A

NOTICE OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT

Name of Issuer: County of Ocean, New Jersey
Name of Bond Issue: $ General Improvement Bonds, Series 2019
Date of Issuance: , 2019

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Issuer has not provided an Annual Report with respect to the above-
named Bonds as required by Section 3(a) of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate dated
2019. The Issuer anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed by 520 .

k]

Dated: ,20

COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY

By:

Name:
Title:

Introduced on August 21, 2019
Adopted on: August 21, 2019

Official Reso wtion#: 204RA0b188:v2/ 94-63-/068}
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Section 23. Defeasance. (A) If the County shall pay or shall cause to be paid or if there shall be
paid otherwise to the owner of all bonds the principal and the redemption premium, if applicable, and the
interest due or to become due thereon at the times and in the manner stipulated therein and in this
Resolution, then, at the option of the County, the pledge of the County contained herein and all covenants,
agreements and other obligations of the County to the owners of the bonds thereupon shall cease, shall
terminate, shall become void and shall be discharged and satisfied. In such event and upon the request of
the County, any paying agent shall pay over or shall deliver to the County all moneys, funds or securities
held by them pursuant to this Resolution that are not required for the payment of the principal of or
premium and interest due or to become due on the bonds. If the County shall pay or shall cause to be paid
or if there shall be paid otherwise to the owners of all outstanding bonds of a particular maturity the
principal of and the redemption premium, if any, and interest due or to become due thereon, at the time and
in the manner stipulated therein and in this Resolution, such bonds shall cease to be entitled to any lien,
benefit or security under this Resolution, and all covenants, agreements and obligations of the County to
the owners of such bonds shall thereupon cease, shall terminate and shall become void and be discharged
and satisfied.

(B) Bonds or interest instaliments for the payment or the redemption of which moneys shall
have been deposited with any bank, trust company or national banking association serving as escrow agent
(the "Escrow Agent") by or on behalf of the County whether at or prior to the maturity or the redemption
date of such bonds, shall be deemed to have been paid within the meaning and with the effect expressed in
subsection (A) of this Section. All outstanding bonds or any maturity of the bonds shall be deemed to have
been paid within the meaning and with the effect expressed in subsection (A) of this Section if (1) in case
any of such bonds are to be redeemed on any date prior to their maturity, the County shall have given to the
Escrow Agent irrevocable instruction to publish notice of redemption of such bonds on such date, (2) there
shall have been deposited with the Escrow Agent either moneys in an amount that shall be sufficient or
direct obligations of the United States of America or securities unconditionally guaranteed as to the timely
payment by the United States of America not redeemable at the option of the issuer the principal of and the
interest on which when due will provide moneys which, together with the moneys, if any, deposited with
the Escrow Agent at the same time, shall be sufficient, to pay when due the principal and any redemption
premium and the interest due and to become due on such bonds on and prior to the redemption date or the
maturity date thereof, as the case may be, and (3) in the event such bonds are not by their terms subject to
redemption within the next succeeding sixty (60) days, the County shall have given the Escrow Agent in
form satisfactory to it irrevocable instructions to publish, as soon as practicable, at least twice, at an interval
of not less than seven (7) days between publications, in a publication devoted primarily to financial news or
the subject of state and municipal bonds and published in the City of New York or in New Jersey a notice
to the owners of such bonds that the deposit required by clause (2) above has been made with the Escrow
Agent and that such bonds are deemed to have been paid in accordance with this Section and stating such
maturity or redemption date upon which moneys are to be available for payment of the principal of and the
redemption premium, if any, on such bonds. For so long as the book-entry only form remains in effect and
the bonds are registered in the name of DTC or its nominee, the County shall comply with such additional
or supplemental requirements as may be imposed by DTC in connection with any advance refunding of the
bonds whether such additional or supplemental requirements are specified in the Letter of Representations
by and between the County and DTC or otherwise.

Section 24. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect upon adoption hereof.
The foregoing resolution was adopted by the following vote:

AYES:
NAYES:

Introduced on}; August 21, 2019

Adopted on: August 21, 2019

Official Resoluftion#: 20/R8Q8%9188;v2/ 94-63-/068}
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Adopted on:
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CERTIFICATE

1, Mary Ann Cilento, Clerk of the Board of Chosen Freeholders of the County of Ocean, State of
New Jersey, HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing annexed extract from the minutes of a meeting of the
governing body of the County duly called and held on August 21, 2019 has been compared by me with the
original minutes as officially recorded in my office in the Minute Book of the governing body and is a true,
complete and correct copy thereof and of the whole of the original minutes so far as they relate to the
subject matters referred to in the extract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of the
County this day of , 2019,

Mary Ann Cilento, Clerk of the Board of Chosen Freeholders
[SEAL]

August 21, 2019

August 21, 2019

ton#: 20190049288, v2/ 94-63-/068}
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Ocean County Board of Chosen freeholders

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Ave

OCEAN COUNTY FREEHOLDERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Freeholdt-ar Director Virginia E. Haines 08754-2191
Deputy Director John P. Kelly Tel: 732-929-2005
Freeholder Gerry P. Little Fax: 732-505-1918

Freeholder Gary Quinn

Freeholder Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda

Date: August 21, 2019 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing the sale of $3,400,000 College Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2019.

Official Resolution# [2019001127

Meeting Date 08/21/2019

Introduced Date 08/21/2019

Adopted Date 08/21/2019

Agenda ltem h-5

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted

FREEHOLDER gz; a | ol ls 5
EREBcE 2

Haines v v

Kelly v v v

Little v v

Quinn v

Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

WAL Lendo

Clerk Of The Board



Introduced on
Adopted on:
Official Re?o(l)q

Res-Pg:h.5-2

RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE
OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN'S COLLEGE CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2019 AUTHORIZED BY A
BOND ORDINANCE HERETOFORE ADOPTED TO FINANCE
THE FISCAL YEAR 2019 CAPITAL RENEWAL AND
REPLACEMENT FACILITIES PROJECTS AT OCEAN
COUNTY COLLEGE IN THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, AND
PROVIDING FOR THE FORM, MATURITY DATES AND
OTHER DETAILS OF SAID BONDS AND DESIGNATING A
PAYING AGENT FOR SAID BONDS.

WHEREAS, the Board of Chosen Freeholders of the County of Ocean, New Jersey (the
"County"), has, on June 6, 2019, finally adopted Bond Ordinance No. 2019-18 (the "Ordinance")
authorizing bonds and bond anticipation notes to finance a portion of the cost of the capital renewal and
replacement facilities improvement project at Ocean County College in said County; and

WHEREAS, the Board of School Estimate of Ocean County College (the "College™) has
heretofore determined by a resolution adopted March 27, 2019, that certain amounts of money are
necessary for certain capital projects at the College, and the Board of Chosen Freeholders of the County has
heretofore determined, by the Ordinance, to appropriate and borrow such amounts by the issuance of bonds
or notes of the County pursuant to the Local Bond Law and the hereinafter-defined County College Bond
Act; and

WHEREAS, it is desirable and necessary to issue the County's college capital improvement bonds
pursuant to the Ordinance, in an aggregate principal amount of $3,400,000, unless adjusted pursuant to
Section 12 hereof, and it is deemed advisable and in the best interests of the County to provide for the sale,
form, maturity date and other matters in connection with the bonds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS OF
THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Authority for Resolution. Pursuant to the Local Bond Law of the State of New
Jersey, constituting Chapter 2 of Title 40A of the New Jersey Statutes (the "Act"), the Board of Chosen
Freeholders has previously adopted the Ordinance, which Ordinance authorized the issuance of bonds in
the amount of $3,400,000, and the Board of Chosen Freeholders has determined to issue at this time,
pursuant to said Ordinance and Chapter 12 of the Laws of New Jersey of 1971, effective January 28, 1971,
and the acts amendatory thereof and supplemental thereto (the "County College Bond Act"), bonds in the
amount of $3,400,000, unless adjusted pursuant to Section 12 hereof. To the extent any premium is
received by the County from the sale of the bonds, such premium shall be allocated to the appropriation
under said Ordinance.

Section 2. Authorization of Bonds. In accordance with the Act and the County College
Bond Act, and for the purpose of raising funds to finance the purposes set forth in the Ordinance, there
shall be issued bonds of the County in the aggregate principal amount of $3,400,000, unless adjusted
pursuant to Section 12 hereof, pursuant to the Ordinance. All of said bonds shall constitute a single issue
and shall be designated "College Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2019" (the "College Bonds"). The
period of usefulness of the improvements financed by the proceeds of the Bonds is 30 years.

Section 3. Details of Bonds. The College Bonds will be issued in the form of one
certificate for the aggregate principal amount of College Bonds maturing in each year and will be payable
as to both principal and interest in lawful money of the United States of America. Each certificate will be
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), which will
act as securities depository. The certificates will be on deposit with DTC. DTC will be responsible for
maintaining a book entry system for recording the interests among its participants. The participants will be
responsible for maintaining records regarding the beneficial ownership interests in the bonds on behalf of
individual purchasers. Individual purchases may be made in the principal amount of $1,000 or more
through book entries made on the books and records of The DTC and its participants. The College Bonds
will bear interest payable semiannually at a rate or rates per annum, expressed in a multiple of 1/8 or 1/20
of 1%, as proposed by the successful bidder in accordance with the Notice of Sale authorized herein. The
College Bonds shall be substantially in the form as provided in this Resolution, with such omissions,
insertions and variations as are properly required. Said College Bonds shall be dated the date of delivery,
shall bear interest at the rate or rates specified by the successful bidder therefor in accordance with the
Notice of Sale hereinafter provided for, said interest to be payable on March 1 and September 1,
commencing on March 1, 2020, and shall mature (unless adjusted by the County Comptroller pursuant to
Section 12 hereof) on September 1 in the following years and amounts:

Year Principal Amount
2020 $680,000
2021 680,000
2022 680,000
2023 680,000
2024 680,000
Section 4. Certificated Bonds: Successor Securities Depository. In the event the County

determines that it is in the best interests of the beneficial owners of the College Bonds (the actual

August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019
tion#: 2019001127
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Adopted on:
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purchasers of the College Bonds) that they be able to obtain certificated bonds, the County may notify DTC
of the availability of bond certificates. In such event, the County will appoint a paying agent and the
County will issue, transfer and exchange bond certificates as required by DTC and others in appropriate
amounts. DTC may determine to discontinue providing its services with respect to the bonds at any time
by giving a reasonable amount of notice in writing to the County and discharging its responsibilities with
respect thereto. In the event of such determination, if the County fails to identify another qualified
securities depository as successor to DTC, the County will appoint a paying agent and the County will issue
and deliver replacement bonds in the form of fully registered certificates. Whenever DTC requests the
County to do so, the County will cooperate with DTC in taking appropriate action (a) to make available one
or more separate certificates evidencing the bonds to any participant of DTC having bonds credited to its
DTC account or (b) to arrange for another securities depository to maintain custody of certificates
evidencing the bonds.

Section 5. Redemption. The College Bonds shall not be subject to redemption prior to
maturity.
Section 6. Payment of College Bonds. The principal of and the interest on the College

Bonds will be paid by TD Bank, National Association, Cherry Hill, New Jersey, as the County's paying
agent (the "Paying Agent"), to DTC by or on behalf of the County on their respective due dates. Interest on
the College Bonds will be credited to the participants of DTC as listed on the records of DTC as of each
next preceding February 15 and August 15 (the "Record Dates" for the payment of interest on the College
Bonds).

Section 7. Execution of Bonds. Said College Bonds shall be executed in the name of the
County by the manual or facsimile signatures of the Freeholder-Director and the Chief Financial Officer
and the seal of the Board of Chosen Frecholders shall be affixed, imprinted, engraved or reproduced
thereon and attested by the manual signature of the Clerk or a Deputy Clerk of the Board of Chosen
Freeholders. If any officer whose signature appears on the College Bonds ceases to hold office before the
delivery of the Bonds, his/her signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes. In
addition, any College Bond may bear the signature of, or may be signed by, such persons as at the actual
time of the signing of such bond shall be the proper officers to sign such College Bond although at the date
of such bond such persons may not have been such officers.

Section 8. Reissuance of Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost Bonds. In case any College
Bond shall become mutilated or destroyed, stolen or lost the County shall execute and deliver a new bond

of like tenor and amount as the bond so mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost, in exchange and substitution for
such mutilated bond and upon surrender of such mutilated bond, or in lieu of and substitution for the bond
destroyed, stolen or lost upon filing with the County evidence satisfactory to the County that such bond has
been destroyed, stolen or lost and proof of ownership thereof, and upon furnishing the County with
indemnity satisfactory to it and complying with such other reasonable regulations as the County may
prescribe, and paying such expenses as the County may incur in connection therewith.

Section 9. Form of College Bonds. Subject to the provisions of this Resolution, each
College Bond shall be in substantially the following form, with such omissions, insertions, endorsements
and variations as may be required by the circumstances and be required or permitted by this Resolution or
as may be consistent with this Resolution and necessary or appropriate to conform to the rules and
requirements of any governmental authority or any usage or requirement of law with respect thereto:

(Form of College Bond)
No. $
United States of America
State of New Jersey
COUNTY OF OCEAN
College Capital Improvement Bond, Series 2019

Maturity Date Interest Rate Dated Date CUSIP
September 1, % ,2019

Registered Owner: CEDE & CO.

Principal Sum: DOLLARS

The COUNTY OF OCEAN (hereinafter referred to as the "County"), a political subdivision of the
State of New Jersey, for value received, hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner named above, or
registered assigns, the Principal Sum stated above on the Maturity Date specified above, and to pay interest
on such Principal Sum from the Dated Date specified above at the Interest Rate per annum specified above,
computed upon the basis of a 360 day year consisting of twelve 30 day months and payable on March 1,
2020, and semi-annually thereafter on the first days of September and March in each year until the County's
obligation with respect to the payment of such Principal Sum shall be discharged, but only in the case of
interest due at or before maturity of this bond. The principal of and the interest on this bond will be paid to
Cede & Co. as nominee of The Depository Trust Company. Interest on this bond will be credited to the
participants of The Depository Trust Company listed on the records of The Depository Trust Company as
of each next preceding February 15 and August 15 (the "Record Dates" for the payment of interest on the

bonds).
August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019

Official Resolgtion#: 2019001127
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This bond is not transferable as to principal or interest except to an authorized nominee of The
Depository Trust Company. The Depository Trust Company shall be responsible for maintaining the bock
entry system for recording the interests of its participants or the transfers of the interests among its
participants. The participants are responsible for maintaining records regarding the beneficial ownership
interests in the bonds on behalf of individual purchasers.

This bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the County of like date and tenor, except as
to number, denomination, interest rate, CUSIP number and maturity date, issued in the aggregate principal
amount of § under and pursuant to the Local Bond Law of the State of New Jersey and the
County College Bond Act (as hereinafter defined) and by virtue of a resolution adopted by the County's
governing body on August _ , 2019 (the "Resolution"), and by virtue of the bond ordinance referred to
therein in all respects duly approved and published as required by law.

The bonds shall not be subject to redemption prior to maturity.

The full faith and credit of the County are hereby pledged for the punctual payment of the
principal of and interest on this bond according to its terms. This bond shall also be entitled to the benefits
of Chapter 12 of the Laws of New Jersey of 1971, and the acts amendatory thereof and supplemental
thereto (the “County College Bond Act”).

In the event the County determines that it is in the best interests of the beneficial owners of the
bonds (the actual purchasers of the bonds) that they be able to obtain certificated bonds, the County may
notify The Depository Trust Company ("DTC") of the availability of bond certificates. In such event, the
County will appoint a paying agent and the County will issue, transfer and exchange bond certificates as
required by DTC and others in appropriate amounts. DTC may determine to discontinue providing its
services with respect to the bonds at any time by giving a reasonable amount of notice in writing to the
County and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto. In the event of such determination, if the
County fails to identify another qualified securities depository as successor to DTC, the County will
appoint a paying agent and the County will issue and deliver replacement bonds in the form of fully
registered certificates. Whenever DTC requests the County to do so, the County will cooperate with DTC
in taking appropriate action (a) to make available one or more separate certificates evidencing the bonds to
any participant of DTC having bonds credited to its DTC account or (b) to arrange for another securities
depository to maintain custody of certificates evidencing the bonds.

It is hereby certified and recited that all conditions, acts and things required by the Constitution
and statutes of the State of New Jersey to exist, to have happened or to have been performed precedent to or
in the issuance of this bond, exist, have happened and have been performed and that the amount and terms
of this bond do not exceed any limitation imposed thereon by said Constitution or statutes.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the COUNTY OF OCEAN, has caused this bond to be signed by the
manual or facsimile signature of its Freeholder-Director and its Chief Financial Officer, the corporate seal
of the Board of Chosen Freeholders to be hereunto affixed, imprinted, engraved or reproduced hereon and
to be attested by the manual signature of the Clerk or Deputy Clerk of the Board of Chosen Freeholders, all
asofthe _ dayof , 2019,

ATTEST:

(SEAL) Freeholder-Director
Chief Financial Officer

(Deputy) Clerk of the

Board of Chosen Freeholders

Section 10. Sale of College Bonds. Proposals for the College Bonds will be received by the
County on September 5, 2019 until 11:15 a.m., New Jersey time, or at such later date and time as may be
established in accordance with Section 13 hereof, by Julie N. Tarrant, the County's Comptroller through the
“PARITY Electronic Bid System” (PARITY) in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the
Notice of Sale authorized herein. Such proposals shall be received and announced at the County
Administration Building, Room 304 Conference Room, Third Floor, 101 Hooper Avenue, Toms River,
New Jersey, in accordance with the Notice of Sale. The Clerk of the Board of Chosen Freeholders is
hereby directed to arrange for the publication of the Notice of Sale in The Asbury Park Press, a newspaper
published and circulating in the County, and for the publication of the Notice of Sale (or summaries thereof
as provided by law) in The Bond Buyer, and/or such other nationally recognized local government bond
marketing publication or electronic information service carrying municipal bond notices and devoted
primarily to the subject of state and municipal bonds The notice shall be in substantially the following
form:

(Form of Notice of Sale)
NOTICE OF SALE
$3,400,000*
COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY
COLLEGE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2019

August 21, 2019
August 21, 2019

Official Resolgifion#: 2019001127
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(BOOK-ENTRY ONLY ISSUE) (NON-CALLABLE)

ELECTRONIC PROPOSALS will be received and announced by Julie N. Tarrant, Comptroller of
the County of Ocean (the "County" or the "Issuer"), at the County Administration Building Room 304
Conference Room, Third Floor, 101 Hooper Avenue, Toms River, New Jersey, through the PARITY
Electronic Bid System (“PARITY”) of IPREO LLC, as described herein. The College Capital
Improvement Bonds, Series 2019 (the “College Bonds” or the "Securities") shall mature (unless adjusted
by the County Comptroller as described herein) on September 1 in the following years and amounts:

$3,400,000* College Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2019 maturing on September 1
in the principal amounts set forth below:

Year Principal Amount*
2020 $680,000
2021 680,000
2022 680,000
2023 680,000
2024 680,000

*subject to adjustment

THE COUNTY IS ALSO SELLING ITS $39,880,000* GENERAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS,
SERIES 2019 (THE "GENERAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS"”). THE COUNTY HAS ISSUED A
SEPARATE NOTICE OF SALE FOR THE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS. THE TERMS
OF EACH NOTICE OF SALE WILL APPLY TO EACH SERIES OF BONDS, RESPECTIVELY.

IF THE COMPETITIVE SALE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF TREASURY
REGULATIONS SECTION 1.148-1(f)(3)(i), INCLUDING THE RECEIPT OF THREE BIDS ARE
NOT MET FOR THE COLLEGE BONDS, ALL BIDS WILL BE REJECTED AND THE SALE OF
THE COLLEGE BONDS WILL BE CANCELLED.

All Bids (as defined below) must be submitted in their entirety through PARITY until 11:15
a.m., New Jersey time on September 5, 2019 (see “Bidding Details”). To bid, Bidders (as defined
below) must submit either (i) a certified, treasurer’s or cashier’s check or (ii) complete a wire
transfer, in either case in the amount of $68,000 (the check or wire transfer being hereinafter
referred to as the “Deposit™), to secure the County from any loss resulting from a failure of the
bidder to comply with the terms of its bid. The Deposit must be submitted to the County prior to the
time for submission of bids, and if in the form of a certified, treasurer’s or cashier’s check, at the
following address:

Julie N. Tarrant, County Comptroller
County of Ocean
Department of Finance
Administration Building
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey 08754

If a wire transfer is used for the Deposit, it must be sent according to the following wire
instructions and if the bid is not accepted, the County shall promptly return the Deposit amount to the
unsuccessful bidder. EACH BIDDER MUST PROVIDE THEIR RETURN WIRE INSTRUCTIONS:

TD Bank, N.A., Toms River, NJ
ABA#: 031201360
Credit To: County of Ocean
Bill Committee Clearing
Acct# 6855093280

The use of PARITY shall be at the Bidder’s risk and expense, and the County shall have no liability
with respect thereto.

If a check is used, it must be a certified, treasurer’s or cashier’s check payable to the County and
such check (together with a name and return address) should be sent to Julie N. Tarrant, County
Comptroller, County Administration Building, Department of Finance, 101 Hooper Avenue, Toms River,
New Jersey 08754. Checks of unsuccessful bidders will be returned upon the award of the College Bonds.
Any bidder that does not have a representative present at the bid announcement is requested to include with
its good faith deposit overnight packaging or other return envelope for the return of its Deposit (if not the
successful bidder). In the absence of other arrangements, the check of any unsuccessful bidder will be
returned by certified first class mail to such name and return address as specified by such bidder when such
Deposit was provided. By submitting a proposal for the College Bonds, each bidder shall be deemed to
have accepted any and all risks of loss associated with the return of its Deposit. Upon return of its Deposit,
each such unsuccessful bidder shall acknowledge same by signing and returning a receipt to such effect
provided by the County. If a wire transfer is used, such transfer must be completed and confirmed received
by the County prior to the opening of the bids.
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The Deposit of the winning bidder will be applied to the purchase price of the College Bonds. In
the event the winning bidder fails to comply with the terms of its accepted bid, the Deposit will be retained
by the County as liquidated damages. The winning bidder shall not be entitled to any interest earnings in
respect of the County.

The College Bonds are to be issued in book-entry only form and all bidders for the College Bonds
must be participants of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, or affiliated with its
participants. The College Bonds will be issued in the form of one certificate for the aggregate principal
amount of the College Bonds maturing in each year and will be payable as to both principal and interest in
lawful money of the United States of America. Each certificate will be registered in the name of Cede &
Co. as nominee of The Depository Trust Company (collectively, "DTC"). The certificates will be on
deposit with DTC. DTC will be responsible for maintaining a book entry system for recording the interests
of its participants or the transfer of the interests among its participants. The participants will be responsible
for maintaining records regarding the beneficial ownership interests in the College Bonds on behalf of the
individual purchasers. Individual purchases may be made in the principal amount of $1,000 or more
through book entries made on the books and records of DTC and its participants.

The College Bonds will be dated the date of delivery and will bear interest at the rate or rates of
interest per annum specified by the successful bidder therefor in accordance herewith, payable on March 1,
2020 and semiannually thereafter on the first days of September and March in each year until maturity by
payment to DTC.

The College Bonds shall not be subject to redemption prior to maturity.

For so long as the book-entry form remains in effect and the College Bonds are registered in the
name of DTC, the County will not be responsible for mailing of notices of redemption to anyone other than
DTC.

The College Bonds are general obligations of the County and uniess paid from other sources the
County is authorized and required by law to levy ad valorem taxes upon all real property taxable by the
County for the payment of the College Bonds and the interest thereon without limitation as to rate or
amount. The College Bonds shall also be entitled to the benefits of Chapter 12 of the Laws of New Jersey
of 1971, and the acts amendatory thereof and supplemental thereto (the "County College Bond Act").

Each proposal submitted must name the rate or rates of interest per annum to be borne by the
College Bonds and the rate or rates named must be multiples of one-eighth or one-twentieth of one per
centum. The proposed rate or rates of interest to be borne by the College Bonds shall not exceed five
percent (5.00%), 0% not permitted. Not more than one rate may be named for the College Bonds of the
same maturity. There is no limitation on the number of rates that may be named. The difference between
the lowest and the highest rates named in the proposal shall not exceed three per centum (3%). Each
proposal submitted must be for all of the College Bonds and the purchase price specified in the
proposal must equal or exceed $3,400,000, with a maximum bid price of $3,672,000 (108%).

If the competitive sale requirements under the provisions of Treasury Regulations Section
1.148(f)(3)(i), including the receipt of three bids are not met for the College Bonds, all bids will be
rejected and the sale of the College Bonds will be cancelled. If at least three bids for the College
Bonds are received and the competitive sale requirements under the provisions of Treasury
Regulations Section 1.148(f)(3)(i) (defining "competitive sale' for purposes of establishing the issue
price of the Bonds) are met, the College Bonds will be awarded to the bidder on whose bids for the
College Bonds may be made at the lowest true interest cost. Such true interest cost shall be computed
by determining the interest rate, compounded semi-annually, necessary to discount the debt service
payments to the date of the Coliege Bonds and to the price bid, excluding interest accrued to the delivery
date. No proposal shall be considered that offers to pay an amount less than the principal amount of the
College Bonds offered for sale or under which the total loan is made at an interest cost higher than the
lowest true interest cost to the County under any legally acceptable proposal, and if two or more such
bidders offer to pay the lowest true interest cost, then the College Bonds will be sold to one of such bidders
selected by lot from among all such bidders. The purchaser must also pay an amount equal to the interest
(if any) on the College Bonds accrued to the date of payment of the purchase price. The right is reserved to
reject all bids and to reject any bid not complying with this Notice.

It is requested that each proposal be accompanied by a computation of the true interest cost to the
County under the terms of the proposal in accordance with the method of calculation described in the
preceding paragraph (computed to six decimal places), but such computation is not to be considered as part
of the proposal for College Bonds.

The County reserves the right to postpone, upon not less than 24 hours’ notice, the date and time
established for receipt of Bids. ANY SUCH POSTPONEMENT WILL BE PUBLISHED ON TM3
NEWS SERVICES, BEFORE 4:00 P.M. ON THE DAY BEFORE THE SALE. If any date fixed for
the receipt of Bids and the sale of the College Bonds is postponed, an alternative sale date will be
announced through TM3 New Services at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to such alternative sale date. On
any such alternative sale date, any Bidder may submit a Bid for the purchase of the College Bonds in
conformity in all respects with the provisions of the Notice of Sale, except for the date of sale and except
for the changes announced on www.tm3.com at the time the sale date and time are announced.
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Within 30 minutes of the award of the College Bonds, the County must receive from the
successful bidder an email or telecopy (an “Initial Public Offering Price Telecopy”™) stating the prices at
which such successful bidder intends that each stated maturity of the College Bonds shall initially be
offered to the public, which for this purpose excludes bond houses, brokers or similar persons acting in the
capacity of underwriters or wholesalers (the “Initial Public Offering Prices”). The successful bidder shall
make a bona fide initial public offering of the College Bonds at the Initial Public Offering Prices stated in
their Initial Public Offering Price Telecopy.

The County Comptroller of the County may, up to 24 hours prior to the date of advertised sale of
and within 4 hours after the award of the College Bonds, adjust the maturity schedule of the College Bonds
in increments of $1,000, provided however, that after the award of the College Bonds (i) no maturity
schedule adjustment shall exceed 10% upward or downward of the principal for any maturity as specified
herein (or as adjusted prior to the date of advertised sale) and (ii) the aggregate adjustment to the maturity
schedule shall not exceed 10% upward or downward of the aggregate principal amount of bonds as
specified herein (or as adjusted prior to the date of advertised sale) and as adjusted will not exceed the
amount authorized by the Ordinance. NOTICE OF ANY ADJUSTMENT TO THE MATURITY
SCHEDULE OF THE COLLEGE BONDS PRIOR TO THE DATE OF THE ADVERTISED SALE
SHALL BE GIVEN BY CAUSING A NOTICE THEREOF TO BE PUBLISHED ON TM3 NEWS
SERVICES. The dollar amount bid by the successful bidder shall be adjusted to reflect any adjustments in
the aggregate principal amount of College Bonds to be issued. The adjusted bid price will reflect changes
in the dollar amount of the underwriter’s discount and the original issue premium or discount, but will not
change the per bond underwriter’s discount as calculated from the bid and the Initial Public Offering Prices
required to be delivered to the County as stated herein. The County shall notify the successful bidder of the
final maturity schedule and the resulting adjusted purchase price no later than 5:00 p.m., New Jersey time,
on the day of the sale and award of the College Bonds. The interest rate or rates specified by the successful
bidder for each maturity will not be altered. The successful bidder may not withdraw its bid as a result
of any such adjustment, and shall be bound by the terms thereof.

It is expected that the College Bonds will be delivered to the successful bidder on or about
September 19, 2019 at the Trenton, New Jersey offices of GluckWalrath LLP or at such other time or place
mutually agreed upon by the purchaser and the County. AT THE TIME OF DELIVERY OF THE
COLLEGE BONDS, THE SUCCESSFUL BIDDER SHALL PROVIDE FOR THE PAYMENT FOR
THE COLLEGE BONDS THROUGH THE USE OF IMMEDIATELY AVAILABLE FUNDS. No
interest will be paid upon the deposit made by the successful bidder.

Each electronic proposal must be submitted through PARITY. No bidder will see any other bid,
nor will any bidder see the status of its bid relative to other bids—i.e., whether its bid is a leading bid. To
the extent any instructions or directions set forth on PARITY conflict with this Notice of Sale, the terms of
this Notice of Sale shall control. For further information about PARITY, potential bidders may call
PARITY at IPREO at (212) 849-5021. The County may, but is not obligated to, acknowledge its
acceptance in writing of any bid submitted electronically through PARITY. In the event that a bid for the
College Bonds is submitted through PARITY, the bidder further agrees that the County may regard the
electronic transmission of the bid through PARITY (including information about the purchase price of the
College Bonds, the interest rate or rates to be borne by the College Bonds, the term College Bonds, if any,
specified, the initial public offering price of each maturity of the College Bonds and any other information
included in such transmission) as though the same information were submitted on the official “Proposal for
College Bonds” provided by the County and executed by a duly authorized signatory of the bidder. If a bid
submitted electronically through PARITY is accepted by the County, the terms of the official “Proposal for
College Bonds” and this Notice of Sale and the information that is electronically transmitted through
PARITY shall form a contract, and the successful bidder shall be bound by the terms of such contract.

PARITY is not an agent of the County, and the County shall have no liability whatsoever based on
any bidder’s use of PARITY, including but not limited to any failure by PARITY to correctly or timely
transmit information provided by the County or information provided by the bidder.

The County may choose to discontinue use of electronic bidding through PARITY by issuing a
notification to such effect through TM3 News Services, or by other available means, no later than 4:00
p-m., New Jersey Time, on the last business date prior to the bid date.

Once the bids are communicated electronically through PARITY to the County, each bid will
constitute an official “Proposal for College Bonds” and shall be deemed to be an irrevocable offer to
purchase the College Bonds on the terms provided in this Notice of Sale. For purposes of submitting all
“Proposals for College Bonds,” whether electronically or sealed, the time as maintained on PARITY shall
constitute the official time. ,

Each bidder shall be solely responsible to make necessary arrangements to access PARITY for
purposes of submitting its bid in a timely manner and in compliance with the requirements of this Notice of
Sale. Neither the County nor IPREO shall have any duty or obligation to any bidder, or be responsible for
the proper operation of, or have any liability for any delays or interruptions of, or any damages caused by
PARITY. The County is using PARITY as a communication mechanism, and not as the County’s agent, to
conduct the electronic bidding for the College Bonds. By using PARITY each bidder agrees to hold the
County harmless for any harm or damages caused to such bidder in connection with its use of PARITY for
bidding on the College Bonds.

Bidders should be aware of the following bidding details (“Bidding Details™) associated with the

sale of the College Bonds:
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1. BIDDERS MUST SUBMIT GOOD FAITH CHECK OR WIRE TRANSFER IN
THE AMOUNT OF $68,000 PAYABLE TO THE COUNTY OF OCEAN NO LATER THAN 11:15
a.m. ON THE DAY OF SALE. HOWEVER, BIDDERS ARE ENCOURAGED TO SUBMIT
CHECKS ON THE DAY PRIOR TO THE SALE TO ASSURE RECEIPT OF PAYMENT BY THE
COUNTY AT THE FOLLOWING ADDRESS:

Julie N. Tarrant, County Comptroller
County of Ocean
Department of Finance
Administration Building
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey 08754

BIDDERS SUBMITTING GOOD FAITH CHECKS SHOULD ALSO ENCLOSE A RETURN
ENVELOPE FOR USE BY THE COUNTY.

2. All Bids must be submitted through PARITY. No telephone, telefax, telegraph or
personal delivery Bids will be accepted.

3. All Bids for the College Bonds must be submitied on an “All or None” (“AON”) basis.

4 Each proposal submitted must name the rate or rates of interest per annum to be borne by

the College Bonds and the rate or rates named must be multiples of one-eighth or one-twentieth of one per
centum. The proposed rate or rates of interest to be borne by the College Bonds shall not exceed five
percent (5.00%). Not more than one rate may be named for the College Bonds of the same maturity. There
is no limitation on the number of rates that may be named. The difference between the lowest and the
highest rates named in the proposal shall not exceed three per centum (3%). Each proposal submitted
must be for all of the College Bonds and the purchase price specified in the proposal must equal or
exceed $3,400,000, with a maximum bid price of $3,672,000 (108%). The College Bonds will be
awarded to the bidder on whose bid the total loan may be made at the lowest true interest cost (as such term
is defined herein). The purchaser must also pay an amount equal to the interest on the College Bonds
accrued to the date of payment of the purchase price.

5. Bidders are only permitted to submit Bids for the College Bonds during the bidding
period.
Definitions
“Bid” any confirmed purchase offer received by PARITY on or before the proposal submission
deadline.
“Bidder” any firm registered and approved for participation in sale.
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“Winning Bid” any purchase offer made by a Bidder and received by PARITY that, at the end of the
bidding time period, results in the lowest True Interest Cost that is acceptable to the
County.

“True Interest Cost” or “TIC” computed by determining the interest rate, compounded semi-annually,
necessary to discount the debt service payments to the date of the bonds and to the price
bid, excluding interest accrued to the delivery. The True Interest Cost serves as the basis
for awarding bonds to winning Bidders.

The successful bidder may, at its option, refuse to accept the College Bonds if prior to their
delivery any income tax law of the United States of America shall provide that the interest thereon is
includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes, or shall be so includable at a future date. In
such case the deposit made by the bidder shall be returned and it will be relieved of its contractual
obligations arising from the acceptance of its proposal.

If the College Bonds qualify for issuance of any policy of municipal bond insurance or
commitment therefor at the option of a bidder, any purchase of such insurance or commitment therefor
shall be at the sole option and expense of the bidder and any increased costs of issuance of the College
Bonds resulting by reason of such insurance, unless otherwise paid, shall be paid by such bidder. Any
failure of the College Bonds to be so insured or of any such policy of insurance to be issued shall not in any
way relieve the purchaser of its contractual obligations arising from the acceptance of its proposal for the
purchase of the College Bonds.

Establishment of Issue Price
The Issuer intends that the provisions of Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(f)(3)(i) (defining

“competitive sale” for purposes of establishing the issue price of the Securities) will apply to the initial sale
of the Securities (the “Competitive Sale Requirements”) because:

§)) the Issuer shall disseminate this Notice of Sale to potential
Underwriters in a manner that is reasonably designed to reach potential
Underwriters;

2 all bidders shall have an equal opportunity to bid;

3) the Issuer may receive bids from at least three Underwriters of
municipal bonds who have established industry reputations for underwriting
new issuances of municipal bonds; and

4) the Issuer anticipates awarding the sale of the Securities to the
bidder who submits a firm offer to purchase the Securities at the highest price
(or lowest interest cost), as set forth in this Notice of Sale.

Any bid submitted pursuant to the Notice of Sale shall be considered a firm offer for the purchase of the
Securities, as specified in the bid.

In the event that the Competitive Sale Requirements are not satisfied for the College Bonds,
all bids will be rejected and the sale of the Bonds will be cancelled.

In the event that the Competitive Sale Requirements are satisfied, the winning bidder shall assist
the Issuer in establishing the issue price of the Securities and shall execute and deliver to the Issuer at
Closing an “issue price” or similar certificate setting forth the reasonably expected initial offering price to
the Public or the sales price or prices of the Securities, together with the supporting pricing wires or
equivalent communications.

Sales of any Securities to any person that is a related party to an Underwriter shall not constitute
sales to the Public for purposes of this Notice of Sale. Further, for purposes of this Notice of Sale:

@) “Public” means any person other than an Underwriter or a related party,

(ii) “Underwriter” means (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a written
contract with the Issuer (or with the lead Underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate)
to participate in the initial sale of the Securities to the Public and (B) any person that
agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in
clause (A) to participate in the initial sale of the Securities to the Public (including a
member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the
initial sale of the Securities to the Public),

(iii) a purchaser of any of the Securities is a “related party” to an
Underwriter if the Underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (i)
at least 50% common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if
both entities are corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of another),
(ii) more than 50% common ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, if
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both entities are partnerships (including direct ownership by one partnership of another),
or (iii) more than 50% common ownership of the value of the outstanding stock of the
corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of the partnership, as applicable, if
one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including direct
ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other), and

(iv) “Sale Date” means the date that the Securities are awarded by the
Issuer to the winning bidder.

All actions to be taken by the Issuer under this Notice of Sale to establish the issue price of the
Securities may be taken on behalf of the Issuer by the Issuer’s financial advisor identified herein and any
notice or report to be provided to the Issuer may be provided to the Issuer’s financial advisor or Bond
Counsel.

It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numbers will be printed on the College Bonds, but
neither the failure to print such number on any Bond nor any error with respect thereto shall constitute
cause for a failure or refusal by the winning bidder thereof to accept delivery of and pay for the College
Bonds. The County’s financial advisor will request the CUSIPs and will provide CUSIP Global Services
with the final details of the sale, including the identity of the winning bidder.

The purchaser shall be obligated to furnish to the County, when and if requested prior to the
delivery of the College Bonds, such information requested by the County as shall be necessary to enable
the County to determine the "issue price” of the College Bonds as defined in Section 1273 and 1274 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code").

A Preliminary Official Statement has been prepared and is available for viewing in electronic
format on www.i-dealprospectus.com and may also be obtained from the County's financial advisor
identified in the last paragraph of this Notice. The Preliminary Official Statement is deemed to be a final
official statement, as of its date, within the meaning of Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, but is subject to (a) completion with certain pricing and other information to be made
available by the successful bidder for the College Bonds and (b) amendment. The Preliminary Official
Statement, as so revised, will constitute the final "Official Statement”. By the submission of bids for the
College Bonds, the successful bidder contracts for the receipt, within seven (7) business days of the award
of the College Bonds, of two hundred (200) copies of the final Official Statement at the expense of the
County, with any additional copies of the final Official Statement that the successful bidder shall
reasonably request to be provided at the sole cost and expense of the successful bidder. In order to
complete the final Official Statement, the successful bidder must furnish the following information to the
County's financial advisor and Bond Counsel by email or facsimile transmission or overnight delivery
received by the County's financial advisor and Bond Counsel within twenty-four (24) hours after the award
of the College Bonds: (a) initial offering prices (expressed as a price, exclusive of accrued interest, or yield
per maturity), and (b) any other material information necessary for the final Official Statement but not
known to the County (such as the bidder's purchase of credit enhancement). In addition, the successful
bidder must, if requested by the County, furnish a written confirmation of its bid.

The County will undertake to provide certain continuing disclosure in accordance with Rule 15¢2-
12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission. A description of this undertaking is contained in the
Preliminary Official Statement under the heading “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE”.

The successful bidder will be furnished at the time the College Bonds are delivered with: (1) the
opinion of GluckWalrath LLP, Trenton, New Jersey, in substantially the form set forth in the Preliminary
Official Statement; and (2) certificates in form satisfactory to said law firm evidencing the proper execution
and delivery of the College Bonds and receipt of payment therefor and the fact that the College Bonds will
not be arbitrage bonds within the meaning of the Code; and (3) a certificate, dated as of the date of delivery
of the College Bonds, and signed by the officers who signed the College Bonds, stating that no litigation is
then pending or to the knowledge of such officers threatened to restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery
of the College Bonds or the levy or collection of taxes to pay the College Bonds or the interest thereon, or
questioning the validity of the statutes or the proceedings under which the College Bonds are issued, and
that neither the corporate existence or boundaries of the County nor the title of any of said officers to their
respective offices, is being contested; and (4) the County's Continuing Disclosure Certificate substantially
in the form described in the Preliminary Official Statement.

The successful bidder is advised of the responsibility to file an annual disclosure statement on
political contributions with the New Jersey Election Law Enforcement Commission pursuant to N.J.S.A.
19:44A-20.13 (P.L. 20035, ¢.271, s.3) if the successful bidder receives contracts in excess of $50,000 from
public entities in a calendar year. It is the successful bidder’s responsibility to determine if filing is
necessary. Additional information on this requirement is available from ELEC at 888-313-3532 or at
www.elec.state.nj.us.

Award of the College Bonds to the successful bidder or rejection of all bids is expected to be made
within two (2) hours after announcement of the bids, but such successful bidder may not withdraw its
proposal until after 5:30 p.m. of the day of such bid-opening and then only if such award has not been made
prior to the withdrawal.
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Copies of the Preliminary Official Statement may be obtained from the County's financial advisor,
PFM Financial Advisors LLC, 1735 Market Street, 43rd Floor, Philadelphia, PA 19103, Telephone 215-
567-6100, Attention: Geoffrey Stewart.

DATED: August  ,2019 BY: /s/ Julie N. Tarrant
County Comptroller,
County of Ocean, New Jersey

Introduced onf: August 21, 2019
Adopted on: August 21, 2019
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Section 11. Delegation of Power to Award and Sell College Bonds. The County
Comptroller is delegated on behalf of the County the power to award and sell the College Bonds to the
successful bidder. The County Comptroller shall report the results of such sale in writing at the next
meeting of the Board of Chosen Freeholders.

Section 12. Adjustment to Maturity Schedule. The County Comptroller is hereby delegated
the authority (if the County Comptroller deems it to be in the best interests of the County) up to 24 hours
prior to the date of advertised sale and within 4 hours after the award of the bonds, to adjust the maturity
schedule of the College Bonds in increments of $1,000, provided that (i) no maturity schedule adjustment
shall exceed 10% upward or downward of the principal for any maturity as specified herein (or as adjusted
prior to the date of advertised sale) and (ii) the aggregate adjustment to the maturity schedule shall not
exceed 10% upward or downward of the aggregate principal amount of bonds as specified herein (or as
adjusted prior to the date of advertised sale) and as adjusted will not exceed the amount authorized by the
Ordinance. NOTICE OF ANY ADJUSTMENT TO THE MATURITY SCHEDULE OF THE COLLEGE
BONDS PRIOR TO THE DATE OF THE ADVERTISED SALE SHALL BE GIVEN BY CAUSING A
NOTICE THEREOF TO BE PUBLISHED ON TM3 NEWS SERVICE. The dollar amount bid by the
successful bidder shall be adjusted to reflect any adjustments in the aggregate principal amount of College
Bonds to be issued. The adjusted bid price will reflect changes in the dollar amount of the underwriter’s
discount and the original issue premium or discount, but will not change the per bond underwriter’s
discount as calculated from the bid and the Initial Public Offering Prices required to be delivered to the
County. Notice of any such adjustment shall be given to the successful bidder in the manner specified in
the Notice of Sale. In the event of any such adjustment, the dollar amount (but not the interest rate or rates)
bid by the successful bidder will be adjusted as provided in the Notice of Sale.

Section 13. Postponement of Sale. The County Comptroller is hereby delegated the
authority (if the Chief Financial Officer deems it to be in the best interests of the County) (i) to postpone
from time to time the sale of the College Bonds from the date specified in the Notice of Sale (or, in the case
of a rescheduled sale, from such rescheduled date), in each case upon not less than 24 hours’ notice, and (ii)
to reschedule such sale upon not less than 48 hours’ notice. Notice of any such postponement and
rescheduling shall be given in the manner specified in the Notice of Sale. In the event of any such
postponement and rescheduling, the County Comptroller may (and shall, if required by the Local Bond
Law) cause a revised Notice of Sale and/or a revised summary thereof to be prepared and published.

Section 14. Agreements with The Depository Trust Company. The Comptroller is hereby
authorized to make representations and warranties, to enter into agreements and to make all arrangements
with DTC, as may be necessary in order to provide that this issue of the County's College Bonds will be
eligible for deposit with DTC, and to satisfy any obligations undertaken in connection therewith.

Section 15. Authorization for Official Statement. The Comptroller, Chief Financial Officer,
Clerk of the Board of Chosen Freeholders, auditor, bond counsel and other officers, agents and employees
of the County are authorized to prepare and distribute information with respect to the County in connection
with the sale of the College Bonds in such form as may be approved by the Comptroller. The preparation
and distribution of a Preliminary Official Statement pertaining to the College Bonds is hereby authorized.
The Comptroller is hereby authorized to deem final the Preliminary Official Statement for purposes of Rule
15¢2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Director of the Board of Chosen Freeholders,
the County Administrator, the Chief Financial Officer and the Clerk of the Board of Chosen Freeholders
are hereby authorized and directed to execute a final official statement relating to the bonds, with such
changes, revisions, insertions and omissions from the Preliminary Official Statement as may be approved
by the Comptroller.

Section 16. Pledge of County. The full faith and credit of the County of Ocean in the State
of New Jersey is hereby pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest on said College Bonds and
said College Bonds shall be general obligations of the County payable as to principal and interest from ad
valorem taxes which may be assessed on the taxable property within said County without limitation as to
rate or amount.

Section 17. Investment of Proceeds of College Bonds. The County will make no use of the
proceeds of the College Bonds which would cause the College Bonds to be arbitrage bonds; and the County
hereby imposes on itself and all officers having custody or control of the proceeds of the College Bonds,
throughout the term of the College Bonds, the obligation to comply with applicable requirements of Section
148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and Regulations Sections 1.148-0
through 1.148-11 and 1.150-1 and 1.150-2, and all other applicable regulations of the Internal Revenue
Service, so that the College Bonds will not be or become arbitrage bonds.

Section 18. Tax Covenants. In order to maintain the exclusion from gross income for
federal income tax purposes of interest on the College Bonds, and for no other purpose, the County
covenants to comply with each applicable requirement of the Code, applicable to the bonds, and the County
covenants not to take any action or fail to take any action which would cause the interest on the College
Bonds to lose the exclusion from gross income for federal income taxation purposes under Section 103 of
the Code. In furtherance of the covenant contained in the preceding sentence, the County agrees to comply
with the Arbitrage Certificate and Letter of Instructions (the "Letter of Instructions") as to the Code
delivered by Bond Counsel on the date of initial issuance and delivery of the College Bonds, as such letter
may be amended from time to time, as a source of guidance for achieving compliance with the Code.
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The County covenants and agrees with the holders of the bonds that the County shall not take any
action or omit to take any action, which action or omission, if reasonably expected on the date of initial
issuance and delivery of the College Bonds, would cause the bonds to be "private activity bonds" or
"arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Sections 141(a) and 148, respectively, of the Code, or any

successor provision.

Section 19. Bonds Not Federally Guaranteed. The County covenants that it will take no
action which would cause the College Bonds to be federally guaranteed (within the meaning of Section
149(b) of the Code).

Section 20. Designation of Paying Agent; Acceptance. TD Bank, National Association,

Cherry Hill, New Jersey, is hereby designated to act as Paying Agent for the College Bonds. The County
may at any time or from time to time by supplemental resolution appoint one or more other Paying Agents
for such College Bonds. Each Paying Agent shall be a bank, trust company or national banking association
doing business and having its principal office in the State of New Jersey, having trust powers, willing and
able to accept the office on reasonable and customary terms and authorized by law to perform all the duties
imposed upon it by this Resolution. Each Paying Agent shall signify its acceptance of the duties and
obligations imposed upon it by this Resolution by executing and delivering to the County a written
acceptance thereof.

Section 21. Responsibilities of Paying Agent. The recitals of fact herein and in the College
Bonds contained shall be taken as the statements of the County and the Paying Agent assumes no
responsibility for the correctness of the same. The Paying Agent does not make any representations as to
the validity or sufficiency of this Resolution or of any bonds issued hereunder or in respect of the security
afforded by this Resolution, and shall not incur any responsibility in respect thereof. The Paying Agent
shall not be under any responsibility or duty with respect to the issuance of the bonds or the application of
the proceeds thereof or the application of any moneys paid to the County or others in accordance with this
Resolution. The Paying Agent shall not be under any obligation or duty to perform any act which would
involve it in expense or liability or to institute or defend any action or suit in respect of this Resolution or
the bonds, or to advance any of its own moneys, unless properly indemnified. The Paying Agent shall not
be liable in connection with the performance of its duties hereunder except for its own negligence or
default.

Section 22. Funds Held in Trust. All moneys held by the Paying Agent, as such, at any time
pursuant to the terms of this Resolution shall be and hereby are assigned, transferred and set over unto the
Paying Agent in trust for the purposes and under the terms and conditions of the Resolution.

Section 23. Evidence on Which the Paying Agent May Act. The Paying Agent shall be
protected in acting upon any notice, resolution, request, consent, order, certificate, opinion, bond, or other
paper or document believed by it to be genuine, and to have been signed or presented by the proper party or
parties. Whenever the Paying Agent shall deem it necessary or desirable that a fact or matter be proved or
established prior to taking or suffering any action hereunder, such fact or matter (unless other evidence in
respect thereof be herein specifically prescribed) may be deemed to be conclusively proved and established
by a certificate signed by an employee or officer of the County stating the same, and such certificate shall
be full warrant for any action taken or suffered in good faith under the provisions of this Resolution in
reliance thereon, but in its discretion the Paying Agent may in lieu thereof accept other evidence of such
fact or matter or may require such further or additional evidence as to it may seem reasonable. Except as
otherwise expressly provided herein, any request, order, notice or other direction required or permitted to
be furnished pursuant to any provision hereof by or on behalf of the County to the Paying Agent shall be
sufficiently executed if executed by an employee or officer of the County.

Section 24. Compensation and Expenses. Unless otherwise provided by contract with the
Paying Agent, the County shall pay to the Paying Agent from time to time reasonable compensation for ail
services rendered by it hereunder, and also reimbursement for all its reasonable expenses, charges, legal
and engineering fees and other disbursements and those of its attorneys, agents and employees, incurred in
and about the performance of its powers and duties hereunder. The County shall indemnify and save the
Paying Agent harmless against any liabilities which it may incur in the exercise and performance of its
powers and duties hereunder and which are not due to its negligence or default.

Section 25. Ownership of Bonds. The Paying Agent may become the owner of or may deal
in bonds as fully and with the same rights it would have if it were not the Paying Agent.

Section 26. Resignation. The Paying Agent or any successor thereof may at any time resign
and be discharged of its duties and obligations created by this Resolution by giving not less than sixty days'
written notice to the County and mailing notice thereof, specifying the date when such resignation shall
take effect, to the bondholders. Such resignation shall take effect upon the day specified in such notice
unless previously a successor shall have been appointed by the County or bondholders as herein provided,
in which event such resignation shall take effect immediately on the appointment of such successor.

Section 27. Removal. The Paying Agent, or any successor thereof, may be removed at any
time by the holders of a majority in principal amount of the bonds then outstanding, excluding any bonds
held by or for the account of the County, by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing signed and
duly acknowledged by such bondholders or by their attorneys duly authorized in writing and delivered to
the County. The County may remove the Paying Agent at any time, for such cause as shall be determined
in the sole discretion of the County by filing with the Paying Agent an instrument signed by an officer of
the County and by mailing notice thereof to bondholders.
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Section 28. Appointment of Successor. In case the Paying Agent, or any successor thereof,
shall resign or shall be removed or shall become incapable of acting, or shall be adjudged a bankrupt or
insolvent, or if a receiver, liquidator or conservator of the Paying Agent or of its property shall be
appointed, or if any public officer shall take charge or control of the Paying Agent or of its property or
affairs, a successor may be appointed by the holders of a majority in principal amount of the bonds then
outstanding, excluding any bonds held by or for the account of the County, by an instrument or concurrent
instruments in writing signed by such bondholders or their attorneys duly authorized in writing and
delivered to such successor Paying Agent, notification thereof being given to the County and the
predecessor Paying Agent. Pending such appointment, the County shall forthwith appoint a Paying Agent
to fill such vacancy until a successor Paying Agent (if any) shall be appointed by bondholders as herein
authorized. The County shall mail notice to bondholders of any such appointment within twenty days after
such appointment. Any successor Paying Agent appointed by the County shall, immediately and without
further act, be superseded by a Paying Agent appointed by the bondholders. If in a proper case no
appointment of a successor Paying Agent shall be made pursuant to the foregoing provisions of this Section
within forty-five days after the Paying Agent shall have given to the County written notice of resignation as
provided in Section 26 hereof or after the occurrence of any other event requiring or authorizing such
appointment, the Paying Agent or any bondholder may apply to any court of competent jurisdiction to
appoint a successor. Said court may thereupon, after such notice, if any, as said court may deem proper and
prescribe, appoint such successor Paying Agent. Any Paying Agent appointed under the provisions of this
Section shall be a bank or trust company or a national banking association, doing business and having its
principal office in the State of New Jersey and authorized by law to perform all the duties imposed upon it
by this Resolution.

Section 29. Transfer of Rights and Property to Successor. Any successor Paying Agent

appointed hereunder shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to its predecessor Paying Agent and also to the
County, an instrument accepting such appointment, and thereupon such successor Paying Agent without
any further act, deed or conveyance, shall become fully vested with all moneys, estates, properties, rights,
powers, duties and obligations of such predecessor Paying Agent, but the Paying Agent ceasing to act shall
nevertheless, on the written request of the County or of the successor Paying Agent, execute, acknowledge
and deliver such instruments of conveyance and further assurances and do such other things as may
reasonably be required for more fully and certainly vesting and confirming in such successor Paying Agent
all the right, title and interest of the predecessor Paying Agent in and to any property held by it under this
Resolution, and shall pay over, assign and deliver to the successor Paying Agent any money or other
property subject to the trusts and conditions herein set forth. Should any deed, conveyance or instrument in
writing from the County be required by such successor Paying Agent for more fully and certainly vesting in
and confirming to such successor Paying Agent any such moneys, estates, properties, rights, powers and
duties, any and all such deeds, conveyances and instruments in writing shall, on request, and so far as may
be authorized by law, be executed, acknowledged and delivered by the County. Any such successor Paying
Agent shall promptly notify the other Paying Agent of its appointment as such Paying Agent.

Section 30 Merger or Consolidation. Any company into which the Paying Agent may be
merged or converted or with which it may be consolidated or any company resulting from any merger,
conversion or consolidation to which it shall be a party or any company to which the Paying Agent or a
court of competent jurisdiction may sell or transfer all or substantially all of its corporate trust business,
shall be the successor to the Paying Agent without the execution or filing of any paper or the performance
of any further act; provided that such company shall be a bank or trust company or national banking
association which is qualified to be a successor to the Paying Agent under Section 28 hereof and shall be
authorized by law to perform all the duties imposed upon it by this Resolution.

Section 31. Continuing Disclosure. A Continuing Disclosure Certificate in substantially the
following form is hereby approved, and the County Comptroller is hereby authorized and directed to
execute and deliver a Continuing Disclosure Certificate on behalf of the County in substantially such form,
with such insertions and changes therein as the County Comptroller may approve, such approval to be
evidenced by his/her execution thereof:

(Form of Continuing Disclosure Certificate for the Bonds)
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Disclosure Certificate") is executed and delivered by
the County of Ocean, New Jersey (the "Issuer") in connection with the issuance by the Issuer of
$ principal amount of its College Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2019 (the "Bonds”). The
Bonds are being issued pursuant to a Bond Ordinance (the "Ordinance") duly adopted by the Board of
Chosen Freeholders of the Issuer (the “Board”) on June 6, 2019, and a resolution duly adopted by the

Board on , 2019 (the "Resolution"). The Bonds are dated September , 2019 and shall
mature on September 1 in the years 2020 through 2024, inclusive. The Issuer covenants and agrees as
follows:

Section 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being

executed and delivered by the Issuer for the benefit of the Bondholders and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds
and in order to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with the provisions of Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5)
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as the same may be amended from time to time ("Exchange Act").
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Section 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Resolution, which
apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this Section,
the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

"Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and as
described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

"Beneficial Owner" shall mean any person which (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote
or consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons holding Bonds
through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the owner of any Bonds for
federal income tax purposes.

"Bondholder" shall mean any person who is the registered owner of any Bond, including holders
of beneficial interests in the Bonds.

"Continuing Disclosure Information” shall mean: (i) the Annual Report; (ii) any notice required to
be filed with the Repositories pursuant to Section 5 hereof; and (iii) any notice of an event required to be
filed with the Repositories pursuant to Section 3(c) hereof.

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean the Issuer, or any successor Dissemination Agent designated in
writing by the Issuer and which has filed with the Issuer a written acceptance of such designation.

"EMMA" shall mean the Electronic Municipal Market Access System ("EMMA"), an internet
based filing system created and maintained by the MSRB in accordance with the SEC Release, pursuant to
which issuers of tax-exempt bonds, including the Bonds, and other filers on behalf of the such issuers shall
upload Continuing Disclosure Information to assist underwriters in complying with the Rule and to provide
the general public with access to such Continuing Disclosure Information.

"Financial Obligation" means a (i) debt obligation; (ii) derivative instrument entered into in
connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation;
or (iii) guarantee of (i) or (ii). The term "Financial Obligation" shall not include municipal securities as to
which a final official statement has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule.

"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure Certificate.

"MSRB" shall mean the Municipal Bonds Rulemaking Board established pursuant to Section
15B(b)(1) of the Exchange Act.

"National Repository" shall mean the MSRB, through the internet facilities of EMMA, or any
other public or private repository or entity that shall hereafter be designated by the SEC as a repository for
purposes of the Rule.

"Official Statement” shall mean the Official Statement of the County, dated , 2019,
relating to the Bonds.

"Participating Underwriter" shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Bonds required to
comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds.

"Repository" or "Repositories” shall mean each National Repository and each State Repository, if
any.

"Rule" shall mean Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) adopted by the SEC under the Exchange Act, as the same
may be amended from time to time.

"SEC Release" shall mean Release No. 34-59062, of the SEC, dated December 5, 2008.
"State" shall mean the State of New Jersey.

"State Repository” shall mean any public or private repository or entity designated by the State as
a state repository for the purpose of the Rule and recognized as such by the SEC. As of the date of this
Disclosure Certificate, there is no State Repository.

Section 3. Provision of Annual Reports.

(a) The Issuer shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, not later than nine
(9) months after the end of its fiscal year, commencing with the report for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2019, provide to the MSRB in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB, an
Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure
Certificate. The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents
comprising a package, and may cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this
Disclosure Certificate; provided that the audited financial statements of the Issuer may be
submitted separately from the balance of the Annual Report and later than the date required
above for the filing of the Annual Report if they are not available by that date. If the Issuer's
fiscal year changes, it shall give notice of such change to MSRB. Any and all items that must be
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included in the Annual Report may be incorporated by reference from other information that is
available to the public on the MSRB's Internet Web site, or that has been filed with the SEC.

(b) Not later than fifteen (15) Business Days prior to the date specified in subsection
(a) for making available or providing the Annual Report, the Issuer shall provide the Annual
Report to the Dissemination Agent (if other than the Issuer). If the Issuer is unable to provide to
the MSRB an Annual Report by the date required in subsection (a), the Issuer shall, in a timely
manner, send a notice to the MSRB in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A, in an
electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB. All documents provided to the MSRB shall be
accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB.

(c) The Dissemination Agent shall file a report with the Issuer certifying that the
Annual Report has been provided to the MSRB pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement, stating
the date it was provided.

Section 4. Content of Annual Reports. The Issuer's Annual Report shall contain or include

by reference the following:

1. The audited financial statements of the Issuer for the prior fiscal year, prepared
in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards (GAAS) as from time to time in
effect, and as prescribed by the Division of Local Government Services in the Department of
Community Affairs of the State pursuant to Chapter 5 of Title 40A of the New Jersey Statutes. If
the Issuer's audited financial statements are not available by the time the Annual Report is required
to be filed pursuant to Section 3(a), the Annual Report shall contain unaudited financial statements
and the audited financial statements shall be filed in the same manner as the Annual Report when
they become available.

2. The financial information and operating data set forth in the Official Statement
(including Appendix A thereto) dated , 2019 prepared in connection with the sale
of the Bonds, under the captions: “Schedule of Bond and Note Maturities”, “Tax Information”,
“Ocean County Leading Tax Ratables - 2019”, “County of Ocean Statement of Statutory Debt
Condition June 5, 2019", “List of Authorized Debt as of June 5, 2019" and “Debt Ratios”.

Section 5. Reporting of Significant Events.

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the Issuer shall give, or cause to be

given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds:

1. principal and interest payment delinquencies;

2. non-payment related defaults, if material;

3. unscheduled draws on debt service reserves refiecting financial difficulties;

4. unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;

5. substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

6. adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed

or final determinations of taxability. Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form
5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax
status of the security, or others material events affecting the tax status of the

Bonds;

7. modifications to rights of Bondholders, if material;

8. Bond Calls, if material and tender offers;

9. defeasances;

10. release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if
material;

11. rating changes.

12. bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar events of the Issuer, which shall

be considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a
receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the Issuer in a proceeding under the
U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in
which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over
substantially all of the assets or business of the Issuer, or if such jurisdiction has
been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in
possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental
authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization,
arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority having
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supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the
Issuer;

13. the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Issuer
or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, other than in the
ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake
such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such
actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material;

14. appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a
trustee, if material;

15. incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, if material, or agreement to
covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a
Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of which affect Bondholders, if material;
and

16. default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other
similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of
which reflect financial difficulties.

b) Whenever the Issuer obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event
described in subsection (a) for which a disclosure obligation is dependent upon materiality, the Issuer shall
as soon as possible determine if such event would be material under applicable federal securities laws.

(c) If disclosure of a Listed Event is required, the Issuer shall, in a timely manner
not in excess of ten business days after the occurrence of the event, file a notice of such occurrence with the
MSRB in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB. All documents provided to the MSRB shall be
accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB.

Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Issuer's obligations under this
Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all
of the Bonds. If such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the Issuer shall give
notice of such termination in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c).

Section 7. Dissemination Agent. The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage a
Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate, and may
discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. The
Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in any manner for the content of any notice or report prepared
by the Issuer pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate. The initial Dissemination Agent shall be the Issuer.

Section 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure
Certificate, the Issuer may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this Disclosure
Certificate may be waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied:

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Section 3(a), 4 or 5(a), it
may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal
requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature or status of an obligated person with
respect to the Bonds, or the type of business conducted;

(b) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in the
opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at
the time of the original issuance of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or
interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and

(c) The amendment or waiver does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized
bond counsel, materially impair the interests of the Bondholders or Beneficial Owners of the
Bonds.

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer
shall describe such amendment in the next Annual Report, and shall include, as applicable, a narrative
explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or in the case of a
change of accounting principles, on the presentation) of financial information or operating data being
presented by the Issuer. In addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed in
preparing financial statements, (i) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed
Event under Section 5(c), and (ii) the Annual Report for the year in which the change is made should
present a comparison (in narrative form and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) between the financial
statements as prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the
former accounting principles.

Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed
to prevent the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth
in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other information in
any notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure
Certificate. If the Issuer chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence
of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer
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shall have no obligation under this Disclosure Certificate to update such information or include it in any
future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event.

Section 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the Issuer to comply with any provision of
this Disclosure Certificate any Bondholider or Beneficial Owner of the Bonds may take such actions as
may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandamus or specific performance by court order, to
cause the Issuer to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate. A default under this
Disclosure Certificate shall not be deemed an Event of Default on the Bonds, and the sole remedy under
this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the Issuer to comply with this Disclosure Certificate
shall be an action to compel performance.

Section 11, Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of  Dissemination Agent.  The
Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Certificate,

and the Issuer agrees to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, directors, employees and
agents, harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities which it may incur arising out of or in the exercise
or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses (including reasonable
attorneys’ fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but exciuding liabilities due to the
Dissemination Agent's gross negligence or wilful misconduct. The obligations of the Issuer under this
Section 11 shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent and payment of the Bonds.

Section 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of
the Issuer, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriters and the Bondholders and Beneficial
Owners from time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

Dated: ,2019

COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY

By:

Julie N. Tarrant, County Comptroller
EXHIBIT A

NOTICE OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT

Name of Issuer: County of Ocean, New Jersey
Name of Bond Issue: $ College Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2019
Date of Issuance: , 2019

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Issuer has not provided an Annual Report with respect to the above-
named Bonds as required by Section 3(a) of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate dated ,
2019. The Issuer anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed by ,20

Dated: ,20

COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY

By:
Name:
Title:

Section 32. Defeasance. (A) If the County shall pay or shall cause to be paid or if there shall be
paid otherwise to the owner of all bonds the principal and the redemption premium, if applicable, and the
interest due or to become due thereon at the times and in the manmer stipulated therein and in this
Resolution, then, at the option of the County, the pledge of the County contained herein and all covenants,
agreements and other obligations of the County to the owners of the bonds thereupon shall cease, shall
terminate, shall become void and shall be discharged and satisfied. In such event and upon the request of
the County, any paying agent shall pay over or shall deliver to the County all moneys, funds or securities
held by them pursuant to this Resolution that are not required for the payment of the principal of or
premium and interest due or to become due on the bonds. If the County shall pay or shall cause to be paid
or if there shall be paid otherwise to the owners of all outstanding bonds of a particular maturity the
principal of and the redemption premium, if any, and interest due or to become due thereon, at the time and
in the manner stipulated therein and in this Resolution, such bonds shall cease to be entitled to any lien,
benefit or security under this Resolution, and all covenants, agreements and obligations of the County to
the owners of such bonds shall thereupon cease, shall terminate and shall become void and be discharged
and satisfied.
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B) Bonds or interest installments for the payment or the redemption of which moneys shall
have been deposited with any bank, trust company or national banking association serving as escrow agent
(the "Escrow Agent") by or on behalf of the County whether at or prior to the maturity or the redemption
date of such bonds, shall be deemed to have been paid within the meaning and with the effect expressed in
subsection (A) of this Section. All outstanding bonds or any maturity of the bonds shall be deemed to have
been paid within the meaning and with the effect expressed in subsection (A) of this Section if (1) in case
any of such bonds are to be redeemed on any date prior to their maturity, the County shall have given to the
Escrow Agent irrevocable instruction to publish notice of redemption of such bonds on such date, (2) there
shall have been deposited with the Escrow Agent either moneys in an amount that shall be sufficient or
direct obligations of the United States of America or securities unconditionally guaranteed as to the timely
payment by the United States of America not redeemable at the option of the issuer the principal of and the
interest on which when due will provide moneys which, together with the moneys, if any, deposited with
the Escrow Agent at the same time, shall be sufficient, to pay when due the principal and any redemption
premium and the interest due and to become due on such bonds on and prior to the redemption date or the
maturity date thereof, as the case may be, and (3) in the event such bonds are not by their terms subject to
redemption within the next succeeding sixty (60) days, the County shall have given the Escrow Agent in
form satisfactory